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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the first annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

ANNUAL REVIEW

2018 marked a milestone in the development history of the Group.
With the joint efforts of all staff, the Group was successfully listed
on the Stock Exchange on 12 November 2018, becoming the fourth
real estate company in Henan Province which is listed in Hong
Kong, as well as the first real estate company in Xuchang City listed
on the Stock Exchange. The Listing was an important step for the
development of the Group. Being a publicly listed company brings
new opportunities and challenges to the Group and is a significant
milestone in the history of the Group’s development.

“Hengda (1B#)” is a reputable brand in the industry. After 26
years of development and cultivation, it has become one of the
leading real estate development companies in Xuchang City, Henan
Province. By capitalizing on the Group’s extensive experience,
well-known brand and quality professional services in the real
estate industry, | believe that the Group will continue to grasp the
development opportunities in the real estate industry and further
expand its business, thereby further consolidate and enhance the
market position of the Group.

The Listing is an important milestone in the development history of
the Company. While having a new platform, we have to make new
achievements. We will continue to enhance the brand awareness
and influence of Hengda, consolidate the industry position of the
Group, further enhance the corporate governance level of the
Company, and fully leverage on the strength of the international
capital market to achieve a better and more rapid development of
the Company.
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ANNUAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s total revenue
was approximately RMB1,883.6 million, representing an increase
of approximately 21.5% from approximately RMB1,549.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the net profit was approximately RMB229.9
million, representing an increase of approximately 53.9% from
approximately RMB149.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2017.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK5.9
cents (equivalent to approximately RMB5.0 cents) per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 December 2018.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will continue to provide quality
properties to its customers. The Group plans to expand its business
through mergers, acquisitions, investments, establishment of
joint ventures and other business cooperation with real estate
developers. With the Group’s strong strength in grasping market
opportunities, its sound brand reputation in the industry, and the
growth potential of the real estate market in Xuchang City, it is
believed that the business of the Group will continue to grow.

In 2019, the Group will closely monitor the progress of the projects
according to the construction schedule of each construction-
in-progress project, prepare reasonable project development
schedules, delegate the duties at different levels, ensure the duly
fulfilment of responsibilities and accountability, and make sure
construction in progress to achieve the milestones as planned.
Meanwhile, the Group focuses on product quality, prioritises the
quality control of raw materials, and effectively ensures the project
quality by means of raw material control, sample first, process
control and other means.
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

The Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development (the
“MOHURD”) clearly stated the position that “the houses are for
residence, not for speculation”, in order to improve the long-term
mechanism for promoting the stable and healthy development of
the real estate market. It was necessary to deepen the reform of the
housing system and speed up the establishment of a multi-subject
supply, multi-channel security, and rent-and-purchase housing
system according to the MOHURD. The MOHURD also emphasized
that the control and adjustment of the real estate market would be
“tightened” in 2018. It was necessary to maintain the continuity and
stability of the real estate market regulation policy, and continue to
strictly implement various control measures, so as to make the real
estate market prices return to reasonable levels.

The statistical data of 2018 released by Henan Province Bureau
of Statistics stated that the sales area of commercial housing in
Henan Province was approximately 139.905 million square meters,
representing an increase of approximately 5.1% as compared with
the previous year; and the contracted sales area of commercial
housing of the Group in 2018 was approximately 381,793 square
meters, representing a decrease of approximately 13.0% as
compared with the previous year; the sales of commercial housing in
Henan Province was approximately RMB805.53 billion, representing
an increase of approximately 13.0%, and the contracted sales
of commercial housing of the Group in 2018 was approximately
RMB2.51 billion, representing an increase of approximately 14.9%
as compared with the previous year. The above data shows that
the development of real estate in Henan Province has maintained
its growing momentum in overall steadiness. Notwithstanding the
Group recorded a decrease in contracted sales area of commercial
housing in 2018 as compared with that of previous year, the growth
of contracted sales remained the same level as that of Henan
Province, and slightly higher by 1.9%, which was mainly due to a
steady increase of housing price in Xuchang City.
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anagement

On 25 March 2019, the 4th meeting of the 7th People’s
Congress was held in Xuchang City. Reviewing 2018, Xuchang
City Government grasped the key points and kept a steady
economic development, attached an importance to maintain the
industrial growth, focused on project construction, and vigorously
developed the private economy so as to strengthen the capability
of enterprises to respond to the plight and uphold steady growth
of economy. In 2019, the major projected targets for economic
and social development are characterized by GDP growth of
approximately 7.5%, full labor productivity growth higher than the
average level of that across the province, general public budget
revenue growth of approximately 8%, and consumer price index
growth under control at approximately 3%. The economic structure
will be optimized on a constant basis as well as the quality and
efficiency will be significantly improved. Among work in terms of
9 aspects mentioned in the government report, the government
will commit to promoting new urbanization and intensifying quality
development support. The government will proactively give impetus
to the urbanization of population migrated from rural area, and
guarantee them to lead a life based on the principle of “welcome
into, stay here, and live well”, which will produce a new rigid
demand in the real estate industry, resulting in an expected
promotion to property sales.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Over the years, the Group has adhered to the principle of honest
operation and fulfilling every promise. It commits to real estate
development and aims at improving the living standard in Xuchang
City. In April 2018, it was awarded the “Outstanding Contribution
Award” by the People’s Government of Weidu District, Xuchang
City. In September 2018, it was awarded the “Top 100 Private
Enterprises of Modern Service Industry in Henan in 2018” by the
Henan Provincial Federation of Industry and Commerce.
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The Group’s operation is based in Xuchang City. It has a good
understanding of local customers, history and culture, more than 20
years of established property development experience, and a strong
brand reputation in Xuchang City. The Group’s strategic focus and
solid foundation in the region enable the Group to gain an in-depth
understanding of local markets, customer preferences and urban
planning trends, and to establish good working relationships with
local governments and business partners, so as to give the Group
a local market advantage.

During 2018, we actively launched different real estate sales
solutions. Among them, the sales of Mingmen Xijun, Changge
Sunshine City and King of the North achieved satisfactory results,
and the total amount of contracted sales increased as compared
with 2017.

At the same time, the Group was developing potential projects
continuously, including Hengda Wangjiao and Yuzhou Binhefu (&
TEJAI ) (previous known as Yuzhou Guozhuang Project), which will
provide a stable growth momentum for our sales and performance
in the coming few years.

The Group adhered to the mixed development business model for
both residential and commercial properties, significantly increased
the comprehensive value of residential projects through mixed
development and enhanced the brand and reputation of the Group.
Meanwhile, the rental of commercial properties and the unsold
properties held for sale can generate stable rents and cash flows,
and promote the final sales of properties held for sale at the same
time.
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Land reserves

anagement

As at 31 December 2018, the total gross floor area (“GFA”) of the
Group’s land reserves was approximately 3.46 million sg.m. The

table below sets forth a summary of the land reserves as at 31

Tk fEE

s S 73 AT

R2018%F12A31H  AEB L HWHEN
WEEEE ((BEEE]) D A346ETH
K o TR H20184E12 531 H L ih 15 2|

December 2018 by geographical location: ST HREEE
Under Future
Completed development development
[=5: kg RAF B
Completed
saleable/
leasable GFA GFA under Planned Total land % of total
remaining unsold development GFA reserve  land reserve
BTREEW
AHE AR kg HE i CE ]
BRIEEER EEEE BEEE 53 HEAD
sQ.m. sQ.m. sQ.m. sQ.m. %
FEAR FrR FHK FAR %
Xuchang City FE™
Weidu District BRE= 57,144 576,586 68,056 701,786 20.3
Jian’an District BELR 70,288 208,326 147,180 425,794 12.3
Yuzhou City ST 23,915 488,738 1,234,946 1,747,599 50.5
Changge City REM 15,064 198,882 304,224 518,170 14.9
Yanling County 3% &2 15,040 36,968 17,277 69,285 2.0
Total F 181,451 1,509,500 1,771,683 3,462,634 100.0

Note: Land reserves equal the sum of (i) total completed saleable/leasable
GFA remaining unsold, (i) total GFA under development and (jii) total
planned GFA held for future development.

The Group acquired several parcels of land reserves in Yanling

County and Yuzhou City with site area of approximately 94,364.3

sg.m. during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Hid - LHREESROBRTREENATRE
AR TREERE  ()FEEP A
FREREAE ¢ B EARRFAE R B A
RSB o
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BE 8% N 2B N T BB B Hb AR T FE 4094,364.3F
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Contracted Sales ERIHEERE

The table below sets forth a breakdown of our major types of TR BEMEZEINERBEERENLE
contracted sales and contracted average selling price (“ASP”): RFHEE ([FHEE]) BRE

For the year ended
31 December % change
BZ12A31BLEFE EEIER e

2018 2017 +/-
201845 20174 +/-
Contracted sales attributable to: T EBEEIGEREESE
Residential units (RMB, million) FEEBEU (ARBFET) 1,954.5 1,792.0 +9.1%
Commercial units (RMB, million) HEBLN (ANREEET) 547.7 370.2 +47.9%
Car parking spaces (RMB, million) FEL (AREBET) 146.4 75.8 +93.1%
Others (RMB, million) Hitn (ARBBEET) 9.4 23.7 -60.3%
Total (RMB, million) Bir (AREBETL) 2,658.0 2,261.7 +17.5%
Contracted saleable GFA/Lot attributable to: A T &EEEARAEE
BEEE /AR
Saleable GFA (sq.m.) A EREEE (THK) 381,793 439,068 -13.0%
Car parking space (Iot) EEA (fA) 1,067 879 +21.4%
Contracted ASP attributable to: ITEBEIGERTHER
Saleable GFA (RMB/sq.m.) AHEZERE
(AR¥ET/FHK) 6,578 4,978 +32.1%
Car parking space (RMB/lot) BEf (AR, /@) 137,192 86,225 +59.1%

Our contracted ASP per sg.m. of saleable GFA increased by 32.1% B HEZEMBENTTHXKERFY
to approximately RMB6,578 per sg.m. in 2018. The increase in EBEN2018FEN32.1% 2 LT FE KA
2018 was mainly due to the increase in market price of properties R #6,5787T c 2018F AN J5 F B A WA
in Henan Province. FEAYMENTHER -

Our contracted ASP per lot for car parking space increased by KR EMNEES R EHEEN20184F
59.1% to approximately RMB137,192 per lot in 2018. The increase 12 N59.1% % & @ 49 A R #137,1927T °
in 2018 was mainly due to the increase in market price of properties 2018 MG EERMNTEEWENTIS
in Henan Province. B LT -

1 2 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZR) BROA
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results

The financial performance and results for the year ended 31
December 2018 were satisfactory. Key financial ratios have met
the expectation of the management.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of the Group
reached approximately RMB1,883.6 million (2017: RMB1,549.9
million), representing an increase of approximately 21.5%.

The Group recorded gross profit of approximately RMB629.9
million (2017: RMB404.9 million), representing an increase of
approximately RMB225.0 million, or approximately 55.6%.

Gross profit margin was approximately 33.4% in 2018 (2017:
26.1%), representing an increase of approximately 28.0% as
compared with 2017.

Profit for the year increased by approximately RMB80.5 million, or
53.9%, from approximately RMB149.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately RMB229.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Revenue

Our revenue was derived primarily from (i) sales of properties and
(ii) rental income. The following table sets forth the breakdown of
the revenue and their respective percentages of contribution to the
total revenue for the years indicated:

5t %5 [ 8

£
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HZE2018F12A31H L FENHBERE KL
EESAME TEHBLREDNEERE

B -

REZE2018F12A31B ILFE - KEEK
NEHANRMEA,883.6FETT (2017F : A
R¥1,549.9887T) * #HIN421.5% °

REBBBSENH AR 298 B T
(20175 : ARM404.9HE L) ENK
ARB225.08 87T (804955.6%) °

20184 /) £ F| E #4) £33.4% (2017 :
26.1%) * E2017EL R 4928.0% °

FEFEREE2017F12A31HIEFER
HMARB1404F8 BT MO ARES0.5H
& 7L (3£538.9%) = & £2018F12H31H
IFFEMHARE2200HE T °

L ON

BB AEZZRA )Y EEE M(i)HSU
Ao TREINARFEEHUWRARANE
BEEMERRANBEDLL :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31ALLFEE
2018 2017 % change
201845 20174 BEBAIL
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % +/-
ARETFT % AREFIT % +/-
Sales of properties ¥ HE 1,881,364 99.9 1,547,123 99.8 +21.6%
Rental income A 2,239 0.1 2,755 0.2 -18.7%
1,883,603 100.0 1,549,878 100.0 +21.5%
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The tables below set out the revenue from the sales of properties, TREIIEMEENE DO WEHE WK

the total GFA units of properties recognised and the overall A FTERMENBRERRBANEH
recognised ASP of our properties by property types: LZEMENEBOERAFTHEE

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE
2018 2017
2018 20174
GFA Recognised GFA  Recognised
Revenue recognised ASP per sq.m Revenue recognised ASP per sq.m
EHER 2R
2R BE¥AHXK 2R (SRR
A BEER FHERE WA BEmR THER
RMB'000 sq.m. RMB RMB'000 sq.m. RMB
AR¥FT FHK ARMT ARETT FI R AR#ET
Residential = 1,247,429 233,765 5,336 1,108,607 276,334 4,012
Commercial [HES 548,565 54,563 10,054 353,113 37,868 9,325
Storage FRE=E 11,149 3,852 2,894 13,711 5,168 2,653
1,807,143 292,180 6,185 1,475,431 319,370 4,619
Units Recognised Units  Recognised
Revenue recognised ASP per unit Revenue recognised  ASP per unit
EER B2
[2Y 4] BB B#R FEf
A B FHER WA =i THEE
RMB'000 lot RMB RMB'000 lot RMB
AREFT 1612 ARMT ARETT fege AR
Car parking spaces {ZEfL 74,221 664 111,779 71,692 1,004 71,407

Sales of properties, which accounted for approximately 99.9% H ZE2018F12A31HIEFE MEHES
(2017: 99.8%) of our total revenue for the year ended 31 December RE 416 3k P9 42 U A #999.9% (20174 -
2018, was primarily contributed from the sales of residential and 99.8%) r NEEZHRZFEBRREIERHE
commercial properties, storages and car parking spaces recognised ¥V BEEREEMNEERY -

in the year.

1 4 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Our revenue increased by approximately RMB333.7 million or

21.5% from approximately RMB1,549.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately RMB1,883.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018, which was principally attributable to
the result of approximately RMB138.8 million increase in the sales
of our residential properties during the year ended 31 December
2018; and approximately RMB195.5 million increase in the sales
of our commercial properties during the year ended 31 December
2018.

The increase in sales of residential properties was mainly due to the
effect of increase of recognised ASP per sq.m from approximately
RMB4,012 for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB5,336 for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing
an increase of approximately 33.0% year-on-year. The relatively
low recognised ASP in 2017 was mainly attributable to the sales
of Changcheng Home in 2017 as members of army stationed
in Xuchang were entitled to purchase residential properties of
Changcheng Home at a pre-agreed price which was lower than
the market price.

The increase in the sales of our commercial properties during the
year was primarily due to the joint effect of (i) increase in GFA
recognised for commercial properties of approximately 44.1%
principally attributable to the increase in sales of Hengda Weiyuan;
and (i) slight increase in recognised ASP per sq.m. from RMB9,325
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB10,054 for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The satisfactory performance for our fourth quarter of 2018
surpassed our expectation, which was primarily attributable to the
combined effects of: (1) unexpected growth of property contracted
sales and (2) early delivery of property units.
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In 2018, we noted a growth of our contracted sales from
approximately RMB2,261.7 million during the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately RMB2,658.0 million during
the year ended 31 December 2018, representing a growth of
approximately RMB396.3 million or 17.5%. In particular, aggregate
contracted sales of approximately RMB800.1 million were recorded
in the fourth quarter of 2018, out of which approximately RMB136.0
million of the contracted sales made in the fourth quarter of
2018 had been recognised as revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018. The increase of contracted sales in 2018 was
mainly due to the increase of ASP per sg.m. of saleable GFA from
approximately RMB4,978 in 2017 to approximately RMB6,578 in
2018, representing a growth of approximately 32.1%, partly offset
by the decrease in saleable GFA by approximately 13.0% from
approximately 439,068 sg.m in 2017 to approximately 381,793
sg.m. in 2018.

Part of the property units (mainly from Jinhui Plaza and Changge
Sunshine City) that originally planned to be delivered in the first
quarter of 2019 according to the original construction progress
were early delivered in the fourth quarter of 2018. During the
second half of 2018, management of the Group expected that the
local government would tighten the environment control measures,
which might affect our delivery schedule. Hence, management of
the Group closely monitored the construction progress during the
fourth quarter of 2018. Due to the ideal construction progress of our
projects and the process of obtaining the completion certificates
was faster than expected, we delivered the property units to
customers in the fourth quarter of 2018 which was earlier than the
expected schedule.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The table below sets out the revenue, gross profit and gross profit

margin by types:

anagement
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Year ended 31 December
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HE12R31BLEE
2018 2017
20185 20175
Gross Gross
Cost of Gross profit Cost of Gross profit
Revenue sales profit Margin  Revenue sales profit Margin
KA HERXK Y| ER= KA BERE 7 %
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 %  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 %
ARBTT AREFT AREFT % ANEETT ARETT AREFT %
Sales of properties MEHE
- Residential -fFE 1,247,429 940,640 306,789 246 1,108,607 9251198 183,409 16.5
- Commercial -H% 548,565 265,902 282,663 515 353,113 148,899 204,214 57.8
- Car parking spaces ~ — 2B
and storages FEZE 85,370 47,179 38,191 44.7 85,403 70,857 14,546 17.0
Subtotal et 1,881,364 1,253,721 627,643 33.4 1,647,123 1,144,954 402,169 26.0
Rental e 2,239 - 2,239 100.0 2,755 - 2,755 100.0
1,883,603 1,253,721 629,882 33.4 1,549,878 1,144,954 404,924 26.1

The overall gross profit margin and gross profit margin of sales of
residential properties increased from approximately 26.1% in 2017
to 33.4% in 2018 and approximately 16.5% in 2017 to 24.6% in
2018, respectively. The low gross profit margin in 2017 was mainly
attributable to the sales of Changcheng Home in 2017 as members
of army stationed in Xuchang City were entitled to purchase
residential properties of Changcheng Home at a pre-agreed price

which was lower than the market price.
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The gross profit margin of commercial properties dropped from
approximately 57.8% in 2017 to 51.5% in 2018, representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 10.9%. The decrease was
resulted from the sales of Weiyuan Project which composes of low-
rise commercial buildings with the gross profit margin lower than
that of the retail shops.

Profit for the year was approximately RMB229.9 million (2017:
RMB149.4 million), representing a growth of approximately
RMB80.5 million. It was mainly due to the increase of our revenue
from approximately RMB1,549.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately RMB1,883.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018; and the improvement of our overall
gross profit margin from approximately 26.1% for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately 33.4% for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Fair value gains on investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31 December
2018 by an independent professional qualified valuers, Unicorn
Consulting and Appraisal Limited, who hold recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued.

Selling and marketing expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s selling and
marketing expenses amounted to approximately of RMB44.0 million
(2017: RMB28.6 million), representing an increase of approximately
53.8% as compared to that in 2017. In 2018, the selling and
marketing expenses were mainly for projects of Changge Sunshine
City and Mingmen Xijun.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately 47.4%
from approximately RMB75.1 million in 2017 to approximately
RMB110.7 million in 2018, the increase of administrative expenses
was mainly due to the increase of listing expenses, staff costs and
professional fees in 2018.
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Finance costs - net

Finance costs primarily consisted of (i) interest expenses on bank
and other borrowings; and (i) interest on pre-sale deposits received,
less interest expenses which were capitalised to the extent that
such costs are directly attributable to property development
projects. Our finance costs increased by approximately 61.7% from
approximately RMB27.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately RMB44.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. Such increase was mainly due to the decrease in
interest capitalised for the year ended 31 December 2018, which
was primarily attributable to the increase in proceeds from pre-
sale properties (record as “contract liabilities”) from approximately
RMB1,362.4 million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
RMB2,030.5 million as at 31 December 2018.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense mainly comprised of the PRC corporate
income tax expense and land appreciation tax arising from our
PRC subsidiaries. Income tax expenses increased by approximately
57.2% or RMB71.3 million from approximately RMB124.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017 to the approximately RMB195.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, which was in line
with increase of our profit in 2018.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital resources

As of 31 December 2018, the cash and cash equivalents amounted
to approximately RMB419.5 million (31 December 2017: RMB165.0
million), of which approximately RMB372.8 million (31 December
2017: RMB164.3 million) was denominated in Renminbi and
approximately RMB46.7 million was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

As at 31 December 2018, the restricted cash amounted to
approximately RMB125.9 million (31 December 2017: RMB55.5
million), all restricted cash was denominated in Renminbi.

nalysis

s S 73 AT

A — F

BTSN £ Z R 3E()IRIT R E A B A FI B
Ax: kil WESESHHE - KRB
BEAEOFERY  EUAEEK AT E S
MERFBEHBAAR - RO F R A
HAEZ2017F12A31 A L FERNHARE
27 4E BTN 7% EH E20184F 12
AB1BIEFEMNHNAREI4IBETT © #%
EmMHEEARTEEWEMSEHE (AR
ETARBE]) B2017F12831BHIL A
R ¥1,362.48 & L N E20185F12 431
HM#H ARE?2,030.55 8 THFE £2018
F12A31BLEFENENMEMEFHL -

FrsBimx<

FEHRAYEERETEMNBAREEN
FREIMEMSTASY R IEED - 5
MY HEE2017F12A31BLEFENYD
ARB124.6 8 BTG INAI57.2% % AR
7T13EBTEHE2018F12A31B L4 E
A ARK195.98 BT - & 8K M2018
FRBIGANARRT

RBEL - MBERRERER

H £2018F12A31H B KB+ EE
Mm#E A ANRB41955H 8t (2017F12 7
318 : AR¥165.0887T) HFHAR
37288 & 7T (20174128318 - AR
#164.3BBL) UAREFE  OARE
46.7EEITTLAEITEHE ©

M2018F12H31H  XRFIFE SO A/AR
#125.08 & T (20175F12A31H : A R
K55 5BETL) F FTAXRHIRESHUAAR
BEETE -

Annual Report 2018
ZE-N\FER

19



o

20

The Group’s total borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB1,070.5 million as of 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
RMB1,861.5 million), of which approximately RMB467.3 million
was classified as current liabilities (31 December 2017: RMB709.7
million). Approximately 57.0% out of the Group’s total borrowings
was fixed interest rates.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

As at 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 128318 » AEBEMERAE
HABARE1,070.56EE T (2017412 A31
H: AR®186158&8L) EFHAR
H467 SEETTH A EARBAE (20174
128310 : ARM700.7EETT) - A5EH
ERBEHH57.0%BETEFE

20184 K2017F12A31H » A £ H &
FR TR EE

As at 31 December 2017

2018512531 2017512 431A

Within ~ Between  Between Over Within Between Between Over
1year 1to2years 2to5years 5 years Tyear 1to2years 2tobyears 5 years
15R 122F 2255  5ENE £/ 1226 2B0E  5ENE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFE AREFL AREFZ AREFZ ABFTT ARETT ARETT AERFT

Bank borrowings BOERRETER
and entrusted loans 196,000 29,000 - - 402,000 139,000 29,000 -
Other long-term borrowings A RBER 271,340 262,960 250,210 61,000 240,810 212,668 539,092 232,000
Other current borrowing EtEsEn - - - - 66,902 - - -
467,340 291,960 250,210 61,000 709,712 351,668 568,092 232,000

Current, total and net assets

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB5,030.7 million (31 December 2017: RMB4,534.4
million) and current liabilities of approximately RMB3,584.6 million
(31 December 2017: RMB3,071.7 million), there was no material
change on net current assets value from approximately RMB1,462.7
million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB1,446.1
million as at 31 December 2018.
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As of 31 December 2018, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB5,204.5 million (31 December 2017: RMB4,689.3
million) and total liabilities of approximately RMB4,207.0 million (31

December 2017: RMB4,231.4 million), representing an increase of
net assets or total equity from approximately RMB457.8 million as
at 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB997.5 million as at 31
December 2018.

Charge on assets

The majority of the Group’s bank borrowings and entrusted loans
from third parties are secured by property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and properties held or under development
for sale of the Group.

Contingent liabilities

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties and provided guarantees to secure
obligations of these purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees
will terminate upon the earlier of (i) the issuance and transfer of the
real estate ownership certificate, or (i) the satisfaction of mortgage
loans by the purchasers of the properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default of mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage principal together with accrued interest
owed by the defaulting purchasers to the banks and the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the
related properties after the relevant legal procedures. The Group’s
guarantee period starts from the date of grant of mortgage. The
Directors consider that the likelihood of default of payments by
the purchasers is minimal and therefore the financial guarantee
measured at fair value is immaterial.
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Key financial ratios:
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EEBLL R

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
Profitability ratios ERItL =
Return on assets BEDRE 4.7% 3.3%
Return on equity R O R = 31.6% 39.2%
Net profit margin #F 2 12.2% 9.6%
As of 31 December
M12H31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
Liquidity ratio BN E
Current ratio TREh R 1.4 15
Capital adequacy ratios EAXRFZREE
Gearing ratio (note 1) ERLE (Hfat1) 107.3% 406.6%
Debt to equity ratio (note 2) EfERELLR (fa22) 65.3% 370.5%

Note 1:  Gearing ratio is our total debts, including bank borrowings and
entrusted loans, other long-term borrowings and other current
borrowings, as a percentage of total equity.

Note 2:  Debt to equity ratio is our total debts, minus cash and cash
equivalents, as a percentage of total equity.
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KEY RISK FACTORS

All of our projects are located in Henan Province, the PRC. Our
business continues to be heavily dependent on the performance of
the property markets in Xuchang City and Henan Province. These
property markets may be affected by local, regional, national and
global factors, many of which are beyond our control and could
include economic and financial conditions, speculative activities
in local markets, demand for and supply of properties, availability
of alternative investment choices for property buyers, inflation,
government policies, interest rates and availability of capital. The
selling price per sgq.m. and gross profit margins of our properties
vary by the type of properties we developed and sold, and affected
by various factors including the market demand of the properties
located, prevailing local market prices, the cost of properties
constructed and sold.

The property market in the cities in which we have operations or
plan to expand our operations has been competitive. Our existing
and potential competitors include both major national and regional
property developers with expansive operations in the cities or
markets in which we operate as well as local property developers.
We compete with them with respect to a number of factors, including
land acquisition, geographic location, management expertise,
financial resources, access to transportation infrastructure, size
of land reserves, product quality, brand recognition by customers,
customer services and support, pricing and design quality. We may
seek to further enhance our market presence in these cities amid
intense competition.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group has not
hedged its cash flow or fair value interest rate risk.
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The Group is principally engaged in the property development
business in the PRC with almost all transactions denominated
in Renminbi. In addition, the majority of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in Renminbi. Accordingly, the Group is
not exposed to significant foreign currency risk, except for the bank
deposits denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group closely monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will take actions when necessary.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not have
any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or
assets.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this results
announcement, there are no current plans to acquire any material
investment or capital assets other than in the Group’s ordinary
business of property development.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is our total debts, including bank borrowings and
entrusted loans, other long-term borrowings and other current
borrowings, as a percentage of total equity. As at 31 December
2018, the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 107.3%,
representing decrease of approximately 299.3 percentage points
as compared with approximately 406.6% as at 31 December 2017,
which was mainly due to: (i) receipt of proceeds from pre-sale and
delivery of pre-sold properties; (i) repayment of outstanding loans
gradually during the year; and (iii) the net proceeds received from
the Listing.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZR) BROA

AEBTREPEREMEFEEE - &
FHAEXZHUAREE - BI N
BEABOBERBBETAAREE
it - AEB A FEAZEBANNERR - K
B TLEHERRITHE RSN - REE B B
WEINEEHBER - AT - NEBEEEE
YIS ENERRR - RN B R REE

i e

ERBBREHESHE

REE2018F12 831 HILFE » NEBRH

BETENERNBAR  BERARNE
ENEABBRLE -
FREAREIEFTEENRRK

=t &

EEMANEAEELEHY  RAKEN
WERAEAEEZI > BRI ES B
EREAREREREE °

BRLE R

ERERASRMNEBEE (BERITER
REZFZER At REAERRE MR BN E
PO hEEBENE DL - R2018F 124
318 AEEMERLEELHAR107.3% © B
20174512 431 A #J#1406.6% T~ F& £7299.3
EBEDH  DEZHN)KIFEE KR NTE
EWEMBGHIE : (MFRELSEEHKRE
BE G R(i)E £ BT 5 s IEF
FTEK o



anagement

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

Human resource has always been the most valuable resource
of the Group. As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a total
workforce of 426 employees (31 December 2017: 406). The
remuneration policy is reviewed by the Board from time to time.
Emoluments of Directors are determined by the Remuneration
Committee after considering performance of the Group, individual
performance and comparing with market conditions. In addition to
basic remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
social insurance contribution plans or other pension schemes, and
other benefits in kind to the employees. The Group adopted five-
day week policy applying to our certain back office staff to execute
the philosophy of work-life balance.

To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competences and
talents of diversified teams. High potential staff are preferred and
developed intensively according to the promotion plan towards the
management level. In order to attract and retain suitable candidates
for business development, the Group adopted the share option
scheme as incentive since November 2018.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO after deducting underwriting E]
commissions and related expenses were approximately RMB309.8
million. The following table sets forth the status of the use of

IRAFBEESRIEFBENRe
S RABERZNAARKI00.86E
TREHIH2018F12A31HHBE XA

Al .

BRARBREMSRERE

518
ﬁ o
F 2%

proceeds from the IPO as at 31 December 2018: EMBHIEFRER
Utilised up to  Unutilised as at
31 December 31 December
Use of Proceeds 2018 2018
EZE2018%F 20185
12HA31H 12H831H
8RB AR 2 EARIE REVARIE
RMB " 000,000 RMB ™ 000,000
AR EHET AR EET
() Financing the construction costs () ABIZHKMIIRBER FEREE
for the development of our KAREE S
existing projects 145.7 71.2
(i) Financing the costs of land (i) AZEMEIER TE LU
acquisition and construction costs B AN REEMK AN RiEAR K
of our potential development BRI &EMAENT RARKD
projects and acquisition of land ERESSANE /RS G SR X
reserves by seeking and acquiring TifEEREER
land parcels in cities in which we
are currently operating and target
cities in the future 62.0 -
(i) For our working capital and other (i) A{EEEE & R EM— KR Q7]
general corporate purposes JERES 30.9 -
238.6 71.2

As at 31 December 2018, the unutilised net proceeds from the IPO

were deposited in interest-bearing bank accounts with licensed Fir

banks.
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FORWARD LOOKING

With the steady economic development in China, the government
has introduced various real estate policies, which have posed both
challenges and opportunities. The real estate tax is experiencing
gradual improvement, which is believed that it is beneficial to
creating a more rational and mature real estate market in the future
and it is also an indispensable condition for a healthy real estate
market. We also anticipate that the real estate tax will result in
corresponding challenges to the real estate industry.

In 2019, ten ministries including the National Development and
Reform Commission, the MOHURD, the Ministry of Finance and
the Ministry of Commerce and other departments jointly issued
the “Implementation Plan for Further Optimizing Supply to Push
Forward a Steady Growth in Consumption and Promote the
Formation of a Strong Market in China (2019)”,
further meeting the housing demand from the rural households
migrated to urban areas.

which calls for

Henan is a major agricultural province with a high proportion
of rural population, which shows a rigid demand for housing
purchases for the real estate market in Henan Province, while
promoting the improvement of sales of properties. At the same
time, the government has been committed to implementing
urbanization policies. In light of a great potential for urbanization
in Henan Province, the Henan Provincial Government advocates
the coordinated development of Zhengzhou City and Xuchang
City. Therefore, we must raise above future challenges and seize
the current opportunities so as to consolidate our market position
in the real estate development industry in Xuchang City (including
Weidu District, Jian’an District, Yuzhou City and Yanling County).
At present, most of our projects under construction are located in
prime locations equipped with complete ancillary facilities, which will
be vigorously conductive to our subsequent sales and have certain
support for our performance in the future.
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With the development and completion of the projects located
in the prime location in Xuchang City (including Weidu District,
Jian’an District, Yuzhou City, Yanling County and Changge City), we
intend to continue devoting resources to expand our business and
broaden our operating coverage across the province by capitalizing
on the increasing need for quality properties as a result of rapid
urbanization and our extensive experience in redevelopment of the
old urban areas.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to uphold the business
philosophy of “being a quality property enterprise by integrity
operation”, capture development opportunities, accelerate project
progress, enhance corporate value and profitability, and further
strengthen the market position and brand influence of the Group in
the real estate industry. The Group is striving for reaching its goal
courageously.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Xiaobing, aged 41, is the executive Director and Chairman
of the Company and was appointed as a Director on 22 July 2016.
He is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Li joined
the Group in October 2004 as the manager of the purchasing
department (BRI ZP4LIE) of Xuchang Hengda and has since then
served a number of managerial and directorship positions of various
members of the Group. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience
in strategic planning, operational management and corporate
administration of property development business in the PRC. He
is also a director of Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited, which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

In December 2006, Mr. Li obtained an Executive Master of Business
Administration from Huazhong University of Science and Technology
EFRRECRE) in Wuhan. In June 2017, he became one of the
awardees of the title of “Innovative Xuchang Top-10 Economic
Figures of Influence” (BIZ & &+ A& ERZE A YD) jointly conferred
by the Henan Economic Newspaper Office (i B4 #R+t) and
Zhongyuan Economic Net (FR£EEA), in recognition of his
entrepreneurial contributions to the innovative development of the
Central Plain area (Ff /2 #h[&) of the PRC. In May 2018, he obtained
a certificate of 2017 Entrepreneurial Excellence Awards (2017 &
EBHEPERFEZE), which was granted by The People’s Government
of Xuchang City (#F &5 A REUT).
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Mr. WANG Zhenfeng, aged 50, is the executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company and was appointed as
a Director on 19 May 2017. He is also a member of the Legal
Compliance Committee. Mr. Z.F. Wang joined the Group in May
2002 and has been the general manager (#4£I2) of Xuchang
Hengda since November 2006, the director of Xuchang Hengda
since October 2007, the director of Henan Dadi since August
2012 and chief executive officer (#%() of Xuchang Hengda since
February 2013. Mr. Z.F. Wang has over 10 years of experiences in
strategic planning, operational and financial management as well
as corporate administration of property development businesses
in the PRC.

Mr. Z.F. Wang obtained an undergraduate degree in industrial
economics (T E#4) from Henan University of Finance and
Economics* ()7 Fa 1 £ BUE K E2) (the predecessor of Henan Institute
of Finance* (AR EIAZELT) in June 1992. He then attained the
qualification of accountant in the speciality of enterprise accounting
(> #2351 as conferred by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC* (F2 2
AR FEAE FEER) in May 1996, and also obtained the qualification
lawyer certificate (f2EIEKFEE) from the Review Committee of
Lawyer Qualification under the Ministry of Justice of the PRC*
(PEARZEMBE A ZMEBBEZESF) in July 2001, He has
become a non-practising member GEEIX¥ & 8) of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (F Bl s & 5+Al17 &) since
June 2012.

Ms. QI Chunfeng, aged 46, is the executive Director and deputy
chief executive officer of the Company and was appointed as
a Director on 19 May 2017. In November 1993, Ms. Qi joined
the finance department (B4 75%6) of Xuchang Weidu Guesthouse
Company Limited* (which was a subsidiary of Henan Dadi prior to
disposal of the entire equity interests therein to Hengda Investment
in September 2016) and has been a director as well as deputy chief
executive officer (8|#8%L) of Xuchang Hengda since January 2002
and March 2010 respectively. Ms. Qi has extensive experiences in
financial supervision, operational management as well as corporate
administration of property development businesses in the PRC.

*

English name for identification purpose only
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Ms. Qi completed her tertiary studies in the speciality of computing
accountancy (&5t & &1t) at Xuchang Vocational Technical College
(FFEBERMERT) in January 2007.

Mr. WANG Quan, aged 45, is the executive Director and deputy
chief executive officer of the Company and was appointed as a
Director on 19 May 2017. Mr. Q. Wang joined Xuchang Hengda in
March 2002 and has since been a deputy chief executive officer (g
#E) of Xuchang Hengda since April 2005, as well as a director and
general manager (#4¢32) of Henan Dadi since August 2012 and
February 2016 respectively. Mr. Q. Wang has extensive experiences
in operational management and corporate administration.

Mr. Q. Wang completed his tertiary studies in the speciality
of production mechanics craftsmanship and equipments (##
Bl TE N L) at the Technical College of Northern China*
(FE4L TEBR) in July 1996. He then attained in May 2001 the
professional and technical qualification of assistant engineer
(BHI2 Ti2RM) in the speciality of mechanics (##) as evaluated
by the Elementary Professional and Technical Role Assessment
Committee of State-owned 9676 Factory (Engineering Series)*
(BEARNEAB IR VP EER MRS FTELZE) and conferred
by the Commission of Science, Technology and Industry for
National Defence of Henan Province* (A& B RISRMT T ¥ E 8
). Moreover, Mr. Q. Wang also obtained the intermediate level of
economics (4&7) in the speciality of business administration (T &
#8) as conferred by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC* (R A K
HAE A Z=EF) in November 2001, as well as the intermediate level
of finance (£ &) and the intermediate level of fiscal taxation (817
i U) as conferred by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security of the PRC* (R EI A N &R ZIRIFESE) respectively in
May 2015 and April 2016. Furthermore, Mr. Q. Wang undertook a
number of qualification examinations for securities practitioners (
BAEILE A BEREH) and was granted passing certificates (5% 4
AH15#) by the Securities Association of China (Fh Bl B4 ¥ ).

*

English name for identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEE Kwok Lun, aged 35, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 22 October 2018. He is
also the chairman of the Audit Committee, and a member of each of
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Legal Compliance Committee. Mr. Lee is currently an independent
non-executive director of Dragon Rise Group Holdings Limited and
Wing Chi Holdings Limited, a director of Prism CPA Limited (f5)%
S:HEI E 5 FTA R 2 7)) and the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Tianyi (Summi) Holdings Limited. Mr. Lee has over 10
years of experience in accounting, audit, corporate finance and
financial management.

Mr. Lee obtained a degree of Bachelor of Arts from the University
of Hertfordshire in 2006. He is a practising member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administration
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

Mr. WEI Jian, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 22 October 2018. He
is also a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Wei is currently the vice-president of the treasury
department (EE#3f&I4%) and an executive officer (E& A 8) of
China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong branch
(FEIRERITIRMDBRAAEEDTT) on regulated activities of
dealing in securities and advising on securities covered respectively
under type 1 and type 4 licence granted by the SFC. He had also
served as a banking officer and a foreign exchange and money
market trader of treasury department of the Bank of China Sydney
Branch, a foreign exchange hedge trader and the risk manager of
CMC Markets Asia Pacific Pty Ltd and the senior risk manager as
well as associate director of City Index Australia Pty Ltd. Mr. Wei
has over 10 years of experience in asset management, business
development, financial market operations, corporate advisory and
securities dealing.
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Mr. Wei obtained from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology
an Advanced Diploma of Business (Marketing) in October 1999
and a degree of Bachelor of Business (Economics and Finance)
in December 2000, and subsequently the Postgraduate Diploma
in Finance and the Master of Financial Management from The
University of Melbourne in August 2002 and in December 2002
respectively.

Mr. FANG Cheng, aged 46, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 22 October 2018.
He is also the chairman of each of the Remuneration Committee
and the Legal Compliance Committee, and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Fang is
currently the responsible officer of Ever Capital Corporate Finance
Limited (RELEREBRAF]) on regulated activity of advising
on corporate finance covered under type 6 licence granted by the
SFC. He had served for a number of financial institutions such as
South China Capital Limited (FZE g1 & AR A Al), Lombard Capital
Limited (A& & @aL & AR A 7)), Masterlink Securities (Hong Kong)
Corporation Limited (T & #& % (&%) MR 2 &]), CNCB (Hong Kong)
Capital Limited ({53 (&%) EAZABMR A7), Freeman Corporate
Finance Limited (R R @& AR A A]), Hong Kong International
Capital Management Limited (B8 Bl & AR E 1R A R A7), Huarong
International Capital Limited (ZE &SR & B R 2 7)) and Huarong
International Securities Limited EERLEIBE 5B R A R]). Mr. Fang
has over 12 years of experience in investment banking and
corporate financing activities.

Mr. Fang obtained a bachelor’s degree in transportation engineering
and management (B TZEEIEE) from Feng Chia University
(EFKRE) in Taiwan in June 1992 and subsequently a degree
of Master of Business Administration from the Cleveland State
University in the United States in September 1995.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Shixun, aged 47, has been the managing deputy chief
executive officer of our Company since 25 May 2017. He is
primarily responsible for the overall administrative and operational
management of our Group. He possesses over ten years of
experience in the administration and enterprise planning of property
development businesses.

Mr. S.X. Li completed, on part-time basis, his tertiary studies in the
speciality of fine arts at Henan Radio & Television University* (Ji] &
EREEAEKE) in July 2005.

Mr. S.X. Li joined our Group in November 1999 as the external
business manager of the operations department (484 Z8%f4NEE
T%54838) of Xuchang Hengda, and from March 2000 to February
2001 he served as the deputy manager of the enterprise planning
department (1328 2130848 32) of Xuchang Hengda before being
promoted to become the manager of the said department in
February 2001. After serving the enterprise planning department
for more than four years, he was appointed in August 2004 as the
manager of the human resources department (A 71 &R EBLIE)
of Xuchang Hengda. In April 2005, he joined the Jian’an District
branch office (2% [&% A 7)) of Xuchang Hengda as the deputy
general manager (BI#24%32), and was subsequently appointed
in November 2006 to serve as the sales director (& fH42E5) of
Xuchang Hengda for more than three years. From November 2009
to February 2010 and from March 2010 to December 2010, he
also served as the deputy general manager (%75 8|443E) and
the deputy chief executive officer (BI#%) of Xuchang Hengda,
respectively. Mr. S.X. Li has been the managing deputy chief
executive officer (B BI42%) of Xuchang Hengda since January
2011 as well as the executive director and manager (F11T%E 5 M &
%) of Yuzhou Hengda since August 2016.
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Mr. LEUNG Kam Fai Anthony, aged 34, has been the chief
financial officer and company secretary of our Company since
December 2016. He is primarily responsible for accounting, financial
as well as company secretarial matters of our Group. He possesses
over ten years of experience in handling transactional, annual
auditing and review engagements for public companies.

Mr. Leung obtained a degree of Bachelor of Commerce in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Baptist University in November
2008. Mr. Leung has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since March 2013 and he has become
a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 2018.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting herewith their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Review of the business of the Group during the year under review,
a discussion on the Group’s future business development and
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages
5 to 6 and the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 28 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2018 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 28 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings. The
principal activities of the Group are property development and
property investment in the PRC.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to uphold high standard of integrity in all
aspects of business and is committed to ensuring that its affairs
are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulatory
requirements and has formulated and adopted various internal
control measures, approval procedures and training within all
business units at all levels of the Group. During the year, there has
been no violation or breach of relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on the Group.
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RESULTS AND RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements of the Group on pages 112 to 263.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK5.9
cents per ordinary share (equivalent to approximately RMB5.0
cents) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s and the Company’s
reserves during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and notes 13 to 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity owners of the Company was
approximately RMB65,316,000. After the end of the reporting
period, the Directors proposed a final dividend of HK5.9 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB5.0 cents) per ordinary share,
amounting to HK$70,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB60,000,000) (note 30 to the consolidated financial statements).
This final dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the
Group are shown on pages 266 to 270 of this annual report.

As set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 October
2018, the property interests held for sale and property interests
held for future development as at 31 July 2018 were valued
at approximately RMB432.4 million and RMB1,175.0 million,
respectively. The property interests held under development and
property interests held for use as at 31 July 2018 were valued at
approximate RMB6,427.0 million and RMB15.7 million, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to our shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
shares.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 264 to
265 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiaobing (Chairman)

Mr. WANG Zhenfeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. QI Chunfeng

Mr. WANG Quan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WEI Jian (appointed on 22 October 2018)
Mr. FANG Cheng (appointed on 22 October 2018)
Mr. LEE Kwok Lun (appointed on 22 October 2018)

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. LI
Xiaobing, Ms. QI Chunfeng and Mr. WANG Quan will retire from the
Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 29 to 35 °

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years; and is
subject to termination by either party in the manner as set out in
the service agreement.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years;
and is subject to termination by either party in the manner as set
out in the letter of appointment.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this Directors’ report and in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors, the entity
connected with the Directors, controlling shareholders and any
subsidiaries of the controlling shareholders of the Company had a
material beneficial interest, either direct or indirect, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZR) BROA

EENREREBAEBZEE

BEENEREEABZERFBHNE29
£35H °

ESRBEEN

BERTEFERARALRBEL - &
HA=F RRBEHANEHEF T
[7— A RERBGE OERELEERBEAE
#) o

EBUFNTESCEHARAILERE
B EBMA=F  REFERHAZHES —
FRAIMS —ARBEERERRIEEERE

ESNENES

BRAEZGHREAN [KERERS ] —f R
e BSR4 BB E S - BEK
NAER HEFZAMENER  ERK
R N ¥ B R B AE AR B B A R AN A A 3K
H A8 2 B F P AT 23 SR ER (8]
EBEBZEMNEZAOT  BERIAEER
HEEBAMES -



REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management is
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and
performance and the Group'’s results.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, being the end of the reporting period
under review, the interests or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and/or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the
“SFQ”)) that Directors and chief executive of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, are as follows:

Interest in shares of the Company

RAD BB e
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Notes:

1.

The letter “L” denotes to the person with long position in the shares.

These shares were legally and beneficially held by Ever Enhancement
Enterprise Company Limited as at 31 December 2018. Ever
Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited is a corporate controlling
shareholder which is legally and beneficially wholly-owned by Ever
Commitment (PTC) Limited. Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited is the
trustee of the family trust, established by Mr. LI Xiaobing as the sole
settlor for the benefit of a list of discretionary beneficiaries including
Mr. LI Xiaobing himself and any persons or classes of person (save
for Mr. LI Xiaobing’s father and mother) to be appointed by and at the
sole discretion of Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited (as trustee) from
time to time. Given that Mr. LI Xiaobing is the sole settlor of the family
trust, he is therefore deemed to be interested in any shares in which
Ever Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited is interested by virtue
of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2018, these shares were legally and beneficially
held by Ever Enrichment Enterprise Company Limited of which the
entire issued share capital was, in turn, legally and beneficially held by
Mr. LI Xiaobing. Mr. LI Xiaobing is therefore deemed to be interested in
any shares in which Ever Enrichment Enterprise Limited is interested
by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company and/or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO,

or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, shareholders (other than Directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO were as follows:
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class of percentage of

Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of interest securities Note 1) shareholding
HENEAE

RERER B RntE & R e REBHNBE D

Ever Enhancement Enterprise Beneficial owner 855,000,000 71.25%
Company Limited ordinary shares (L)
BAREBRAR EnlEAA 855,000,0000%
R (L)

Ever Commitment Interest of a controlled corporation 855,000,000 71.25%
(PTC) Limited Mete2 ordinary shares (L)
BREMAGEEERAT HiEE s 855,000,0000%
T BARAR A (L)

Ms. LIN Wei (Nete 3 Interest of spouse 900,000,000 75.00%
ordinary shares (L)
Mg A+ [ EL 900,000,000
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Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes to the person/entity with long position in the
shares.

2. As of 31 December 2018, Ever Enhancement Enterprise Company
Limited was one of the controlling shareholders and was wholly-owned
by Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited. Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited
is deemed to be interested in any shares in which Ever Enhancement
Enterprise Company Limited is interested pursuant to the SFO.
Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited is the trustee of the family trust
established by Mr. LI Xiaobing as the sole settlor for the benefit of
a list of discretionary beneficiaries including Mr. LI Xiaobing himself
and any other person or classes of person (save for Mr. LI Xiaobing’s
father and mother) to be appointed by and at the sole discretion of
Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited (as trustee) from time to time.

3. Ms. LIN Wei is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiaobing. Given that Mr. LI Xiaobing
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Ever Enhancement
Enterprise Company Limited and Ever Enrichment Enterprise Company
Limited by virtue of the SFO, she will likewise be deemed to be
interested in any shares held by both Ever Enhancement Enterprise
Company Limited and Ever Enrichment Enterprise Company Limited
by virtue of the SFO.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group remunerates and provides benefits for its employees
based on current industry practice. Discretionary bonuses are
awarded to staff based on the performance of the Group and
performance of individual staff. In addition, share options may be
granted to eligible employees in accordance with the terms of the
Company’s share option scheme.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and a
mandatory provident fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.

The PRC operating entities participate in retirement schemes
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities, whereby the PRC operating entities are required to
make contribution at defined rates required by different local
government authorities. The local government authorities are
responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees covered under the retirement schemes.
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The Group also operates a mandatory provident fund scheme under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The mandatory provident fund scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the
mandatory provident fund scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HKD30,000.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 22 October 2018, which shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from 12 November 2018,
subject to early termination by the Company in a general meeting
or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives to Eligible Person (as defined below) and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the
Eligible Person have had or may have made to the Group. Under
the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant an option
to any employees, executives or officers (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors) of the
Group and any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, agents
to the Group and related entities who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the “Eligible
Person”).

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The maximum number of
shares available for issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or other share option scheme
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue immediately following completion of the IPO (but
taking no account of any shares which may be allotted or issued
pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option (as defined
in the prospectus)), being 120,000,000 shares. The total number
of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to each
Eligible Person in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
number of shares in issue as at the date of grant unless approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by
the Board provided that it shall not be less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of offer, which must be a business
day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.

To accept the option, the grantee shall pay HK$0.01 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant within 30 days from
the date of grant. An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date
upon which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during
which an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted. The Board may in
its absolute discretion determine a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme during the period from 12 November 2018 to 31 December
2018. No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 120,000,000
shares representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as elsewhere disclosed in this annual report, no rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company were granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors,
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate for the year ended
31 December 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the financial year is as follows:
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions” on pages 48 to 50 of this annual report, at no
time during the year have the Directors, their close associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of issued share capital of the
Company) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2018. Details of
the transactions are set out below:

Property management services

On 10 October 2018, Hengda Property Management and our Group
entered into a master property management service agreement
(“Master Property Management Service Agreement”) for a term
commencing from the 12 November 2018 and ending on 31
December 2020, pursuant to which Hengda Property Management
shall continue to provide, among other aspects, security and
cleaning services for (i) sales centres of property development
projects (of which the demand varies depending on the status of
completion/sale of such projects over time) as well as (i) self-used
premises (of which the demand remains more or less constant) of
our Group. The service fees payable by us to Hengda Property
Management were mutually agreed following the arm’s-length
negotiations between the relevant parties with reference to the
prevailing market price of the similar services of a comparable scale
in the PRC. Payment for a particular calendar month has been
made to Hengda Property Management by way of bank transfer
on 15th day of the same month.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees charged by Hengda
Property Management for the provision of the services under the
Master Property Management Service Agreement amounted to
approximately RMB4,560,000, which was within the annual cap of
RMB5,436,000 for the same period.
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Contracting services in relation to structural, grading
and pile-footing, decorating installation and/or auxiliary
engineering works

On 10 October 2018, Xuchang Erjian and the Group entered into
several master contracting service agreements (“Master Contracting
Service Agreements”) for a non-renewable term commencing from
12 November 2018 and ended on 31 December 2018. Pursuant
to the said agreement, Xuchang Erjian shall continue to provide the
Group with contracting services covering, among other aspects, (i)
core structural engineering, (i) grading and pile-footing engineering,
(iii) decorating installation engineering and (iv) auxiliary engineering
works in fulfillment of its obligations under the Master Contractings
Service Agreements from 12 November 2018 until the expiration
thereof. The service fees payable by the Group to Xuchang Erjian
were mutually agreed following the arm’s-length negotiations
between the parties with reference to the prevailing market price
for similar services of a comparable scale in the locality. Payment
has been, and will continue after 2018 to be, made in staged fees
on the basis of the progress and schedule of projects as well as the
percentage of completion of relevant engineering works.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees charged by
Xuchang Erjian for the provision of the services under several
Master Contracting Service Agreements amounted to approximately
RMB41,348,000, which was within the annual cap of approximately
RMB41,851,000 for the same period.
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Transaction

Master Contracting Service value Annual Caps
Agreements R R & REeHE EELR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AR¥ETTT
Erjian-Xuchang Master Contracting
Service Agreement ZETEREBRBHE 10,143 10,302
Erjian-Yuzhou Master Contracting
Service Agreement TESMNBFRBRGIHE 14,609 14,953
Erjian-Changge Master Contracting
Service Agreement ZERRBEABIRG E 16,596 16,596
41,348 41,851
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company and they confirmed that the aforesaid transactions were
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group, (i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties, and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditor of the Company has
provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has come
to their attention which causes them to believe the continuing
connected transactions abovementioned:

()  have not been approved by the Board;

(i) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(i) have exceeded their respective annual caps.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group
in the normal course of business were set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. For the period from the
date of listing of the Company to 31 December 2018, save for
those transactions set out in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, none of these related party
transactions constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the relevant disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as of 31 December 2018 are set out in notes 16 to 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
of the Company is currently in force.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had any interest in the businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group that were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Li Xiaobing, Ever Commitment (PTC) Limited, Ever
Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited and Ever Enrichment
Enterprise Company Limited (each a “Non-Compete Covenantor”)
has entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-competition”) dated 22 October 2018 in favour of the
Company, pursuant to which they have undertaken with the
Company that they shall not, and shall procure that their respective
associates shall not, directly or indirectly, be interested, involved or
engaged in or acquire or hold any right or interest in any business
which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
the core business of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the
Non-Compete Covenantors in respect of their compliance with
the Deed of Non-Competition and the connected transaction
agreements during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the
Non-Compete Covenantors’ compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition. The independent non-executive Directors
confirmed that the Non-Compete Covenantors were not in breach of
the Deed of Non-Competition during the year ended 31 December
2018.

RITEEREMER

AEBRE1F2018F12 A31H IFFEHIR
TEEREMERFBIHREAEVHRE
Msr16E18 °

EEHE

B A R 26 2 MR 2 0 T T 0
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EERNBRFERK 2 ER
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FRERBEERARASEX B EE XM
BRI BB BT 2 R 2 o

THEEE

kLA - BEAGBEERAR - EF
TEERAFREBEHCEERAR (F8A
[TaxEEmEAl ) BER2018F 108228
IARRMFIEMEBTIRERZE ( [T
FRE|) Bl BEERAARQEEE
FETTHABREFRSSENBEATEE
B EEEE  2HEINEHAEETRR
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B FRERER - BATEEEPNE
fr]#EFI| ki 25 o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

A report on the environmental, social and governance is set out on
pages 55 to 78 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 79 to 96 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public from
the date of listing up to the date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no material events were
undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December 2018.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donation of
approximately RMB5,002,000.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 12 November 2018 by way of global offering
of 30,000,000 shares under the Hong Kong public offering and
270,000,000 shares under the international placing at the offer
price of HK$1.24 per share.

The net proceeds from the IPO after deducting underwriting
commissions and related expenses were approximately RMB309.8
million. The following table sets forth the status of the use of
proceeds from the IPO as at 31 December 2018:

FSRERE

Use of Proceeds

31 December 2018

eport
gSHRE

BERARBREMSREARE

AAFR2018F 11 F12B A HRBE R
BRINTEBE R FTEIR £ - P EB AR
£ 15 730,000,0000% f% 15 + BEIPRBECEE T
270,000,000 %17 + HEEAEETIR1.248
5T o

BRARBEEMSHEFELCHNRBHEMA
e REAEREBEHNARKI09.8EBET - T
REFIREZE2018F12A31AIEFE &
RARBEMBRENFERIBR

Unutilised as at

31 December 2018
MA2018%F12H31H
REVAFIR
RMB’000,000
ARWEET

Utilised up to

F20185F12A31H
EBAMKE
RMB’000,000
ANEREEET

(i) Financing the construction ARZEIREIEE MBEORER K
costs for the development of EH&E 4
existing projects

(i) Financing the costs of land E7EFI35IE B AT & b U B8 Ak X
acquisition and construction SR A DA N BB F M B Al
costs of our potential ZBFTAEMT RANKD B EHH
development projects and ¥ [ Wi i 38 & 15 £ 3 7 5 12
acquisition of land reserves & &
by seeking and acquiring
land parcels in cities in
which we are currently
operating and target cities in
the future

il

(i) Working capital and other ZE&4$ REM—RAFTNAE

general corporate purposes

145.7 71.2

62.0 -

30.9 -

238.6 71.2

As at 31 December 2018, the unutilised net proceeds from the IPO
were deposited in interest-bearing bank accounts with licensed
banks.

R2018%F12831H » ABH 2B X AR
EMEHRBEFBEEAFERBEITHER
TERP o
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE BIMRER

The Company has received from each of the independent KAREEESBIYIERITEERELD
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence JRAESASKHEB I EMEL 2 FEE
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the REK - WRBFBBYNTESHEES
independent non-executive Directors to be independent. SIATE e

AUDITOR =B AD

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 AEBH E2018F12A31H EFE 247
December 2018 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, EUBRREHE R KESTMEBH
who will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. ([EERKE] Tt MBERBKERS
A resolution for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as BE - ERFAERTHEEREET - A4
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual AIRREERRESRg LIRERAERMNU

general meeting of the Company. IR 7R BRI OKB RN A RIIZELAD o
By order of the Board FEEEW
LI Xiaobing FERBTEF
Chairman and Executive Director 2Nk
28 March 2019 —E-h&F=A=+NH
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PURPOSE AND CRITERIA OF THE REPORT

To comply with the requirements set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules, the Group hereby presents its Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (the “Report”) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The purpose of the Report is to identify and disclose the major
issues of the Group in relation to the environment, society and
governance as well as its key performance indicators while
illustrating its pursuit of sustainable development and practice of
its social responsibility in every aspect.

SCOPE AND PERIOD OF THE REPORT

The Report discloses the major issues and key performance
indicators of the main key projects in the operations and real estate
development business of Ever Reach and its selected subsidiaries
in respect of environmental management, social responsibility and
governance during the year of 2018.

Looking forward, Ever Reach believes that sustainable development
will continue to play an important part in business operation. In
the future, the Group will continue to improve its data collection
and reporting system on environmental management, social
responsibility and governance performance, and gradually enhance
the quality and comprehensiveness of the Report in the long run.

DATA COLLECTION METHODOLOGY

The data used in the Report comes from the relevant functional
departments of Ever Reach and its selected subsidiaries.

REEBNREE

AEEELER EMARAKE-+ECR
B HegkEaWmEEs)  2HAKER
ECE-N\FTA=+—BUINHFER
BoudekEams (MTRI&RED -

BESEINRBEEREARERE e
RERNEREFEAREREMIES - B
MAEE2EERAFEZRES LS
BfE-

HREHERYE

AHEREBEERIEENMNBEARE
—E-N\FER SELEMFHERE
EBTMEIERLORBEREEE - H®
BEERERTHNERNEEMEARERE

= ©

REARR  BEEZRBEAHERRSHE
BEXBTNERERAC - BRAKESE
FREXTSEHREERE HeiAREAR
KEMBBERERERRER  BFRER
FHENZEREEE -

HEWERE

AR E P PTE A BUR S R B 1B R R
TE BOPH 8 A RIARRERUAE RRFT -

Annual Report 2018
ZE-N\FER

95



ocial
AR

CONCERNS OF THE STAKEHOLDERS HEEANREE

The Group attaches great importance to its social responsibility SEERTSETRAUBFEREY  BHS
and sustainability and tries its best to understand the concerns EESAFMEINZEE  BREREERT
of its stakeholders and meet their expectations and requirements BEHBREEMEES ANIBEMENR - L
through operations and various communication channels, so as to BERHARAESRER  /REREMZKNE
grow strong together with them and contribute the greatest value (ER

to the community.

Stakeholders Concerns Response of the Group

A BIENEE SEMEE

Government Operation in Ever Reach adheres to the business philosophy of honesty
compliance and integrity. It has actively fulfilled the obligations of corporate
Economic growth citizens, and promoted the harmonious development of society,
Community so as to become a model for corporate citizenship.

construction

We maintain strict compliance with the laws and regulations,
paying taxes honestly, fighting corruption, money laundering and
bribery; we give full play to our strengths in resource integration
while “enacting measures according to local conditions and
applying them on well-chosen targets”; we will further optimize
our real estate development business and strive to establish a
strategic presence in the development of high-end homes and
smart communities.

B BREE BETERETHETENREES - MEBEITERARMNER - #
RERR PHENMFEER  BMEEXAROMAE -
AR

BARBIEERER - O - RIBM - ROAE - 1T - BHEE
RERES  [RFE  BEER] £ SE(CEBERER
% UBNEBRSHRELSBHLRABENBEILRS -
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Stakeholders Concerns Response of the Group

A BIENEE SBEHEE

Customers Product quality & Ever Reach insists on thinking from the perspective of
safety customers, creating value for customers, and taking a customer-

Experience &
customer services
Privacy &
confidentiality

5P EnEERTEREE
ik E PR
BRALIRE

oriented approach. Using this as a source, we have developed a
full-lifecycle product line to create the ideal housings for different
groups of people, and meet the needs of our customers now
and in future through continuous innovation.

We strive to build high-quality houses and smart living
environment in accordance with the strict quality standards
for housing and building materials. We have set up multiple
customer communication and feedback channels to listen to their
opinions and handle inquiries or complaints. We have in place
multiple protection measures for the privacy of customer data,
with those who have direct access to the customer information
required to sign a Customer Data Confidentiality Agreement.

BEZRBFUEXPARRE  REFPEIEEE  —VYINEFPA
e RIERR - RE2EGERERR - STRABELITERE
AR WEEKERFRE TP REMRKNFR -

EREENEEMEZEEMHEERERE  BEREERERER
EEERE - RUZERFBBLEERE  RREREFPEANEE
AMSIREG - HEFEBRLEZEHENRE  BEREBELER
EFEEMABRR (EFBEBEREHH)

Annual Report 2018
ZE-N\FER

57



ocial
AR

Stakeholders Concerns Response of the Group

A BIENEE SEHEE

Investors Investment returns Ever Reach is accountable to all investors and strives to provide
Corporate information them with reasonable, sustained and stable returns on their
transparency investments.

Interests protection

We are making great efforts to capture the market trends
while constantly enhancing our management capabilities, our
brand influence and value. We maintain close and transparent
communication with our investors and the market through
investor meetings, shareholders’ meetings and release of annual
reports and interim reports. We have in place a rigorous risk
management and internal control system in cooperation with
the internal audit function, so that the management and audit
committee can focus on the adequacy and effectiveness of our
risk management and internal control system.

REE &ﬁ@ﬁ BERREMAEREEAR  BHEREERGAEN - HEMNM
RANEEBERE RER M ©
Rz iRfE

BELEMSBY - TERAEEESD  BRICREFENNEER -
BEREESR  BRAE  FHRLTHREOEM  BREER
MISRFETERANEE - REBTNRREERABEZERS
FLamEbEZBEE  ERELRBRZREGHRBINARREERA
MEERGN RO ERBERIE -

Employees Health & safety Ever Reach believes that its employees are the most valuable
Career development assets. We fully respect the rights and interests of our
Training opportunities employees, and provide them with a platform to exert their
talents and achieve their career development, such that our
employees can grow together and share the operating results
with the Company.

We strive to create a competitive work environment, a sound
performance appraisal system and a remuneration and welfare
system while constantly improving our training and development
system, so as to help our employees blend into the long-term
development of the Group, spark off their potentials and enhance
their satisfaction and sense of belonging.

8T RERRZE BERREFEIRCEZEENYE -AHNBEE IR /RE
BEERE Ihf#&ﬁm@ﬂ“%fﬂffﬁ?@’ﬁm”g  BTEMEHFERMA - &
=il 3 FHETHESEXR -
EEABRFNNIERE  TENEREZEFMENER  FE&
TEFRINIERBR  SIGEITEBRANNCEREZER 2D - H#
BT B RABIMMEEMNBER -
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Response of the Group

SEEE E

Suppliers

HiEm

Community

i

Transparency in
procurement process
Development
opportunities
Commercial integrity
KERRERE
HRES

HESAE]

Job opportunities
Environment-
friendliness & energy
saving

Public welfare

IEEE
RIRERE

NGEES

We have in place a well-maintained supplier management
system, which enables a clear division of the supervisory
functions and combines supplier assessment and approval,
supplier selection and performance evaluation to oversee the
supply chain management in all aspects.
BEETSHNHEREREGE BREERENHAES T #HERD
AP RES HEREERREAE AT mEEMHERET
3 e

We are committed to the long-term and ambitious development
of our business and creating more job opportunities for the
community. We will try our best to gradually reduce emission
and consumption of energy, reduce greenhouse gas emission
and improve energy efficiency while vigorously practicing our
corporate social responsibility and promoting the development of
philanthropy in the regions where we operate.
REBBRIMBERER  AEEZUERS - EXBERRBORE - A&
DRERBHRIRAEREANG - BHEBEGELGEE  #
PEEEBHRNEEETEER -
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IMPORTANCE OF THE TOPICS

The Group has conducted an assessment of the importance of
the topics in this environmental, social and governance report.
The factors for consideration include the strategic objectives and
policies of the businesses of the Group, industry standards, legal
and regulatory responsibilities, environmental protection, resource
utilisation, quality control and employee protection, etc. with the
aim of helping the Group identify important issues. Through such
an assessment and analysis, the Group has identified various major
issues and has described the Group’s response to such important
issues in a more complete and accurate way in this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
DISCLOSURE

A.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group has been committed to ensuring strict compliance
of its business activities with national and local laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of People’s Republic of China” and the “Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes”. It also
imposes stringent requirements on the management measures
for environmental protection and discusses the reduction
goals with its contractors and requires them to strictly follow
the environmental protection principles. The Group has also
formulated a series of environment protection measures to
reduce emissions and energy consumption, prevent dust and
reduce noise, so as to integrate environmental management
into its daily operation and strive to minimise the impact of its
operations on the environment.

A1 EMISSIONS

Emission reduction is an important issue in the Group’s
environmental protection program, for which it is making
constant efforts to reduce emission in its daily operations
and enhance its energy efficiency. In our daily operations,
we used environment-friendly devices such as OA office
automation system and water-saving products. The Group
also installed architectural structures that can lower
energy consumption. The Group also convened video
conferences frequently instead of the business trips
by plane. All those measures are effective in reducing
emissions of greenhouse gases and other air pollutants.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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During the year, the Group included in its assessment the
emissions of greenhouse gas and other air pollutants by
its core projects of the real estate business and collected
data by region and development project. The Group’s
emissions of greenhouse gas and other air pollutants for

SESAFEANBHEEK TR
ZOBEEHBEREREMZESR
BARMPEBAARHE - SR
KRBERERETEERSE - £H
AERBERENEMERIGTR

the year are set forth as follows: WHEMEEBIENT

Type of wastes Unit Emission
EERI SRR B E2 3581
Type 1: direct emission of greenhouse gases Tonne 2,300.52
#HiE1 - BERAETREYM A

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) from vehicles Tonne 2,099.66
K EEWHRATI(NOX) A

Total consumption of other gaseous fuels Tonne 200.86
HAibmEBMED T ML Re s A

Direct emission of greenhouse gases (per employee) Tonne 5.40
BEEARERBEM (BLZET) A

Type 2: indirect emission of greenhouse gases Tonne 38.45
#HhE2 - FEREREN 7]

Energy intensity (per employee) Tonne 0.09
peREE (881) 7]

Type 3: indirect emission of other greenhouse gases Kilometer 3.10
53 - HMEEOREREBHEN FK

In respect of the construction works, the Group adopted
a variety of environment protection measures, for
example, in the stage of planning and construction
in real estate development, the Group tries to reduce
land excavation and mountain damage through careful
planning and design, so as to reduce waste at source. In
addition, the Group transported the wastes to a specific
centralized disposal site for processing. The total amount
of construction waste which was recycled and processed
during the year is recorded as follows:

SEAERIDEFA T SERR
FEHE - Bl A TE 5 3 E B 35 B0 AR B
MZREET  SEBEMREIR
FTLABRUR A £ 75 R A0 1L B8 B
B JEIRBRRRE b - REK
BEYINEIRENETRER
BRI - AEEANBAIINER IR
BRAEREYREESNEIEN
™~

Disposal of wastes Weight
BHESE -
Total amounts of non-hazardous wastes Paper consumption (kg) 1,434.51

FERERRE

The Group did not produce any hazardous waste.

REERE (TR)

AEBUBELTNAETEERE
%0
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A2 USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has formulated the “Administrative Measures
for Energy Conservation and Consumption Reduction” to
encourage its employees to reduce unnecessary paper
consumption. As required, the use of office paper is put
under strict control, the both sides of paper are used for
printing, and the non-confidential wastepaper is reused.
In terms of business engagements, the Company mostly
uses telephone communication to reduce the demand
for using vehicles, upholds the mindset of “saving being
a glory, waste being a shame”, and actively implements
the energy conservation strategy of the Group.

In addition, the Group attaches great importance to
cultivating employees’ awareness of energy conservation
and calls on its employees in various departments to
jointly resist the waste of energy. The Group requires each
employee to switch off computers, lights and other office
equipment at the end of each working day. When the
natural temperature is appropriate, the air conditioners or
fans should not be used. When the outdoor temperature
in summer is higher than 30T, the air conditioners can
be turned on. The air conditioners should be set at
above 26T and adjusted to low wind, and the indoor
temperature should be maintained at 25 to 26T. In
winter, when the outdoor temperature is lower than 8T,
the air conditioners can be turned on and set at about
20T. The room temperature should be maintained at
18 to 20C. When the air conditioners are not in use,
they should not be left in the standby state, and security
guards should be sent to take a patrol after the close
of business every day to check and confirm that all the
lights and other unnecessary power-consuming devices
on each floor had been switched off.
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During the year, the Group included various types of
energy consumption by its core projects of the real
estate business into the assessment and collected data

ental, Socia

SESAFEANBHEEK TR
20 IE B BB SR EE IR B RE AT
- SR M ERIERETH

by region and development project. The data on energy Bk SREAFESEHERHE
consumption by the Group during the year is set forth FEOEIENT -

as follows:

Use of energy Consumption
RERNER HEHE
Total energy consumption (kWh) HEEERE (T FLBF) 312,861.15
Energy intensity (kWh per employee) R E (B8 TTRE) 734.42
Others Consumption
Hit HEHE
Water consumption (cubic meters) FEKkE (L HK) 2.78
Air travel distance (km) MR/ TIEEE (FK) 3.096
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A3 ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES A3 RIEHXRER

In order to respond positively to the national strategic AREGEEBRRREDMRER
policy which requires speed-up of construction of (BTt e] MEFR  FEERQ
conservation-oriented society and implement the AIETABERERMERIE - #
Company’s administrative measures for energy RAEIR AN - @ - &gk
conservation, make the Company become an efficient, xR BEEDCEHERENA
conserving and energy-saving example, and regulate BEEREI SERGBESZE
the specific management of energy conservation and 20 G IR SRl E B R R
consumption reduction of building enterprises, the Group BEIBEMMRE - RE MBI
actively promotes environment-friendly concept and R ESERE B ERRR
instills it in every stage of the whole construction project ASBERRERE - SEHE R
i.e. planning, design, construction and service, striving REbEE - BERERTEAEE
to integrate the concepts of green and environmental ARG HRIAN - 1R 2 EEFEN
protection into the architectural style of the Group. EEEH ARPIREARGE
The Group also cooperates with the first-class design & o

institutes to integrate the architectural design with the
surrounding natural conditions, and strives to create
a comfortable living space to provide customers with
ecological green homes.

The Group complies with the national and local SEBTFTERMM T HIRIERE
environmental protection laws and various types of FERBERBENSBERBREDN
environmental protection laws and regulations promulgated EEER - ETHERE R
by the PRC as it carries out its project development. In WEMRZEMNREINESRE &6
the stage of planning and construction in real estate HEERERRTEEE  BE%
development, the Group proactively communicates with BT - BARZEEEMIE
contractors and advocates green construction work £ ERHHERMB D IE
and strives to save resources and reduce the impact of BEIRIBMFE o

construction work on the environment through scientific
management and technological advancement.
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B. SOCIETY

B1 EMPLOYMENT

The Group always believes that our employees are
important assets of the Group. The Group adheres to the
people-oriented philosophy and guarantees employees’
rights and benefits. By creating a pleasant and healthy
work environment, improving the salary and welfare
systems, and increasing the training opportunities,
we encourage employees to actively carry out career
planning, motivate employees’ enthusiasm for work, and
enhance employees’ sense of belonging.

Policies on Employee’s Compensation and Benefits

In order to attract and retain talents, the Group takes the
characteristics and needs of the posts and positions into
full account when it is hiring people, forbidding gender
discrimination and promoting gender equality. In addition,
for the protection and welfare of its employees, the Group
tries its best to provide them with good protection and
care, including competitive remuneration, equal and
fair pay, a comfortable and safe work environment, and
annual free body examination etc.

We provide social insurances for employees such as
pension, medical care, unemployment, work injury and
maternity insurance and housing accumulation fund
according to national and local provisions, and maintain
insurance coverage against person injuries and accidents
for employees in special positions. In winter, heating fees
will be distributed and in summer, cooling fees will be
distributed. We will also provide allowances for medical
care and missed meals, and title subsidies.

B1 EfE
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The Group contributes to the social insurance and
housing accumulation fund for its female employees in
line with national provisions, particularly during their three
special periods (pregnancy, delivery and lactation); The
Group allows maternity and breastfeeding leave during
female employees’ pregnancy, delivery and lactation and
pays their salaries in accordance with regulations.

The Group also offers relocation subsidies, home renting
subsidies and other special subsidies as well as allowance
for transportation, communication, meals and sunstroke,
etc.

We take the realisation of “internal equity” and “external
competitiveness” as our fundamental principle. The Group
establishes and improves its remuneration system through
“three matchings”, which refer to that the remuneration
matches the value of the position, the remuneration
matches the ability, and the remuneration matches the
performance.

The remuneration of an individual will be determined
with reference to the employee’s personal qualifications,
education background, length of service in relevant
professional fields, actual years of experience and
professional qualification. The salary scale is assessed
according to the employee’s position, responsibility and
obligation, value and experience.

The Group will conduct a fair and open performance
appraisal for all employees through assessment on the
company’s results and job performance. Appraisees
prepare and summarise the completion of monthly
priorities and record in the form of “Completion of Monthly
Working Plan”, which will be signed by the appraisers for
confirmation. It is an important evidence for appraisers
when making appraisals for appraisees in respect to the
completion of their priorities at the end of year.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Salaries of employees are paid on a monthly or annual
basis, both of which are composed of fixed salary and
performance bonus. The fixed salary is determined
mainly based on the assessment result of the value of
employees’ positions, and the performance bonus is
determined mainly with reference to the appraisal results.
The annual salary of employees comprises of monthly
payment part and year-end payment part. The specific
payment method is implemented according to the terms
agreed by both parties in the acceptance letter.

Equal Opportunity

The Group adhered to the principle of openness, justice
and fairness in recruitment and a unified principle without
discrimination in employment standards and selection
procedures. The Group takes the characteristics of the
posts and positions into full account when hiring people
and fights against gender discrimination. Those who have
made significant contributions in daily work would be
rewarded based on the reward & punishment measures
for employees. Outstanding employees would be given
priority when opportunities for promotion or improvement
came up during annual employee appointment.

Employee Diversity

The Group cares about the diversity of its employees and
constantly expands its recruitment channels (campus
recruitment, social recruitment, headhunting, internal and
external referrals, etc.), aiming to maintain the diversity
of its employee structure in such aspects as employee
education, working background and specialties. The
Group analyses the diversity of its current employee
structure on a regular basis to provide guidance for the
follow-up recruitment.
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Anti-discrimination and Anti-harassment

The Group’s labour and employment procedures are
strictly aligned with national policies, requirements and
standards on anti-discrimination and no discrimination
against religion, ethnicity, race and gender is found in
policies for recruitment and daily employment procedures.
The Group also strictly adhered to and observed related
institutional norms and ensured the execution was in place
in various ways including regular reviews, random checks,
feedback, notification, rectification and self-inspection in
each subsidiary in daily work.

The Group have also set clear regulations to severely
punish different kinds of discrimination and harassment
behaviours in violation of the regulations and encouraged
employees to report behaviours that were against the
regulations or incidents harmful to the Group’s interests.
Employees may report relating behaviours through various
channels at any time. As phone numbers and emails of the
Group’s management and head of each department were
open to employees, employees may report anonymously
or in their real names at any time. Human resource and
administrative personnel would collect employee opinions
and suggestions in such ways as making questionnaire
among all employees and doing individual interviews to
gather relating information from our employees. During
this reporting year, the Group has not received any report
on discrimination/harassment incidents. The Group would
solemnly deal with such reports in accordance with the
laws and regulations once any reports were submitted.
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Employment Highlights EIBHLA
By the end of 2018, the total number of employees of HEZZT-)/\FEK ' SEMNET
the Group was 426, and all of them were engaged with | BA2BAN - WL BB EER
labour contracts. FREER o

Key Performance Indicators (for employees)
BMBENER (BI)

Number of employees

ETA¥™Y
Male Female
5 z
Age<30 FHRTESOBRIA T 68 72
Age 30-50 FH30-505% 154 100
Age>50 FhHIB505% 27 5
Number of employees by gender  IZMERIZ|HHIE T AEK 249 177
Total number of employees BT 426
Male-to-female ratio of the BL 8T AE B
number of employees 1.41
Ratio of remuneration between BLEBIHSHE
male and female employees 2.02

Key Performance Indicators (for employees)
ERERER (BT)

Rate of turnover of employees

EIRE=
Male Female
] z
Age<30 FERESOFIAT 8 8
Age 30-50 FHR30-505% 11 3
Age>50 FheERIB505% 0 0
Rate of turnover of employees HHRE DM E TRE
by gender 19 11
Total rate of turnover of BETRRBE
employees 30
Ratio of employee turnover ETREKRES T HEEA LR
to total number of employees 0.07
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B2 BERZZE

B2 HEALTH AND SAFETY

70

The Group provides our employees a comfortable
and safe work environment with well-equipped office
hardware. The office building is spacious and clean with
abundant ancillary resources including meeting rooms,
resting areas and etc. The Group carries out safety fire
drills regularly and always reminds our employees of
paying attention to public safety.

Occupational Health and Safety Protection

In respect of employee health and medical protection,
the Group provides free health checkup services each
year for employees, and also provides social insurance
for employees, among which includes such insurances
for major diseases, accidents, work-related injuries,
outpatient and inpatient medical care.

The Group has been complying with all laws and
regulations relating to health and safety. The Group also
has specific safety requirement documents. It conducts
safety inspections on site each year to ensure the health
and safety of employees at the workplace.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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B3 DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group highly emphasises employees’ professional
skill improvement, training and learning and allows
employees to fully utilise their specialty and potentials
at different positions. The Group encourages individuals
to combine their own specialty and habits with the
Group’s business development and proactively strive for
opportunities. In addition, the Group also encourages
employees to take internal job rotation and develop
across functions. The Group has already set up a mature
training and learning system including hierarchical and
classified training and learning maps, matched with all
sorts of training projects. The Group also has diversified
resources and patterns to support employees’ training
and learning, such as, online learning platform, internal
training, external training and so on.

The Group ensures the pertinence and practicability
when designing training plans. Every year the Group
combines with the need of business development and
sets up corresponding learning projects according to
different business sections, specialties, titles and levels,
job categories so as to make sure employees of various
positions can obtain corresponding training and learning
opportunities and resources according to their job types.
Every year the Group formulates annual training plans
according to the need of businesses and employees and
regularly reviews them to make proper adjustments in
order to ensure learning arrangements conform to the
need of business and employee development.

B3 REREH
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In the annual training plan, the Group will formulate
exclusive internal and external learning plans and
opportunities aiming at the present status and business
challenges faced by middle and high level management
S0 as to make sure middle and high level management
also has rich learning opportunities. For all the internal
training projects, the Group conducts research before
training and makes evaluation after training, listens to
opinions and suggestions of attendants about learning
arrangements, meanwhile makes relevant arrangement
adjustments based on the results and outcomes of
training. The Group’s training plan, notices about detailed
training programs and coverage after training will be
informed to employees timely via a variety of channels.
The following is the record of employees’ average training
hours of the Group during the reporting period, which is
categorised by rank and gender:

REZZIFEG - KEHHEM
FHEPSMERASHRMN - %
BHBE - HIR] FHRF I E ARSI
MBEAENEE  EPERE
BASHEEREENEBK
€ KERIMEEIIERME
#E1THI AT A A IR FE AL 0 B
M2MABRREELHNE
REs  REESEIINKRK
KB FHBRBAZY - KREOF
& AgFJIEE A - 5l
RRENBEDGRELERE
REEMET - U T REBRR
SHIRM B T F 55316 B
8% WA RIERE D

Key Performance Indicators of Training and Development (for employees)

BINBRERARER (BI)

Number
e

Employees being trained Male Female
RIEFEIMET 5 z
Senior management SREEAE 5 1
Managerial personnel EEAB 8 10
Employees T@mET 4 21
Training ratio of employees BRI BESEFINETIES L

by gender 6.59% 19.05%
Training ratio of total employees BEXEINETIEEG DL 11.50%

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Key Performance Indicators of Training and Development (for employees)

BINBREARENER (BT)

Number
HE

Average Training Hours Male Female
T 15 35 31 Bf £ z
Senior management SHREREAE 40 8
Managerial personnel EEAB 8 10
Employees TRET 4 21
Training ratio of employees RENEINEZBINWETIE S

by gender 20.16% 23.21%
Training ratio of total employees BEXEIINETHEE DL 21.36%

B4 - LABOUR STANDARDS B4 — %I %A|

Recruitment AT 1552

The Group adopts internal competition for certain
positions and prioritises the deployment or selection of
suitable qualified employees from internal of the Group.
The Group advocates employees to participate actively
pursuant to competition conditions and procedures, and
encourages each department to support employees to
participate in internal competition without barriers. The
Group would also apply open elections, regardless of
qualifications, sources and backgrounds, all applicants
must follow the Group’s recruitment principles and pass
the required inspections from all aspects and our Group
only recruits qualified applicant. The Group takes the
Company’s culture and value as the basic recruitment
criteria, and mainly focuses on the adaptability and also
takes into consideration the future development potential.
In addition, the Group strictly prohibits the recruitment
of persons with specific family relationships with the
employees of the headquarters of Ever Reach and real
estate group companies.
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The labour policies and standards of the Group conform
to all sorts of national regulations and rules. Related
labour environment, employment duration, working time,
rest and vacation and other rules all complied with laws
and regulations. Meanwhile, the Group clarified in labour
contracts, labour conditions and occupational hazard
protection and also kept employees informed about these
items. The Group also complied with the requirements
of national and local laws and regulations in aspects of
labour handling procedures, procedure completeness
and procedures thereof. The Group will keep a sharp
eye on the latest status of related governmental laws
and regulations and make according adjustment and
update about its internal systems and procedures. At the
beginning of every year, the Group also conducts analysis
and evaluation about present systems and policies and
makes optimization and adjustment accordingly.

Measures for Prevention of Child Labour or Forced
Labour

As for prevention of child labour or forced labour, the
Group ensures that applicants have the right to interview
and apply for a job voluntarily. Meanwhile, it sets up a
strict approval procedure for labour employment. Before
employment, all sorts of credentials, files and information
should be comprehensive and undergo strict inspection.
Employment should also get approval from all levels of
management so as to effectively avoid child labour or
other nonstandard labour employment. The Group also
complies with equal and voluntary labour employment.
When signing contracts or agreements with employees,
the Group will completely and accurately convey
necessary statutory information such as labour working
location, time, working salary and so on. Both sides sign
labour contract or agreement under the voluntary principle
in order to avoid forced labour.
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B5 - SUPPLY-CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has a well-established supplier management
system, including a clear division of supervisory
function, supplier assessment and approval, supplier
selection and performance evaluation, and supervises
the supply-chain management from various aspects.
When selecting suppliers, the Group would inspect their
contract performance, honesty and legal compliance,
meanwhile incorporate proper appraisal so as to make
a comprehensive evaluation. Through contractual
agreements, the Group required that all the suppliers
must comply with national and local environmental laws
and regulations and we properly evaluated them to make
sure they complied with all the environmental and social
requirements and fulfilled their environmental and social
responsibilities.

B6 - PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product Quality Management

The Group highly emphasises product quality management
and establishes a strict product quality management
system within the Group. Every quarter, the Group carries
out a third-party inspection to make sure the quality of all
products met standards. The Group also attaches great
importance to provisions of the laws and regulations
applicable to our products, and continuously pays close
attention to and complies with them. The construction
materials that our Group uses are of high quality, which
satisfy the relevant requirements in terms of construction
and environmental protection on one hand, and promote
environmental-friendly and power-saving construction.
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B7

The Group also has a complete repair and maintenance
mechanism. Once product defects are found, the Group
would be responsible for repair at its own costs, and
would arrange delivery only upon the completion of repair
works. If customers suffer a loss due to quality defects, or
if there are still quality problems that seriously affect the
normal residential use of the buyer after various repeated
repairs, the Group would definitely follow up carefully and
pay compensation or arrange the return of the house
if appropriate. On the other hand, the Group also has
post-disaster response measures, upon encountering
natural disasters such as typhoons, earthquakes and
fires, the Group will conduct comprehensive inspection
towards buildings and public facilities, including aluminum
doors and windows, entry doors, railings, curtain walls,
public decoration, various water & electricity systems
and equipment, etc., as well as carry out repair or
reinforcement works according to the damage level.

- ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group operates its business in accordance with
high ethical standards and adopts good practices in
the industry in respect of prevention of bribery and
anti-corruption. The Group has always complied with
applicable laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption.
The Group has established anti-fraud and corruption
policy and whistle blowing policy (the “Policy”). The
Policy has listed out the guideline, activities considered
as fraud and corruption and whistle blowing mechanism
for internal staff.

The complaints or reports can be filed through postage
or email. According to the Policy, we will set up an
internal control team or engage an independent internal
audit consultant or compliance consultant on an as
needed basis to perform the investigation based on the
complaints and report received. The complaints received
and investigation report will be reported to the audit
committee on a timely basis.
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In addition, according to the Policy, it is strictly forbidden
to provide any form of payment, gift or offer by means
of bribery or corruption. It is not allowed to abuse
the position to encroach on the Company’s property,
misappropriate public funds, and abuse power for
personal gain.

All the employees and representatives of the Group
shall operate the business and perform their duties in
accordance with the integrity requirements set out in the
Policy and in an ethical manner. The Group understands
the potential risks brought by unethical practices to
our business and has zero tolerance to any form of
corruption (including deception, bribery, forgery, extortion,
collusion, misappropriation of public funds and collusion).
All employees are required to attend the training on the
Policy.

- COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group always remembers its social responsibility
as an enterprise when growing its business. As an
accountable and proactive member of the community, the
Group is fully committed to making positive contributions
to help the underprivileged and those in need.

The Group cooperates with different social organizations
and proactively contributes to community work. In 2018,
the Group made donations of more than RMB5 million in
total to social organizations, including but not limited to:
—  Weidu Charity Federation

—  Xuchang Charity Federation

—  Shijiazhuang Aixin Art Ensemble (the Disabled
Persons’ Federation)

—  China Glory Society, Guangcai Foundation
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Meanwhile, the Group actively participated in education B SENEGREIRBERE
and charity. In 2018, the Group carried out “Financial EFEX RZZE-NF £EE
Donation to Education”, and Mr. Li Xiaobing, chairman of TTIELBRE]EE - BEE
Ever Reach, distributed student grants to some students. BREERZNKEBRBTIEN
Ever Reach always believes that making donation to THEES  BERKMEE B
education is a current philanthropy that can benefit the EPEE—HENEENR  FIET
society for generations. In the future, the Group will MOWEEEX  SBARREHE
continue to repay the society with a positive attitude and ERMEE R SREE - BiTh
fulfill its corporate social responsibility. XMW EeERMF -
78 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
in the Company’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 December
2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving good corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard
the interests of shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate
its business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency
and accountability.

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12 November
2018 (the “Listing Date”). During the period from the Listing Date
up to the date of this report, the Company has devised its own
code of corporate governance based on all the principles and
practices as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules which are
applicable to the Company.

Code provisions A.1.1, A.2.7 and C.3.3 respectively provide
that board meetings should be held at least 4 times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with a majority of Directors being
present, the Chairman should hold meetings at least annually with
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence
of other Directors and the audit committee must meet at least
twice a year with the issuer’s auditor. During the period from the
Listing Date up to 31 December 2018, the Company held 1 board
meeting and the members of the audit committee met once with the
Company’s auditor and no meeting was held between the Chairman
and the independent non-executive Directors. In the opinion of
the Directors, during the period from the Listing Date up to 31
December 2018, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions as set out in the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model
Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xiaobing (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Zhenfeng

Ms. Qi Chunfeng

Mr. Wang Quan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Fang Cheng

Mr. Lee Kwok Lun

Mr. Wei Jian
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The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 29 to 35 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
Mr. Li Xiaobing and Mr. Wang Zhenfeng respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s
business development and daily management and operations
generally.

Independent Non-executive Directors

For the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, the
Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are

appointed for a specific term of 3 years, subject to renewal after
the expiry of the then current term.
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Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if
their number is not three of a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for
ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent
judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company organised
a training session for all Directors. Such training session covers
a wide range of relevant topics including directors’ duties and
responsibilities, corporate governance etc. In addition, relevant
reading materials including legal and regulatory update have been
provided to the directors for their reference and studying.
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The record of continuous professional development relating to

Director’s duties and regulatory and business development that
have been received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to date of this report are summarised as

HE2018F12A31BLFE EEEEE
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BESERRNCE HEARESAH
BEaign T -

Type of Training Mot
SR

follows:

Directors

B=E

Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Li Xiaobing TNk
Mr. Wang Zhenfeng FIRIE A
Ms. Qi Chunfeng BERZ L
Mr. Wang Quan FRESLA
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIBITEE
Mr. Lee Kwok Lun TEIBE A
Mr. Wei Jian BalsE
Mr. Fang Cheng TIESR A

Note:
Types of Training

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B:  Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and
relevant publications

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the importance and
benefits to achieve diversity on the Board. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
for the purpose of ensuring that the Board has the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high
standards of corporate governance.
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The Nomination Committee of the Board has the primary
responsibility for identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board based on various measurable objectives with
reference to the Company’s business model and specific needs,
including but not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural and
educational background, industry and professional experiences.
All nominations and appointments of the member of the Board will
be made on merit basis taking into account the business of the
Company needs from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy
and the measurable objectives at least annually, and as appropriate,
to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board in support of
the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable development.

NOMINATION POLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
adopted nomination policy taking into consideration the revised
Listing Rules effective from 1 January 2019. The Policy sets out
the objectives, selection in criteria and nomination procedures
for identifying and recommending candidates for appointment
or re-appointment of Directors. No candidate was nominated
for directorship during the period from the Listing Date up to 31
December 2018.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Legal Compliance Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of reference of
the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Fang Cheng, Mr. Lee Kwok
Lun and Mr. Wei Jian. Mr. Lee Kwok Lun is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main
duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems, effectiveness of the internal audit
function, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors,
and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters of the Company.

During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2018,
the Audit Committee held one meeting with the external auditor to
discuss the annual audit for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Fang Cheng, Mr. Lee Kwok
Lun and Mr. Wei Jian. Mr. Fang Cheng is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The
primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration.
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During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2018,
the Remuneration Committee did not hold any meeting.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Li Xiaobing, Executive Director, Mr. Fang Cheng and Mr. Lee Kwok
Lun, independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Li Xiaobing is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Directors’
nomination procedures, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience etc. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary,
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence, time commitment and
other relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate
strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before
making recommendation to the Board.
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During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2018,
the Remuneration Committee did not hold any meeting.

Legal Compliance Committee

The Legal Compliance Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Wang Zhenfeng, Executive Director, Mr. Fang Cheng
and Mr. Lee Kwok Lun, independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Fang Cheng is the chairman of the Legal Compliance Committee.

The principal duties of the Legal Compliance Committee include
monitoring, identifying, reviewing and assessing the key compliance
issues in relation to or arisen in the course of the Group’s
business operations such as, among other aspects, usage of
all acquired parcels of land as well as construction process and
sales arrangements regarding property development projects; and
conducting regular review on the compliance matters identified by
the committee itself, senior management members of the Group
and/or other relevant parties.

During the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2018,
the Legal Compliance Committee met once to monitor, identify,
review and assess the key compliance issues related to various
aspects of the Group’s operations.

Corporate Governance Functions

The functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code
are performed by the Audit Committee.

Subsequent to 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report,
the Audit Committee met once to review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate governance report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the period from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2018 is
set out in the table below:

EENHERTE

TRIVSEER LT HEEE2018F12
ABTHHESRTHNARREEFENESTE
BeeZUMBRERSNHFELH

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE BTEERY

Legal
Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Bx=ps BExg ERZEES] FHEEg REZEE ZREHZEY
Mr. Li Xiaobing TNKEAE 1/1 N/A 7~ N/A & 0/0 N/A & A
Mr. Wang Zhenfeng TiRERE 1/1 N/A 7~ FB N/A T3 B N/A T~ FB 1/1
Ms. Qi Chunfeng BERLZL 1/1 N/A @A N/A TiEH N/A TiEF N/A iE A
Mr. Wang Quan TREE 11 N/A 7~ N/A i A N/A i A N/A i B
Mr. Fang Cheng FIEEAE 11 1/1 0/0 0/0 1/1
Mr. Lee Kwok Lun TEBLE 1/1 1/1 0/0 0/0 11
Mr. Wei Jian ekt 11 1/1 0/0 N/A TNER N/A T
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS [ B B B % O ED EE 4

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks that it is willing to take
in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.
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The Company has developed and adopted various risk management

procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including project
management, sales and leasing, financial reporting, human
resources and information technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes and are reviewed by the Board on annual basis:

e the Board is responsible for and has general oversight of
the management and conduct of the business of the Group,
and is in charge of the overall risk control of the Group.
Any significant business decision involving material risks are
reviewed, analysed and approved at the Board level to ensure
a thorough examination of the associated risks at the highest
corporate governance body.

e the Board and senior management are in charge of overall
business operations and risk monitoring of the Group, and
are responsible for the supervision of the respective fields
of operations as well as the supervision and approval of
any material business decisions of the Group’s project
companies. Procedures and policies are established setting
out clear reporting lines and responsibilities with a view to
facilitating efficient communications among the Board, regional
headquarters and the project companies. A standardised
property development process that governs each step of the
property development activities was also developed.

e the Audit Committee is responsible for, among others,
maintaining a satisfactory control environment and an effective
system of internal control (including any arrangements for
internal audit) and to review the Group’s financial information,
by monitoring the integrity of the Group’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts and half-year report and to
review significant financial reporting judgements contained in
them.
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the Group’s city and site selection decisions are made by the
Board. The project management department at Henan regional
headquarters is in charge of formulating feasibility studies for
development plans and investment strategies, which takes into
account and involves the participation of other departments,
including the finance department, engineering management
department and costs control department.

for certain operational and market risks, control measures
are adopted at an operational level. For example, major
construction risks are minimised by reviewing background
information on general construction contractors before their
appointment and imposing strict contractual requirements,
while adhering to regular quality control measures overseen by
the Group and third-party construction supervision companies.

the Company has adopted various internal policies and
procedures for individual employees in respect of different
aspects of the property development process based on the
operational needs. The Company also provides both in-house
and external training to the employees in order to enhance
their industry knowledge to manage the operational risks.

the Company has established anti-fraud and corruption policy
and whistle blowing policy. The policies have listed out the
guideline, activities considered as fraud and corruption and
whistle blowing mechanism for internal staff. The reporting
channel is posted on the Company’s website for external
parties’ reporting. The complaints or report can be filed
through postage or email.
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e the Company has also established the policies of financial

reporting and month end financial closing which list out the
guideline on preparing the monthly financial pack, the duties
of different departments, and the procedures of reviewing and
submission of the financial related documents. The policies
also listed out the segregation of duties of the financial
record preparation within the finance department, reporting
channel within the Group and the monthly financial closing
and monitoring procedures. The finance department of the
subsidiaries is responsible for preparing the financial record
on a day-to-day basis and perform monthly financial closing
based on the monthly financial closing checklist. The monthly
financial pack including the financial statements, cash flow
forecast and the key supporting schedule are reviewed by
the finance manager of each subsidiary before submitting to
the Group’s finance department for final review. The Group’s
finance department further reviews and approves the financial
pack received from the subsidiaries before submission to the
Executive Directors for review. The Board would further discuss
the financial performance on a monthly basis.

The Company has engaged independent consultant to perform the
internal audit function for the Group. The independent consultant
has conducted its internal audit review activities according to the
internal audit plan during the year. The Board, as supported by
the Audit Committee, the independent consultant as well as the
management report, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls, for the year ended 31 December 2018, and considered
that such systems are effective and adequate.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 97 to 111.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit
services and listing services for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to RMB1.6 million and RMB2.8 million (RMB2.1 million of
which was charged to profit of loss and included in listing expenses
and RMBO.7 million was charged against share premium account
upon listing of the Company) respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Leung Kam Fai
Anthony, who is an employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affair. During the year ended 31
December 2018, he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in accordance with rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites
of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened on requisition of
one or more shareholders holding, at the date of requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition should be
made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting should be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself/herself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law
or the Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who
wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may

send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZR) BROA

AMRRERAE

REREBRZ BFAMEARBARRRE
RERTNIRT D Z —BEREBRAN—F
HEBRROWEKRT - AERBKREFHIA
G AHERANEENEETSRRAW
ERb - UBREFEHEELERMEA
BEANTANEHEARARREIAE - A
AASEREXEBEREMEAARE
T HEFERNEERBER®R21IAR
ARABAE  AlRBERMALTES (K
F) IARBEAABRAE - MARRER
AEFEREAFASEERIZROA
TEANMBEAEBAMEFLMEE -

REBERAELREZESR

MERERARERAARABERMAAL
BEREBAFRRNRRRNE LHZEAE
EWRE - BRIONARDHBRBRE  AIRE
FERAEREFERAARBFABRRARE -

MEESRHEN

BRI E GRS - AR
ARNBRETEH - ALA—RTERE
NEREREH -




Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1409, Floor 14, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board/Company Secretary)
Email: enquiry@everreachgrp.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. For this purpose, the Company has set up a website
(www.everreachgroup.com), where relevant latest information,
the up-to-date state of the Company’s business operation and
development, the Company’s financial information and corporate
governance practices and other data are available to the public.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meeting, directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders
and answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has amended its
Articles of Association, which took effect on the Listing Date. An
up-to-date version of the Company’s Articles of Association is also
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends
pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code that has become
effective from 1 January 2019 which sets out the factors in
consideration of the payment of dividend. The Board endeavours
to maintain a balance between meeting shareholders’ expectations
and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend policy
and will continually review the same and make modification when
appropriate..
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To the Shareholders of BEZEEE (ZER) ERATGMZRE

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REESFHEFZMA TrIBER F])

OPINION =R

What we have audited KM EBTAHNRE

The consolidated financial statements of Ever Reach Group BEEE (R BRAR ([EAA]) &

(Holdings) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries HIM@ELGR (il [E5E]) #RE112E

(the “Group”) set out on pages 112 to 263, which comprise: 263 E ARG TS HmE - BB ¢

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 o R2018% 12831 BM4RA MIER R &R
December 2018; x

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then o HEZHILFEMNGEERRE
ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the o HEZHIFEMNGEEZENKEE

year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year s HEZHIFEMNGEERFETHE
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then e HEZBIEFEMNZEERERER
ended; and &

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which s RAEUBMEWIE (BRERNZFH
include a summary of significant accounting policies. HRHLE) o

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

1 Recognition of revenue from sales of properties; and

2 Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter 1

HEETEEA

BRFITEE (F)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRANEFTNNEEEARETSE

Recognition of revenue from sales of properties

BRMWREERTERA

Refer to Note 4 'Critical accounting estimates
and judgements' and Note 22 'Revenue' to the
consolidated financial statements.

ARG MR T4 [EZ S EET R AE | R
22 [A ] -

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised over
time when the Group’s performance under a sales
contract does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date;
otherwise, the revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the buyer obtains control of the completed
property. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
revenue of the Group from sales of properties was
RMB1,881.4 million, of which RMB504.7 million was
recognised over time and RMB1,376.7 million was
recognised at a point in time.
MEHEMBFRAREEERHESRE THEARE
BUHESEAREREANEE  MESEFRGINT
W ESBAE 2 O FRIARFRER TR - B RIKAE
BERMBR T ETHIENRE —RKE®ER - 8122018
F12A31BILFEE - ESEMEHEMBRARAR
#1,881,400,0007T * H # A R #504,700,0007T K& i
MRER - M ARE1,376,700,0008 % — K 2 iR -

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Our procedures in relation to identifying sales contracts
subject to revenue recognised over time include:
BMBEABAAREREBERRANHEESRNEFE
7

e Understood management’s process in identifying
sales contracts with or without enforceable right
to payment.

o THREREZNHESRAERBIFITEKEKIEA
OEESS AL

e Read the key terms of sales contracts, on a sample
basis, to assess the presence of enforceable right
to payment based on the contract terms.

o RIEHESRMMREGRR RMEREE) UARES
B G R FT i A2 B 17 AE W R SR TE O 58 | AT THE ©

e Obtained and read the letter of the Group’s
legal counsel, in particular, the legal counsel’'s
interpretation of the applicable laws and evaluated
the implication on the management assessment of
the enforceability of the right to payment.

s EEKMEESBEAEEMRMY  LHEREEE
S0 A 2 B0 R B N RT 1 B 3R B B M R A
BRI R HIBATIE ATV E -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter 1 (continued)

BRETTSE1 (&)
Recognition of revenue from sales of properties

(continued)

BRBUREERBERA ()

For revenue from sales of properties recognised over
time, the Group recognises revenue by measuring
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation at the end of the year. The
progress is measured by the percentage of the contract
costs incurred up to the end of the year to the total
estimated costs. We focus on this because significant
judgements and estimations are required in determining
the estimated total costs, the allocation of total costs
and the accuracy of progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation at the end
of the year.

HERERRODEHEERANS  EEERBEFESF
RETRBEHNEENEZERRA - BAEEKREEF
NEFENE RGN AIEE - HMAAIE
RUE TSR EEE AT AR - EXENDERFRE
TRBABENEE N ERIER T EELERAE R
e

We also focus on revenue from sales of properties
recognised at a point in time because of the significant
volume of transactions which require significant
audit time and effort. The Group recognises revenue
when effective control of ownership is transferred to
the buyers, which is dependent on the contractual
arrangements for the sale and the laws and regulations
in the relevant jurisdiction.
HREARZGEFTERERTHFRELIE  BHATAIE
RE—BRSHERNMEHERA - EXEEEMAENE
BREGIRERE ERBHEIRA - BEORNEEN SR
ZHE R AR R EE R EERIER

B RBENRE

FARFITEE (H)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESTNIEERRET SR

Our procedures in relation to revenue from sales of
properties recognised over time include:

BMA RERER R R X HERANERF B

Understood, evaluated and tested the key internal
controls over the approval of calculation of project
total costs, cost allocation and unit cost.

TR AT RAHEEERER QKK - KAS
Aic X2 B8 {7 B AR T 5 7 T O R B8 (0 B %R I o

Checked estimated budget cost of projects, on a
sample basis, to related development contracts
and compared with the budget approved by
management.
BEMBERESRNGAEERERS (KR
£) - WEEREMENTBEEETEHLL

Checked the development costs of projects
incurred during the year on a sample basis to
the supporting documents including construction
contracts, invoices and progress reports.
MEFNESRIE B FENRA R (R
HE) (BREREAR BREREERSE)

Checked material variations, on a sample
basis, to the projects budgeted costs during
the construction period, by examining relevant
supporting documents including revised
construction contracts or variation orders.
RARSHASHEXG (BECETEEARNE
F2)RERNERPRHUBERAREXNAMELNE
AEE (FRHREE) -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) BRETEE (&)

Key Audit Matter 1 (continued) How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BERETEE 1 (H) BMWETNAEERRETSEE
Recognition of revenue from sales of properties e Checked the mathematical accuracy of the
(continued) calculation of cost allocation and completion
BRYEHERSHRA (&) progress of the property projects.

e WMEVMEBEAERANENRKRTEENFEREE

B -

Our procedures in relation to revenue from sale of
properties recognised at a point in time include:

BAEARE —RHERMEHEWRANEF B

e Understood, evaluated and tested the key internal
controls over the recognition of revenue from sale
of properties at a point in time.

e T FERAREERE —REBRIAVEHE
FRAS WA TS T &) B 52 A BB 3%l

e Selected sales transactions of properties
recognised at a point in time, on a sample basis,
and performed the following procedures:

e BEMRE—HFHBANVEHRERS GREKE
£) - WERTIERF

a) Read the signed sales and purchase
agreements to evaluate contractual
arrangements relating to effective transfer of
control.

a) HECRENE B AT A A PR
ERHE RZHE -

1 02 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter 1 (continued)
BEREEEE 1 (&)

Recognition of revenue from sales of properties

(continued)

BRBMEEERBRA (8)

B RBENRE

FARFITEE (H)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EMNETNAEERRET SR

Checked the transfer of effective control of
ownership to relevant documents, including
completion certificates, occupation permits
or customer acceptance.

REMA RN BRI EER AR (8
BRIZBE FEEFIIHEFPRKE) -

Agreed the sales amount of transactions to
the amount set out in the signed sales and
purchase agreements and bank statements.
RRXHGNIHECRECEZEEHEME
SRRRITHRE S -

Based on our audit procedures, we found that

transactions tested were supportable by the evidence

we obtained.
BERMOELF - BAERFTARORSTUEE
RMESHEENSRF -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter 2

FAEEITEIE 2

BRFITEE (F)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ETNAEERRETEE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale

AR PR R FELER T RN TR R FE

Refer to Note 4 ‘Critical accounting estimates and
judgements’ and, Note 9 ‘Properties held or under
development for sale’ to the consolidated financial
statements.

B2 EVBRERNT4 [EEGFHEG KA KW
9 [HFELEXRBEPEFEWE] -

The properties under development (“PUD”) and
completed properties held for sale (“PHS”) of the Group
amounted to RMB2,080.4 million and RMB1,810.5
million respectively as at 31 December 2018, which
are significant to the Group’s total assets. The carrying
amounts of PUD and PHS are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value (“NRV”).
R2018F12A31H - EEEREFYWE ( [FHEH
ME] ) REEFLHERIME ( [BELEXRIY
%) ®EES R AARE2,080,400,00070 & A R ¥
1,810,5600,0007T ' IEEEEEEEN KR D - FEF
W) 3 KR B3R T 1) 5 1 BRTE (B (B DA IR I AT 3R %
B ([AIREE] ) FHOREETE -

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Our procedures in relation to management’s NRV
assessment on PUD and PHS include:

B EREEEHHETYELRFELERTYENA
SR ENENIEF R

e  Obtained the management’s calculation schedules
on provision for PUD and PHS, and tested the
completeness of development projects and the
mathematical accuracy of the schedules.

s REEEREHMEPYERBIELERIYER
BENFTER  WARFEEEN T IRERTE
REVERNE -

e Tested management’s key estimates, on a sample
basis, for:

o AFEEREMBMEME GRMEREE) AR

a) Selling price which is estimated based on the
prevailing market conditions. We compared
the estimated selling price to recently
transacted prices by making reference to the
Group’s selling price in the same or similar
projects or the prevailing market price of
comparable properties with similar type, size
and location.

a) ERBITHRMAHEER - HPIEHE
BREIMZZERETLE  W2EZEEE
MESEUEENEE - SELER - HAER
LB AL ENIRITHIHER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter 2 (continued)

BEETEE 2 (A)

Assessment of net realisable value of properties

under development and completed properties
held for sale (continued)

AT YERSEHERIVENTERFEE
(&)

Determination of NRV of PUD and PHS involved critical
accounting estimates on the selling price, variable
selling expenses and, for PUD, the estimated costs
to completion. Given the significant balance of PUD
and PHS and the involvement of critical accounting
estimates, the assessment of NRV of these properties
is considered a key audit matter.
BEEREPYELRFEHELRTIYERNAZIEFEL R
BEHHEER  FIZEEER  URFERYENMG
TR TRAERONERG ST hET - ERFEPYERE
EHERTYENREEKN - RFRERGHEG - &
MRATHZENENAIER FES - HUAREAS
I8 o

B RBENRE

FARFITEE (H)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNETNIEERRET SR

Variable selling expenses which are estimated
based on certain percentage of selling price.
We compared this estimated percentage
with the actual average selling expenses to
revenue ratio of the Group in recent years.
AR HEERARLGHEERN —ELLRIE
1TfhET o TG FT L R B & S BT F R A
BERFIIHEERERAMN L EEITLHR -

Estimated costs to completion for PUD. We
compared the estimated costs to completion
to the budget approved by management
and examined the construction contracts
or compared the anticipated completion
costs to the actual costs of similar type of
completed properties of the Group.

PR EN BT R IRR - PRI
BAMEIRERERNTAZETLY - WinE R
FEER - BRI AESSERELE
BT HENERKAEITHER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) BREETSEE (F)

Key Audit Matter 2 (continued) How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HEEtER 2 (&) BMWETNAEERRETSEE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties o Compared the NRV assessment and provision for
under development and completed properties impairment provided in prior years, on a sample
held for sale (continued) basis, with the subsequent actual written-off
FERBRTYERSFEHERTIYENTER FE and investigated if any significant variance
(#&) exists, to assess, historical estimation accuracy

for NRV assessment and impairment made by
management.

o HAERFEN G REFIIRABERE (R
E%) HERETERMBELER  WHFENEM
BAZEETHAS - LA EREMERNEZIR)FE
Al MOR BB B B (R ST RV ERE N -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the key
estimates used in the assessment of NRV of PUD and
PHS were supportable by the evidence we obtained.
BERMNETIRF  BRMABRRBRTEFERYER
FEHERTIYENF R FENBR G BEBE
ISR BB X FF -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the 2018 Annual Report other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

R GE e

Hib&H

EAREEAHEMERAR - HtER
BIE2018FFHMAFHMEILER (B E
BT E M mR R FIR & B A M

wWE)

BB GAPBRERNERIL TREEAM
BF - RATHZEEMENBEREANY
AETEW ©

BAERMYEE W BRROFRT - HAM
BEERMEEMER  UHEUERS &
BEAMERNEEBEA M HRAIKME
BABRETR T BB FEEANEEX
EUFFEEAHERRADNIBER

ERBAMATHNIE BREMARSH
fERFEERERRL - RAFTEHRE
ZEE - BZMEEHTHREEAFERS -

ESRERZEERAREMBEHR
ARENER

BERAEFARERETESMAER
R BB B 8RS 2R R EFE 2R RGIH
BRERERHUEEMT SEOKRAMBR
FUHEARRRESSPBRRAEH
TEERRKRFRERMEMNERER
BURFT R ABEHIR & -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZER) BGRLA

BRRRAKE

EERBERZEERGEUBERR
ARFENERE (F)

ERBGaMBEHRRE EFAANGE
SESELENREN  YEBEBRBR TH
FARBBKEEANER  URERFE
RESEER  RIEFAEMHELE
BRYELEE  HFEABERNER

TTE e

ERZEeARAREEERENMB®RE

BREMRBERGS W RRAAE
MEE

BHWER  RUSRSMBRREBES
TEERRKRFRERMEMNERER
RABMBAERE THASREMAER
MZBERE - RFERET ELSEE
BERMOEBR - BRI ZINRIRE Bl EE
it B #) o AT S ARE AT RIEMR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

R GE e

BRRRAKE

BB ERGS B BRAAE
MEME (&)

EREEEETEAETENBRES
BFERTERHE  RETEXERRE
& o HAITF -

o GBI EY A R 7O RREF Bk 85 AR T 8 Bk
EMBRRFEEANERR AN
B RETRMITEAREF AR EL
Rk - AR ®MEENEE
& ERERMASRANER - AREKGE
ARESRkER RE EEER E
RERGTE - SORBERABEH 2 £
e R BE 3% 3R (R HRF T G ER ) B KR AR
BR At & L B 1= 1 R BE 3 3R IR 86 3R 1 28
B EASERRE AR -

THREEEENARES - RS
HENEEF  BEENYEEHESR
BAREFHNERERRER -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZER) BGRLA

BRRRAKE

BRBMRERGES B BRAAE
MEE (&)
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SENHELERNELETARE -
MRBEMRBSEFEERTHEEMNE - A
BUNEECEMBEHRFBERAET
BREAMBRRTPOMEERE - AR
ERBNEETR  RIRMEEHRR
FEFRBER - HAWGEmEENZ
ZENRE B LS B BEME
oo A RREFRFIBERATEE
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tang Wai Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019

R GE e

BRRRAKE

BB ERGS B BRAAE
MEME (&)

BRTREZEZESREIER  FHALM
ENGEBBLMENEEERERER
WEMFEREREAEMERAETE
BB BRAEMEMER - LR
FERONBERT - AN SRS -

ftREZZEGRBNEESD - HA®E
MLeERB AR AN BERERNENRE
BEE AMmMEKBARESZE - ZMIEX
BEDRE P RAEL TR  BRIDERER
TAARFARBEELEE  EHRFER
WERT  MREEBRHERMBSHE
BREHAKNAEAERRGBEELEND
T RIAORETERERST BRZLE
15 o

HEARBT ZBMBENETRBEEREA
EHER -

EEFKEETEERKT
HESZE AN
&7 - 201943 A28H

Annual Report 2018
—E-\EFER

111



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR SRR

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt AR¥TFT ARETT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N RE 6 41,031 34,947
Investment properties B 7 75,250 73,840
Deferred tax assets FRIEF A E B 21 57,590 46,031
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 173,871 154,818
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments for leasehold land FHE T I FIE 8 234,623 237,295
Properties held or under development EER &S
for sale FEME 9 3,890,921 3,675,992
Trade and other receivables and B 5 N E b fE W sk IE
prepayments MBS FRIE 10 312,340 368,950
Prepaid income taxes BT PTEH 43,218 28,229
Contract assets EREE 3,942 3,221
Financial assets at fair value through BAFESEAER AR
profit or loss HE @ EE 11 190 222
Restricted cash R HIIR & 12 125,928 55,500
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEY 12 419,502 165,034
Total current assets mMEEEHAE 5,030,664 4,534,443
Total assets HEE 5,204,535 4,689,261

1 1 2 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR SRR

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HizE ANR¥F T ARMEF T
EQUITY e
Share capital R& 7R 13 10,645 1
Share premium B B 13 299,188 —
Retained earnings RE & T 14 549,035 338,807
Other reserves HAitn 15 118,821 104,544
Equity attributable to owners of the NARHEE AEEEZR
Company 977,689 443,352
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR R 37 19,826 14,470
Total equity S 997,515 457,822
LIABILITIES =Fi
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Bank borrowings and entrusted loans RITERNETEER 16 29,000 168,000
Other long-term borrowings HEhREER 17 574,170 983,760
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIEE F 21 19,266 7,982
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERE 622,436 1,159,742
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR SRR

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

HiiE AREFT ARETT

Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings and entrusted loans RITERNETEER 16 196,000 402,000
Other current borrowings E MR E &K 18 - 66,902
Current portion of other long-term H bR BB KA BN ER o
borrowings 17 271,340 240,810
Contract liabilities ERAE 19 2,030,488 1,362,350
Trade and other payables B 5 K% E M ERNRIE 20 874,404 837,614
Current income tax liabilities BNERFTS i B fE 212,352 162,021
Total current liabilities mEBEe 3,584,584 3,071,697
Total liabilities wmes 4,207,020 4,231,439
Total equity and liabilities HERKREE 5,204,535 4,689,261

The consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to 263 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2019 and the
consolidated statement of financial position was signed on its
behalf by:

Li Xiaobing
2=/ ok
Director

5=

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA

F1122263E MR G SRR E 720194
3H28HEERSHE - BRA PN TR
FETIALTRREE

WANG Zhenfeng
F iR
Director

5%

i AR A B RS A O R 2% R B R B B 5 —
BIiE -



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
e

Year ended 31 December

HZ12HA31HLLEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

it AR¥ T ARETT

Revenue WA 22 1,883,603 1,549,878
Cost of sales SHE A 24 (1,253,721) (1,144,954)
Gross profit EF 629,882 404,924
Fair value gains on investment properties & M3 8 A FE M 7 1,410 1,534
Selling and marketing expenses HELTEHEERY 24 (43,985) (28,600)
Administrative expenses THHAX 24 (110,692) (75,055)
Other losses — net HihEiE — F5 23 (6,574) (1,367)
Operating profit KR 470,041 301,436
Finance income B IS URA 25 993 785
Finance costs B 75 Ak 2N 25 (45,271) (28,225)
Finance costs - net PBRA — B (44,278) (27,440
Profit before income tax BR P 15 B¢ A R 8 425,763 273,996
Income tax expense PRAS T X 28 (195,902) (124,587)
Profit for the year FRFE 229,861 149,409
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

2 A e 34
mEERm
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥ T ARETFT
Attributable to: T5HI& 75 AL
Owners of the Company KRBHEE A 224,505 147,794
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 5,356 1,615
229,861 149,409
Earnings per share attributable to the Z& 2 T #H AE/S
owners of the Company (expressed HERZER
in RMB) (AARERTR)
- Basic and diluted earnings per share ~ — G A& ELAN K #4582 A 29 0.24 0.16

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be ARG 18 2 7% E BB B B 5 — OF BOE
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

o

1 1 6 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEEHWER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARETT

Profit for the year FRFHE 229,861 149,409

Other comprehensive income for the year F£REME2HEKE - =
Total comprehensive income for the year, FRAZEWFATE (HIKRBiIHE)

net of tax 229,861 149,409

Attributable to: T 5% 75 ek :

Owners of the Company ZN/NECTEZZEWN 224,505 147,794

Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = 5,356 1,615

229,861 149,409

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2 T UK 2 2R R B B B i — BF B

i
I8
°

i
=
Sir
o)

i
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEREZBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

b NGTE 2N L
Non-
Share Share  Retained Other controlling Total
capital premium earnings reserves Sub-total interests equity
Rx  BROEE RERM HibEE PNt FERER AR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i AEEFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETn
At 1 January 2017 20171818 1 - 199,774 95,733 295,508 8,149 303,657
Comprehensive income 2@ Kz
Profit for the year ERFIE = - 147,79 - 147,794 1,615 149,409
Transactions with owners E#H AR5
Appropriation to statutory ~ BREZEF
surplus reserves BHREE 15 = = (8,761) 8,761 = = =
Contributions from non- ~ RENBAR
controlling interests of a IS
subsidiary iE = = = = = 3,856 3,856
Transactions with non- R R AR A
controlling interests X5 = = - 50 50 850 900
Total transactions with ~ S2JH A
owners RoEE - - (8,761) 8,811 50 4,706 4,756
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 1 - 338,807 104,544 443,352 14,470 457,822

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

EARHEEAER
Non-
Share Share  Retained Other controlling Total
capital premium earnings reserves Sub-total interests equity

Bx  RGEE RERN HitRER Nt FERES L §
Note  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

Mit ARBTT ARBTT AREFT ARBTT ARETT AREFT ARETT

At 1 January 2018 R2018%1A1R 1 - 338,807 104,544 443,352 14,470 457,822

Comprehensive income 2@
Profit for the year FRFH = - 224,505 - 224,506 5,356 229,861

Transactions with owners EEEANRZ

Issuance of ordinary shares 277 13 2,661 307,171 - - 309,832 - 309,832
Capitalisation Issue BALEST 13 7,983 (7,983) - - - - -
Appropriation to BB TR E

statutory reserves 15 - - (14,277) 14,277 - - -

Total transactions with  E#EH A
owners RABE 10,644 299,188 (14,277) 14,277 309,832 - 309,832

At 31 December 2018 1420185127318 10,645 299,188 549,035 118,821 977,689 19,826 997,515

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should i ARG R A B 3% e R BE B B R — B
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Cash flow from operating activities RETHMBEESRE
Net cash generated from operations LIBEAIRSFEE (M1:231(a)

(Note 31(a)) 825,461 604,492
Interest paid B FE (95,241) (121,042)
PRC income tax paid BT BATSH (64,808) (61,013)
PRC land appreciation tax paid B3 B -t s (A A (96,027) (45,605)
Net cash generated from operating RETHELRES TR

activities 569,385 376,832
Cash flow from investing activities REZHFBRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BEL&E (7,325) (10,086)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE  BEXR

plant and equipment (Note 37(c)) RIEPTSRIE (H17E31(c) 166 24
Temporary funding provided to RETHEBEINGERES

related parties (Note 34(b)) (H1a£34(b) = (41,176)
Repayments received from related parties B B 5 SO B 32 K

(Note 34(b)) (H17#34()) 6,948 44,555
Temporary funding provided to third parties — R#EFE=FHERES - (72,500)
Repayments received from third parties B = HF BEIHER = 117,677
Cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary HEWBARMNIRE R - 4,500
Interest received 2 W F 2 993 785
Restricted cash deposits ZRBIIR ST (70,428) 19,062
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEZE (FrA)

investing activities ELXREFE (69,646) 62,841

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

Year ended 31 December

HZ12HA31HLLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Cash flow from financing activities RMETEERERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings and RITERMETZERTEFHIE

entrusted loans 226,000 894,160
Repayments of bank borrowings and EERITERAREZTER

entrusted loans (571,000) (1,079,680)
Proceeds from borrowings from R B IS BB S KA TS 3R IE

non-financial institutions - 199,730
Repayments of borrowings from EEFEDRMIBER

non-financial institutions (201,722) (334,660)
Temporary funding received from B B 5 W R & &

related parties (Note 34(b)) (B1#£34(b)) - 39,697
Repayments to related parties (Note 34(b)) M) BAH 5 i3k (M15#34(b)) (12,486) (44,264)
Temporary funding from third parties REFE=ZFTHNREES - 12,507
Repayments to third parties MBE=FEXK (3,119) (62,999)
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary HEMRB AR ER - 900
Contributions from non-controlling interests of 2k & K& A 7 FEIEARAE 25 8905 &

a subsidiary - 3,856
Proceed from issue of shares BATIRD P15 RIR 317,056 =
Net cash used in financing activities REEE AR TR (245,271) (370,758)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents £ KRB & ZE Y NFE 254,468 68,920
Cash and cash equivalents at FNREMREEEY

beginning of year 165,034 96,114
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year £RELRBELSZEY (ffst12)

(Note 12) 419,502 165,034
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read RS IR B T = 7 FE BB B Y 5 — O B

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited (Cayman
Islands Company Number: 313570, the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22 July 2016 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111 Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in property development
business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 12 November 2018 (the “Listing”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

() Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622 (“HKCQO”).

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21 REEE (&)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

R 52 R A< A8 451

(ii) Historical cost convention (ii)

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
following:

e financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income — measured at fair value

e financial assets — measured at fair value through
profit or loss, and

e investment properties — measured at fair value

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) New standards, amendments and interpretation

effective in 2018

The following new accounting standards,
amendments and interpretation of HKFRSs, which
are relevant to the Group’s operations are effective
for the first time for the financial year beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. These have already
been adopted by the Group when it prepared the
consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2015, 2016, 2017 and four
months ended 30 April 2018 for the Listing:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

° HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

e Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014 — 2016

Cycle

e  Amendments to HKAS 40 — Regarding transfers
of investment property

e  HK(FRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) New standards, amendments and interpretation
not yet adopted

The following new accounting standards,
amendments and interpretation have been published
that are not mandatory for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018 and have not been
early adopted by the Group.

Standards/Amendments/

e B RRME

2 EARSHEEGE (&)

21 REEE (&)

(iv) i RERMBAHT - KB
TR R

IATEETE 2R - BFT &
EREDLEM X RN
201841 A1H F 18 M B X
FEEBIER - B RER
SEIRATEHA -

Effective for annual
periods beginning

Interpretation on or after
RUT BHis 2 &%
0| 85 BB HFEEHBEER
e HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Regarding sale or contribution of assets To be determined
(Amendments) between an investor and its associate
or joint venture
EEUBRELNFEI0HRERE BRREEHRABERARELEREZRH F7E
BEEERE285% (185]) MEEHEITE
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
BBV B HRELERISE165% HE 20191 A1H
HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
B8 (BRMBHREZRBEE AEREEZTHEES 201951 A1H
®) REF235
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Regarding prepayment features with 1 January 2019
negative compensation — amendments
ERUMBRELRIFR (B5]) AR AGEMENRINFEFENERMT 20191 A1 H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) New standards, amendments and interpretation
not yet adopted (continued)

Standards/Amendments/
Interpretation

R BT SRR

21 REEE (£F)

2 EARSHEEGE (&)

(iv) ARERAOFHET > K&

TR 2R ()

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
AU BHIS 2 &%
HWEEHBER

o ABEFHERIFE285 (B7])

e  Amendments to HKAS 19

o FAEGRERF195 (BF])

e Amendments to HKFRSs

o BRWHHMEEA (EF])

e HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 28

BRI RS ERFE175R

Regarding long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures
BAREE N R RS ENRPER

Regarding plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement

FARETEERT - MR E

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

BBV IEIRELER201522017FEHIM
FREBE

Insurance Contracts

rERAR

1 January 2019

20191 H1H

1 January 2019

201951 A1H

1 January 2019

201941 H1H

1 January 2021
2021%F1A1H

The Group has already commenced an assessment

AEEERIEFERSEAMBRSE

of the impact of these new standards, amendments, FEHIFETER] B NRENTE

and interpretation of HKFRSs, certain of which are
relevant to the Group’s operation. According to the

= F R %%ks

| S B AT EL AR ER B ) & 5E
Bl REESHELNOLZHE B

preliminary assessment made by the directors, no ZEER| BTN FBE T e

significant impact on the financial performance and

HBAKBENOPBERERKRBREK

position of the Group is expected when they become B M E BB ERE R FE 1658

effective except that there will be some impact for
HKFRS 16 as explained below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

21 REEE (&)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) BREHEMOHFE ~ &

(iv) New standards, amendments and interpretation

not yet adopted (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”. The Group is the lessee of two
buildings which are currently classified as operating
lease. The Group’s current accounting policy for
such leases is set out in Note 2.26 with the Group’s
future operating lease commitments not being
reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position. HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for
the accounting treatment of leases and will in the
future no longer allow lessees to recognise certain
leases outside of the balance sheet. Instead, all
non-current leases must be recognised in the form of
an asset (for the right of use) and a financial liability
(for the payment obligation). Thus each lease will
be mapped in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position. Short-term leases of less than
twelve months and leases of low-value assets are
exempted from the reporting obligation. The Group’s
future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable lease as at 31 December 2018
amounted to approximately RMB19,060,000 (Note
32). The new standard will therefore result in an
increase in right of use assets and an increase in
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In the statement of profit or
loss, as a result, the operating expense under
otherwise identical circumstances will decrease,
while depreciation and amortisation and the interest
expense will increase.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) New standards, amendments and interpretation

not yet adopted (continued)

The directors consider that the adoption of the new
standard will have some impact on the financial
position of the Group as the related right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities will be recognised upon
adoption of the new standard on 1 January 2019.
However, the impact to the financial performance
of the Group will be minimal as the impact of
amortisation of the right-of-use assets and unwinding
the discount of the related payable will not be
materially different from the operating lease charges
that would have been recognised under the current
standard.

The Group does not intend to adopt the above new
standards, amendments and interpretation before
their respective effective dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEASHHEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries 22 MBAF

2.2.1 Consolidation 221 HmERRE

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, statement
of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of financial position
respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.21 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 IEAT (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued) 221 #ARE (&)

B (B)

(a) Business combinations (continued) (a)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred

Yot B 4 A B A TR E A B
SHH o

i X 75 & B 0 FE B
17 WBHZRFHER
WU B 77 2 9 YRR B
HIRR EE RO Wi B Bt
RFESEHE RE
et BEL MW E
BIME AR

RE B T EEA I

by the Group is recognised at fair value at the AR BRUEE B B
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the NEEER - WHEIEE
fair value of the contingent consideration that is EXEENHARER

deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previously held equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the statement
of profit or loss.
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e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.21 Consolidation (continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

(c)

without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions - that is, as
transactions with the owners of the subsidiary
in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
amount of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. It means the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specifically
permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
Since the majority of the assets and operations
of the Group are located in the PRC, the financial
information is presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which
is the functional currency of the Company and the
presentation currency of the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within “Finance income or expenses”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss within
“Other gains/(loss) — net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position are translated at the closing

rate;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rate;

and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at

the closing rate.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
. The CODM, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing

decision-maker (the °

performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as executive directors that makes strategic

decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 Y- BERSEE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement
of profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs less their residual values over their estimated useful

MR - BB R REBRE LKA
RETERREBBRAR - EL
RABEEEZERE BEEER
MR -

RAEEBEAENREEENzm
RATRERAARKE - ANZIAR
BIBCANBE R SEMDAH B - IRBRLA
TR ABENREESERSE
VEE (MER) - WEREDH
REESRIEER - AEMAE
EREEANRELNMBHER
BaRP M

ME - BEEREBFEECAER
ARtE - REAMGFAERFHD
FEERABEFREE - ARG

lives, as follows: FTRAIE AT
— Motor vehicles 4 years — BE 44
— Furniture, fittings and 5 years — A BE 548
equipment T
— Electronic devices 3-5 years — BFEE 3&5F
— Buildings 20 years — g5 204
— Leasehold improvements the shorter of lease — HEE 78 HA Sk Al (& B
terms or useful lives FH (AR
ERE)

The assets’ residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised as “Other gains/(losses) — net” in the statement
of profit or loss.

Properties held or under development for sale

Properties held or under development for sale are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Development
cost of properties comprises cost of land use rights
(including land auction price, other demolition cost to
acquire land and resettlement housing construction
costs after deducting related government grants),
construction costs and borrowing costs incurred during
the construction period. Upon completion, the properties
under development for sale are transferred to properties
held for sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties held or under development for sale are
classified as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is expected
to complete beyond normal operating cycle.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 BEYE

2.7 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that
are being constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties. Land held under operating leases
are accounted for as investment properties when the rest
of the definition of an investment property is met. In such
cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted
for as if they were finance leases. Investment property
is initially measured at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined by
management of the Group at each reporting date taking
into account of any available valuation results performed
by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in
fair values are recorded in the statement of profit or loss
as a separate line item.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Land use rights 2.9+ b5 FARE

Land in mainland China is state-owned and no individual
land ownership right exists. The Group acquired the rights
to certain land, and the premiums paid for such rights are
recorded as land use rights. Land use rights are classified
and accounted for in accordance with the intended use
of respective properties as erected on the land.

For properties that are held for own use, corresponding
land use rights are separately stated in the statement of
financial position, and are stated at cost and amortised
over the use terms of 40-70 years using the straight-line
method.

For properties that are under development and held for
sale, corresponding land use rights are accounted for as
part of the development costs, and are accounted for in
accordance with the policy stated in Note 2.6.

For properties that are held as investment properties,
corresponding land use rights are accounted for as part
of the costs, and are accounted for in accordance with
the policy stated in Note 2.7.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model
in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

210 RERHMEBMEE (&)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2101038 (48)

2.10.1 Classification (continued)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. The Group classified its debt instruments
into the following measurement category:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at amortised cost
and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised
or impaired. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit
or loss as other income when the group’s right to
receive payments is established. Changes in the
fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in other gains/(losses)
— net in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.
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e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

210 RERHEMEMEE (A)

210 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

210.3& B E = RE

2.10.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income.
The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses (i.e the present value of all
cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial
assets.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
assets. The provision matrix is determined based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the contract assets and trade receivables with
similar credit risk characteristics and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date
the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

Impairment on other receivables are measured as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. If a significant increase in
credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11

212

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in statements of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the relevant company or the
counterparty.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for properties sold, leasing of properties or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13

2.14

Contract assets and liabilities and cost for
obtaining contracts

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods
or services to the customer. The combination of those
rights and performance obligations gives rise to a net
asset or a net liability depending on the relationship
between the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and recognised as
contract asset if the measure of the remaining conditional
rights to consideration exceeds the satisfied performance
obligations. Conversely, the contract is a liability and
recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of the
remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure
of the remaining rights. Costs such as stamp duty
and sales commissions incurred directly attributable to
obtaining a contract, if recoverable, are capitalised and
recorded in contract assets.

For contracts where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised property is
different, the transaction price is adjusted for the effects
of a financing component, if significant.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts. In the consolidated and Company’s
statements of financial position, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15

2.16

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

217

2.18

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowings costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

219 ENHIRIEEE RSB (&)

219 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) JEFEFTISB

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, and the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is
not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.
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e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 EXSEEEGE (&)

219 ENHIRIEEE RSB (&)

219 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

220 Employee benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC based employees of the Group participate in
various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and
the PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ salaries, subject to a certain ceiling.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired PRC based employees payable under
the plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation for
the payment of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans are
held separately from those of the Group in independently
administrated funds managed by the PRC government.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

221 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 EXRSHEGE (&)

221 B4

EASERBATEMMARER
BEERENEEEERT  BTEER
RATgESIHERME R EHEEE
EEREMAER  BRAERE

B e

Wﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁwéﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁE
e 7B B RAY A BB 1 Th 8= /=
BRECHANERETE Eﬂﬁﬁ’?ﬁlﬁ
—;Eﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁ%&ﬂ
= é{/ﬁE’JT“’IEEMZ

1)3//\%%\%5%{%

BT BB R IZ B EETT
BEEMFRAXHREE @&
AN ERETISEREERR
F'EH BN G ERZEENSER

IHTF'EJ/;mﬁEFfﬁi‘jJDEI’J%ﬂ%ﬁE

E@Z%%‘JE\%EJS'Z °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEBE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

22 BIREREE

222 Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised in respect
of the financial guarantee provided by the Group to the
banks for the property purchasers.

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee liabilities. After
initial recognition, such contracts are measured at the
higher of the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9 and the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation of income
recognised in accordance with HKFRS 15. The fair value
of financial guarantees is determined as the present
value of the difference in net cash flows between the
contractual payments under the debt instrument and the
payments that would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the
consolidated statements of financial position when, and
only when, the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expired.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of properties and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown, net of discounts and after eliminating
sales with the Group companies. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

(a) Sales of properties

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of
the asset is transferred to the customer. Depending
on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
to the contract, control of the asset may transfer
over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset
is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer; or

° creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

e do not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

(b)

Sales of properties (continued)

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract
costs incurred up to the end of reporting period
as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract.

For property development and sales contract for
which the control of the property is transferred at
a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
property is accepted by the customer, or deemed
as accepted according to the contract, which is the
point in time when the customer has the ability to
direct the use of the property and obtain substantially
all of the remaining benefits of the property, and
the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effect of a financing component if it is significant.

Rental income

Rental income from properties being let under

operating leases is recognised on a straight line
basis over the lease terms.
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e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24

2.25

2.26

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to properties held or under
development for sales are presented in the statement
of financial position by deducting the grants in arriving
at the assets’ carrying amounts and are credited to
the statement of profit or loss upon the sales of the
properties.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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e B RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.27 Dividend distribution

2.28

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is

recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s

financial statements in the period in which the dividends

are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.

Earnings per share

(i)

(i)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other
than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional
that
outstanding assuming the conversion of all

ordinary shares would have been

dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.28 Earnings per share (continued)

(ii) Diluted earnings per share (continued)

Where the number of ordinary shares outstanding
increases as a result of a capitalisation, bonus issue
or share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse
share split, the calculation of basic and diluted
earnings per share for all periods presented will be
adjusted retrospectively.

2.29 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
also required in accordance with Note 2.8.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks comprising market risk (including foreign exchange

risk, fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate

risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk

management programme focuses on the unpredictability

of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is engaged in the development, sale
and management of properties solely in the
PRC with almost all transactions denominated
in RMB. In addition, the majority of the Group’s
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB.
Accordingly, the Group is not exposed to
significant foreign currency risk, except for the
bank deposits from the Company’s initial public
offering, which are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar (“HKD”).

Fluctuation of the exchange rates for HKD
against RMB will affect the Group’s result of
operations. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management closely monitors the foreign
exchange exposure and will take actions when
necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@) Market risk (continued)

(1)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against RMB,
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
of the Group for the year 2018 would have been
lower/higher by RMB1,764,000 (2017: post-tax
profit lower/higher by RMB27,000), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange loss/gain from bank
deposits denominated in HKD.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Except for bank deposits
with stable interest rates, the Group has no
other significant interest-bearing assets.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings
from banks and non-bank third party lenders.
Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group has not hedged
its cash flow or fair value interest rate risk.
The interest rates and terms of repayments of
borrowings are disclosed in Note 16, Note 17
and Note 18.
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e B RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

Management does not anticipate significant
impact to interest-bearing assets resulting from
changes in interest rates, as the interest rates
of bank deposits are not expected to change
significantly.

The Group’s profit or loss and equity are
sensitive to higher/lower interest expenses from
borrowings at floating rates as a result of
changes in interest rates.
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e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of bank deposits, trade
and other receivables, contract assets and financial
guarantee contracts included in the consolidated
statements of financial position represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

(i)  Bank deposits

Cash transactions are limited to high-credit-quality
financial institutions. The table below shows
the bank deposit balances as at 31 December
2018 and 2017:
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M12A831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Counter party HFEH
— Deposits in the four major state-  — FAFR[E P A
owned banks of the PRC BRITOEFER 308,851 117,020
— Deposits in other listed banks of — RFREEHM FHiRTT
the PRC SOREZ N 139,950 103,056
- Deposits in other banks — REMIRITHER 96,059 166
544,860 220,242

Management does not expect any losses from
non-performance of these counterparties.
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e B RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 +“REREIE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 ¢REKEZE ()
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERBS (&)

(i) Financial guarantees (i)  BIEHER

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales are made to purchasers with an
appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payments. The Group has
arranged bank financing for certain purchasers

AEEC R B BIK
R URERAEEEE
MBENLZAEAD
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HE - ARBER/AE

of the Group’s property units and provided EEEBEMHETER
guarantees to secure obligations of such LZHRITRLE - WRMH
purchasers for repayments. If a purchaser ERAERZEERE
defaults on the payment of its mortgage loan TEFEME - WMERR
during the guarantee period, the bank holding BEREANARE X TIRHB

the guarantee may demand the Group to
repay the outstanding principal of the loan
and any interest accrued thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is entitled to take
over the legal title and possession of the related
properties after the relevant legal procedures to
recover any amounts paid by the Group to the
bank. In this regard, the directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach
to providing for expected losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected losses provision for all trade
receivables and contract assets.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivables
and contract assets to ensure the adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amount. Credit is only granted to tenants with
sufficient financial strength. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Therefore, credit risks of the Group from sales
of properties and lease of properties are limited.

The loss allowance provision for those balance
was not material for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

Other receivables (excluding deferred initial
public offering costs, prepaid tax and
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)

The Group closely monitors these other
receivables to ensure actions are taken to
recover these balances in the case of any risk
of default.
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e B RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 +“REREIE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 ¢REKEZE ()
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERBS (&)

(iv) Other receivables (excluding deferred initial (iv) Bt fE W E (T 6

public offering costs, prepaid tax and
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)
(continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on
the asset as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition.
The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables
impacting credit risk and expected loss. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating

e  external credit rating

e Qactual or expected significant adverse
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iv) Other receivables (excluding deferred initial

public offering costs, prepaid tax and
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)
(continued)

e actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of individual property
owner or the borrower

e  significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the individual
property owner or the same debtor

e significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status
of debtor in the Group and changes in the
operating results of the debtor

A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments
within 365 days of when they fall due.

The Group uses four categories for other
receivables (excluding prepaid tax and
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)
which reflect their credit risk and how the
loss provision is determined for each of those
categories. These internal credit risk ratings are
aligned to external credit ratings.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) cTRERERE (&)

W

3.1 TRAREE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERB (&)

(iv) R ERZXE (T E
RELZEERNHEE

(iv) Other receivables (excluding deferred initial
public offering costs, prepaid tax and

surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)

(continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning
the Group’s expected credit loss model is as

EF - BIVTHERE
101 B LA K A] i o] i 4
E#) (&)

MR AEERMEEES
BEIUNBREED

follows: Ik
Basis for recognition
of expected credit loss
Category Group definition of category provision
Al BRI WA B SR E BREHEEHRERBENEE
Performing Customers have a low risk of default 12 months expected losses.
and a strong capacity to meet Where the expected lifetime
contractual cash flow of an asset is less than 12
months, expected losses are
measured at its expected
lifetime.
FE EREARRBRE WHABWMEER B 12EANEE - MWEEN

Underperforming

2z

RERENEAN

Receivables for which there is a
significant increase in credit risk;
as significant increase in credit risk
presumed if interest and/or principal
repayments are more than 30 days
past due

JEWRIE S RS ERBREEL N : [
B e A1 8 2/ Sk R @ 38 38 B R 830
RAFERANE B = g A 18 15 hn

BHFHIORN12(EA - BIFEH
EBERZEBHFHTE -

Lifetime expected losses

EEFHANERER
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iv) Other receivables (excluding deferred initial

public offering costs, prepaid tax and
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)
(continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning
the Group’s expected credit loss model is as
follows: (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 EREREE (F)

3.1 SEARREE (&)

(b) FERR (&)

(v) £ b 28 (T8

BELZE

EF - BITHELY
10 B LA R A 4 (5] 1 2

EH) (&)

SR AEERBEEES
BERIUNBREED

T (&)

Basis for recognition
of expected credit loss

Category Group definition of category provision

Al BRI RIRE BRENEEHERENEE

Non-performing Interest and/or principal repayments  Lifetime expected losses
are more than 365 days past due

R MER /A% EFEAEARI65K BEAFHN M TEHEE

Write-off Interest and/or principal repayments  Asset is written-off

are more than 3 years past due and
there is no reasonable expectation of

recovery
58 FER SACEFAPBBEIF - I WHEE
B & BB ERE

The Company accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected losses
on a timely basis. In calculating the expected
credit loss rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category of receivables and
adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic
data.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 +“REREIE (&)

3.1 TREAREER (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERB (&)
(iv) E /&YW E (T &
IHEEEAXNANFAEE
EF - BT ER A
I B LA K AT 4 5] £ 1%

E#) (&)

NEBAEBRED T
BRI E B RRAAE
A3 T8 5T YR [ K AT RE
B i 85 2 2B 3k 30 9 %
LRI RIE AETE
HA s SR Bl 45 1Z B 1
FEHITES HE
2018412 A31H I+ &F
& » AN £ B30 4 (E ] it
i (20178 : A B #&
2,564,0007T) °

(iv) Other receivables (excluding deferred initial
public offering costs, prepaid tax and
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable)
(continued)

The Group writes off those receivables, in whole
or in part, when it has exhausted all practical
recovery efforts and has concluded there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include ceasing enforcement activity.
The Group has no written off for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: RMB2,564,000).

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the loss R20184F 2017412
allowance provision was determined as follows: A31R - BiEEEETE
m
As at As at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
12018%12A31R 1201746124318
Carrying Carrying
amount amount
Gross (net of Gross (net of
Expected Carrying impairment Carrying  impairment
Loss Rate Amount  provision) Amount provision)
RkAEE REE
(HkswfE (MFrmifE
REEXE  REAE &%) RELE )
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ANEETFT
Current HE 0.1% 216,036 215,820 259,123 258,863
More than 30 days past due B #B30K 0.5% 1,856 1,847 55,440 55,163
More than 360 days past due % #28360K 20.0% 55,857 44,685 782 626
More than 720 days past due #IEiHH720% 100% - - 2,564 -

273,749 262,352 317,909 314,652
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 +%“REREE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 SREKREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERB (&)

(iv) Other receivables (excluding deferred initial (iv) E b jE W55 (1 &
public offering costs, prepaid tax and FEEZEERXAEFEE
surcharges and value-added-tax recoverable) BEF - AT HERL
(continued) 0B LA R 7] 4 5] 7Y 38

E#) (&)
The allowance recognised in profit or loss for HE2018F 2017412
impairment provision of other receivables for A318 L FE 5t FE R
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 IHRERBBERERE
are disclosed in Note 24. 7 N HE SR B ZE 4 T 4 BB
PR EE24 o
(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBESRK

Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient AEEERESESERANT

cash through internally generated sales proceeds and SHEFTSRIE R 7 B K&

an adequate amount of committed credit facilities EEMEREREHRE N

to meet its operation needs and commitments in MEEMFEBENEETK

respect of property projects. MAGE °

1 70 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 +“REREIE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 eREKREE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) RBEESR (&)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TRIIBBEREEREER
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on EIHA B A9 I &R AR - 2 AB R
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the FEAR ST A EE R B
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed - RABENEEAEER
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash REFRBESME ©

flows.

Between Between

Within 1and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
15/ 1226 2ZF5%F 5N £ @t

RMB’'000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETn AR®ETR ARETT ARETxZ

As at 31 December 2018 A2018512H31H

Bank borrowings and RITERK

entrusted loans excluding  Z3EEX -

deferred fees TEREELER 196,000 29,000 - - 225,000
Interest payments on bank $R/T{& 3 &

borrowings and entrusted & &4

loans FIBR 11,765 504 - - 12,269
Trade and other payables B 5 k&

ANE 815,750 - - - 815,750

Other long-term borrowings H it & Hi{& 3% 271,340 262,960 250,210 61,000 845,510
Interest payments on other H fth & HifE 2 &9

long-term borrowings TR 48,437 23,062 25,411 1,720 98,630

1,343,292 315,526 275,621 62,720 1,997,159
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3 EREREE (F)

3.1 SEARREE (&)

(c) RBEEZRMR (&)

Between Between
Within 1and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
1ER 1226 2E5F 5FLAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFrr AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
As at 31 December 2017 A2017F12H31H
Bank borrowings and BITETR
entrusted loans excluding  ZEE
deferred fees NEERLEEHR 402,000 139,000 29,000 = 570,000
Interest payments on bank $R{7{&3 &
borrowings and entrusted ~ ZEE A
loans FET 21,979 6,970 504 = 29,453
Trade and other payables &5 KE
PR 5RIA 780,035 - - - 780,035
Other long-term borrowings E & HAE Zk -
excluding deferred fees TBEEELLER 243,916 212,668 539,092 232,000 1,227,676
Interest payments on other H fth & HifE &9
long-term borrowings FIERR 57,260 52,130 93,517 38,063 240,970
Other current borrowings  EH R EE R 66,902 - - - 66,902
Interest payments on other E 7R EhE 2 EY
current borrowings FERZ 24,793 - - - 24,793
1,596,885 410,768 662,113 270,063 2,939,829

Note: Interest on bank borrowings and entrusted loans,

long-term borrowings and other current borrowings

are calculated based on borrowings held as at

31 December 2018 and 2017,

respectively.

Floating-rate interests are estimated using the
prevailing interest rates as at 31 December 2018

and 2017, respectively.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 +“REREIE (&)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEKER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings,
including interest bearing borrowings from related parties
and third parties, less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as total equity, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt.

AEEEAEENBEIREAR
SEREFELE  URKRRER
B3 - W REEARBAR
DERRKI ©

REFRFHBREARE - ARE
BN TRERNREERE
BTHRORXEEEENRDE

% o

AEBENERE R SEEERA

§$o§mzhﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁx

N E - MEBFERER

ﬁWM@%XQﬁ A RE=F
BET R Fi§k> MREEREESE
BYEE - EXRREARGEE
B RERH BR A = 2% M E
B FRERTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2018 and 2017 were

as follows:

TRERERE (&)
3.2 EXAEMRER (M)

M20185F K&2017%F12 A31 BHy1E
IR R -

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Borrowings and entrusted loans (Note

16) BRMETLER (H7iE16) 225,000 570,000

Other long-term borrowings (Note 17) B REER (Hat17) 845,510 1,224,570
Other current borrowings (Note 18) E it mEnEms (Hat18) - 66,902
Total borrowings (EEE 1,070,510 1,861,472
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W ERER

(Note 12) ReFEY (Kit12) (419,502) (165,034)
Net debt B F 58 651,008 1,696,438
Total equity M ABE 997,515 457,822
Total capital BB 1,648,523 2,154,260
Gearing ratio AR L & 39.49% 78.75%

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA



3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy
as follows:

— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

See Note 7 for disclosures of the investment properties
that are measured at fair value.

e B RRME

3 EREREE (&)

3.3 AFEME

TRERFEFERBERMA
R ABEBNER DT AR ER
NFEAERNERTA BRE
ABUR TR T XAt i o B A
NHERBRAN =B :

- RAEAEREENERNS
LB CR B E) (B
B) -

— HABIENREAG R
BE o B 1R U0 A B AR
W THEE (DES) %
BB (06T 4 & (B 48 (2
B) -

— FERABEMSBEENE
EEEEABE (AR
BERHARE) (F3E) -

BEAFEFENREDENEE
BLHMET -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1E F2E $F3E @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFrT ANREFT AREFT AREFT

Financial assets at fair value Z 2 EEiERIBH AR

through profit or loss MEMEE

At 31 December 2018 M2018F12A31H 190 - - 190
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12A31H 222 - - 222
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Level 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

3 TRERERE (#F)
3.3 D EME (&)

Level 2 Level 3 Total

52 %3E Bt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREKFT

Investment properties REME
At 31 December 2018 MN2018F12H31H - 75,250 75,250
At 31 December 2017 M20178F12A31H = 73,840 73,840

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely
as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 +“REREIE (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 A EME (&)
As the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BHRASERENEATFEER
held by the Group are security assets traded in active B ARNeREERTE/ERT
market whose fair value is based on quoted market price HZEBENRSFEE ARQFE
at reporting date. Therefore, they are included in level 1. TR RIS B B mSRER

8o FHit - HFFAFIE -

The investment properties are not traded in active markets KREMELIEEFRT S E B X
nor does the fair value determined by using valuation AREAEECRAUBERMSH
techniques that maximise the use of observable market BRNHERNEET A FE:
data. Therefore, they are included in level 3. bt - Bt ASEIE o

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BEEHETTR¥E
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are st R A G SR EN G - WABRE
based on historical experience and other factors including KBERAEMEZIERER  SFES
expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable BB FEEERREHHEIRTER -

under the circumstances.

The management makes estimates and assumptions B H R RE I A ET KR o FIfE
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates V& EHA AT IR 5 - B A B AR R ) B IR
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. ERER 2 ER T ETBRFEANE
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk ERBEREEFEERNFAEMNEXN
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of [B g &b 5T REBRRIRAHAT ©

assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined
below.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised over time
when the Group’s performance do not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date; otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the buyer obtains control of the completed
property. The Group may not change or substitute the
property unit or redirect the property unit for another use
due to the contractual restrictions with the customer and
thus the property unit does not have an alternative use
to the Group. However, whether there is an enforceable
right to payment depends on the terms of sales contract
and the interpretation of the applicable laws that apply
to the contract.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

4.2

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group recognises property development revenue
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation at the reporting
date. The progress is measured based on the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation, by reference to the contract costs incurred up
to the end of reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each property unit in the contract.
The Group calculated the cost allocation based on type
of properties, gross and saleable floor areas. Significant
judgements and estimations are required in determining
the completeness of the estimated total costs and the
accuracy of progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation at the reporting date. The Group
has a standard cost budgeting and estimate completion
process in which management reviews and approves the
development progress and execution of the performance
obligations. As part of this process, management reviews
and approves information including but not limited to,
the cost to achieve the schedule and variations to the
project budgeted costs. Changes in cost estimates in
future periods can have effect on the Group’s revenue
recognised. In making the above estimations, the Group
relies on past experience and work of contractors and, if
appropriate, surveyors.

Development costs directly attributable to
property development activities

The Group estimates property construction costs upon
recognition of respective costs of sales. Such estimates
are substantiated by detailed budgetary information as
developed by the management, and will be assessed
periodically, as the constructions progress. Should these
estimates depart from their actual finalised costs, such
differences would affect the accuracy of costs of sales
recognised.

4 EEGHETRAE (&)

4.1

4.2

WA TR (&)

rEEBBRSERNREANTE
BITEHNEENERE - BER A
RYMEFREWRA - ZERTIRE

AEBRBITRAOEEMEL
BASEAN - BB EEHERE
HRFEENERKAGERE R
REMEBMAEMLFTRENE D
Lb#ErTEN E o AEERBEYESR
Al mEEEE RN EEEE
BRADED o REEEEHRSE A HT
2RITERAEEMEGEEIEK
KE’J% 1 K% o [ O A2 T 1 R
ZER B RAE RMAEE - A&
I%‘E*ﬁh‘ﬁﬁﬁlﬂzﬁiﬁ RAEET5E
BORIE  BEERN AERED
EAMNBRREEERATER - 1
REBEN—FHy  BEESH
RES (BEETRR) TKE
ﬁ@i’ﬂfﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁizﬁﬁlﬁ
BERAZFEENER o RKH
ﬁ%ﬁm?mm@Tﬁgﬁﬁﬁ
EFERNKRAEETLE - £I1F
B Eat b E R - AEEKERT
KB RkABEAR (MER) &
BHHIE-

NMERBEHEREHBOMAR
EN

REBENRERE B IHEKAREM
FTERERAN c BRAMGTHE
EEHENFAESEEERE
7 4% B FE 5% HE B 1T R AT A o
EAEMFTEAERREKAE
=2 HEEZEBRFEERR
SHE S R ZERE N o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.3

4.4

Provision for impairment of properties held or
under development for sale

The management makes provision for impairment of
properties held or under development for sale based
on the estimate of the net realisable amount of the
properties. Determination of net realisable amount of the
properties involved critical accounting estimates on the
selling price, variable selling expenses and the estimated
costs to completion. Management estimated the selling
price based on the prevailing market conditions; the
variable selling expenses based on certain percentage of
selling price; and the costs to completion based on the
project budget approved by the management. Given the
volatility of the property market in the PRC, the actual
net realisable amount may be higher or lower than the
estimate made as at the end of the reporting period. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect the
Group’s operating performance in future years.

Land appreciation tax of the PRC

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the
PRC. However, since the implementation and settlement
of the tax varies among various tax jurisdictions in
cities of the PRC, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the land appreciation
tax. The Group recognises the land appreciation tax
based on management’s best estimates according to
its understanding of the interpretation of tax rules and
latest practice of local tax jurisdictions in the cities where
the Group’s projects are located. The final tax outcome
could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will impact the current
income tax and the deferred income tax provision in the
periods in which such taxes have been finalised with local
tax authorities.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.5

4.6

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income tax in the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for corporate income tax. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that we initially recorded, such difference will
impact the current income tax and deferred tax provision
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary

differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of

their actual utilisation may be different.

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for the properties with similar lease and
other contracts. In the absence of such information, the
management determines the amount within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates. In making its estimation,
the management considers information from a variety of
sources including:

(@) Current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;

4 EEGHETRAE (&)

4.5

4.6

EMMIEEFEH

REBAHBNTEATEMAEN -
HEETECEMSHRNBERAE
HEBARHE EBEEXBBRE
T ZEXGREFAETALEE
BUORBEHEE ZEMERIA ° Wik
FEHENZERAERIEBH
REEMEZRE AHEESER
L TFHRBEMENBAHRAEH &
AT IR R o

HETHREEZEMNABERH
MIREERAEE - AIEEEER
B &S A SRR E 7] K 36
RS E R A BB B T
R HERNBAERAENR -

REWMENLFE

NP ENRERERBLUELO R
HMARRNEREEMS LNE
e ERZZFERNBRT
EEEESEAFEMFTHNEE
NEEEZ®E  EFELGHE-
EEEERTRRRNER 8
EEE

@ MHE KRR (3K
XTRABEHNEMERR
[R) MR ERBRERMS
Lo ER (ARSRERE
HAAE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.6 Fair value of investment properties (continued)

(b) Recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and,

(c) Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the term
of any existing lease and other contract and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessment of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment
properties based on valuations determined by independent
professional qualified valuers, which were based on
income approach and by reference to comparable price
in an active market.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the key assumptions
used by the valuer in determining fair value were as

4 EEGHETRAE (&)

4.6 REMENDVEH (&)

(0)

RRNEBRTSMERELY
X HIER (RERSE
HFE AR BERZEE
RETTR HH) H B LB
UHEMEE) © &

REBHARAKR G REETH
A bt MBRAMREERE &
ME - M FERTHENE
MBRAEOEELME R
R K (AR BEIE R T)
SMERE (N3 B KK R4
AnBUmEERmEMR
) UHRARNARBRE R
MEHEEIEENBRRE
mELRNERETIED
REIREFH -

AEBERBBYIEXESERME
B ER WAL R 2 E BT 5K
AL BRERmEENGENGE
BREMFENRTE -

A20184E 2017128318 » &
BERRETATERFERNES

follows: BRFOT :
As at 31 December
M12A831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
Term yield S HE R RS 4%-7.00% 4%-7.25%
Reversionary yield B8O = 4%-7.50% 4%-7.75%

1 82 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have been identified as the CODM.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the executive directors, which are
used to allocate resources and assess performance.

The Group is principally engaged in property development
in the PRC. The CODM reviews the operating results of the
business as one segment to make decision about resources
to be allocated. Revenue and profit after income tax are the
measures reported to the executive directors for the purpose
of resources allocation and performance assessment.

The major operating entities of the Group are domiciled in the
PRC. All of the Group’s revenue are derived in the PRC for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all of non-current assets
of the Group were located in the PRC.

There was no revenue derived from a single external customer
that accounts for 10% or more of the Group’s revenues for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

e B RRME

2 EBE

NTEFCHBRRATEMERR
EREDCRBHATESMEZS
ﬁ@aﬁ/)?&n$1ﬁﬁiﬁﬁjjﬁiﬁﬂ:_z«<

o

mt%ﬁﬂ&

D
oft
3

AEEETEZETEREYDEMARE - =
ERERARER —EDBEREBD
REEE - ULBRINA D BEAE LR
R MATEF2HRAREERDE
KRB HOERBERANGRPEH
‘A -

AEBNEZTELEERERURNPE-
# 220184 K2017F12H318 Ik F
B AEBMEIWAREFE -

MR2018%F K2017F12A31H » &K &
BHEEIERBEEIMLAFE

# 220184 K2017F12H318 1k F
B REE—IBEFLHURAIEN
REBEWABIT10%E A E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 Y BERRHE
Furniture,
Motor  Electronic ~ fittings and ~ Assets under Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices  equipment  construction  improvements Total
Bl KB
gF Dt ET#HiE &L EREE REXE L5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFI
At 1 January 2017 #201751 18
Cost A& 4,094 28,023 5,267 2,493 - - 39,877
Accumulated depreciation LEE (3,332) (21,492) (3,477) (1,504) - - (29,805)
Net book amount RHFE 762 6,631 1,790 989 - - 10,072
Year ended 31 December 2017  HZ20174512831ALEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 762 6,531 1,790 989 - - 10,072
Additions RE = 403 860 223 8,600 - 10,086
Transfer from properties held or BRABENER
under development for sale (a) RERFENZQ) 17,850 - - - - - 17,850
Disposals LE = = (26) (1) = = (27)
Depreciation charge (Note 24) WEER (Hit24) (245) (1,566) (811) (412) = = (3,034)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 18,367 5,368 1,813 799 8,600 - 34,947
At 31 December 2017 R20175128318
Cost A 21,945 28,426 6,100 2,715 8,600 - 67,786
Accumulated depreciation 2IE (3,578) (23,058) (4,287 (1,916) - - (32,839)
Net book amount REFE 18,367 5,368 1,813 799 8,600 = 34,947

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

6

e B RRME

W%~ BERRE (&)

Furniture,
Motor  Electronic fittings and Assets under  Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices equipment construction improvements Total
B %8
£ RE BT e EREE RE#E @t
RMB000  RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFrE AREFT AREFrT AREFR AREFT AEETT AEEFZ
Year ended 31 December 2018  EZ2018512A31ALEE
Opening net book amount ENEREE 18,367 5,368 1,813 799 8,600 - 34,947
Additions NE 193 657 1,177 319 8,617 - 10,963
Transfer from assets under BRATRAE
construction - - - - (17,217) 17,217 -
Disposals e - (4 (151) 17 - - (172)
Depreciation charge (Note 24) WEER (Mi24) (911) (1,462) (815) (255) - (1,264) (4,707)
Closing net book amount ERRERE 17,649 4,559 2,024 846 - 15,953 41,031
At 31 December 2018 12018%12531A
Cost B 22,138 29,079 7,126 3,017 - 17,217 78,577
Accumulated depreciation 2iHTE (4,489) (24,520) (5,102 2,171) - (1,264) (37,546)
Net book amount FEFE 17,649 4,559 2,024 846 - 15,953 41,031
Note: Hiat -

(@ On 30 September 2017, a property was transferred from
properties held or under development for sales to property, plant
and equipment. On the date of transfer, the net book value of
the property was approximately RMB17,850,000.

Depreciation charge of the Group has been included in
administrative expenses for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

Buildings with carrying amount of approximately RMB155,000
as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: RMB156,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (Note
16).

(@ F20179F9A30R @+ — BV EBEFE
HESNRAERFEMEETREYE
WS Rkt - RERBE - ZWEN
FREFELNAARE17,850,0007C °

HZE2018F N2017F12 A31H IEFE -
AEEMITEERE T ATTHRAY -

MR2018F12A31H * BREIE 5 Bl 4
A N R #155,0007T (2017412 531
B : AR¥156,0007T) MIEFEES
I G T LABE IR DAER S AN &£ E A9 5 3K
(FI5E16) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

7 REYHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILFEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AEBETFT

Opening balance FAEEER 73,840 31,300
Transfer from properties held or under HE O EHER

development for sale (a) HEEHRFEY () - 42,000
Net gain from fair value adjustment N EFAEN WS FEE 1,410 540
Closing balance FRER 75,250 73,840

Note:

(@ On 30 September 2017, a property was transferred from
properties held or under development for sale to investment
properties. On the date of transfer, the net book value of
the property was approximately RMB41,006,000 and the fair
value was RMB42,000,000. The difference of approximately
RMB994,000 was recognised as fair value gains on investment
properties by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA

Hiat -

(@)

MR20174F9A308  —BWERILE
HERMAETRSTENEESRTREY
¥ - RERBEH  ZWENKREFE
#75 ANR#41,006,0007T & A FE A
AR#42,000,0007T ° ZFBEHARE
994,0007T FA AN = B B Z£2017412
A31BILEERRBIRENMENRTF
Bl o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 7 REWXE (E)
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment RREVMERBZRIANEE
properties

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T AEETFT

Net gain from fair value adjustment

Fair value gains resulting from transfer from B#F{EHES KR EEYE

properties held or under development for

sale to investment properties

AT EFEN W EE 1,410 540
WRERBMEELD
AT {EY 2% - Cle

Total fair value gains on investment

REMEN R FHERS AR

properties 1,410 1,534
Rental income arising from investment BEYFEHHRSHA

properties 1,679 1,736

3,089 3,270
Fair value hierarchy AFEER
Fair value measurement at 31 December 2018 and 2017 R20184F K&2017F12A31H K A &
using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) are investment AN AR ABE (F3E) BN
properties located in the PRC, amounting to RMB75,250,000 FEMREMEETHRFEFED
and RMB73,840,000, respectively. Al B A R ¥75,250,0007T & A R #
73,840,0007T °

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers AEBBRARERERNZHE
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or NEEH AR A FEERE A LE
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. i o
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for the years HZE2018F M2017F12 A31H IEFE -

ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

1 - 2NM3E 2 AN B I TE R -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2018 by an independent professionally qualified
valuers, Unicorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited (“Unicorn)
who hold recognised relevant professional qualification and
have recent experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued. For all investment properties,
their current use equates to the highest and best use.

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31
December 2017 by an independent professionally qualified
valuers, Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, who holds
a recognised relevant professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued. For all investment properties, their current
use equates to the highest and best use.

Valuation techniques

The Group has four investment properties for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017, all of which are located in
Henan Province, the PRC.

The valuation of investment properties was determined using
the income approach (term and reversionary method) which
was based on capitalisation of net rental income derived from
the existing tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZER) BGRLA
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e PR RRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3):

7 REWE (&)

& B M2018%F }&2017%F12831H
FRAEARFTE =@ AHE (53
[B) AP EFENESR :

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable  Range of unobservable inputs
Description Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
TABREALE
A RTFIBHMNATE HERE TURZRAZE TUBERRAUEEE HAVENBR
Property | 31 December 2018:  Income approach  Term yield Term yield of 7% (2017: The higher the term yield,
mE— RMB3,250,000 (term and FHE R % 7.25%), taking into account  the lower the fair value
201812431 :  reversionary of yield generated from FHRHREYS - QAT
AR#%3,250,000T  method) comparable properties and  EB(E
31 December 2017: WAL adjustment to reflect the
RMB3,240,000 (FHRESE) certainty of term income
201712 H31H : secured and to be received.
AR#3,240,0007C FHEHRET% (20174F:
7.25%) " &Gt RAILBRME
B EERE R R E B
G RBHERE AR RTE
HIEH A%
Reversionary Reversionary rate of 7.5%  The higher the
yield (2017: 7.75%), taking reversionary yield, the

ERmRE

into account annual unit
market rental income and
unit market value of the
comparable properties.
EREHRET.5% (20174:
7.75%) + ST R AT B S
WEEEMMEHESNAR
BAME -

lower the fair value
EBOHENE - QAT
B
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e PR RRME

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 7 BREYE (&)
E B M2018%F K2017F12831H
EREXTAEE@E ARE (53
B) ATEHENES : (#F)

Information about fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued)

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable  Range of unobservable inputs
Description Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
TABRHAZE
HiEA RTISIBHNATE EER TURZRAZE TUERAANBEE BN FENER
Market unit rent  Market unit rent is RMB5 The higher the market
of individual unit  (2017: RMB7) per square unit rent, the higher the
{ERERATS  meter per month, using fair value
Bile direct market comparable ~ MEZEMAEHE - BIA
and taking into account of  F{E#S
location and other individual
factors, such as road
frontage, size of property
and facilities.
MEEUHEFGAGT K
ARESTT (20174 « AR
7)) RREETSER
RIS RALE R E A ERIR
% - flmise - MERER
R ©
Property Il 31 December 2018:  Income approach  Term yield Term yield of 6.5% (2017:  The higher the term yield,
ME— RMB20,900,000 (term and FHO = 6.5%), taking into account  the lower the fair value
2018512 H31H reversionary of yield generated from FHEHREYE © BATF
AR#20,900,0007  method) comparable properties and  {E#/E
31 December 2017:  WAJE adjustment to reflect the
RMB20,500,000 (FHRERZE) certainty of term income
2017412 A31H secured and to be received.
AE#20,500,0007T FHIEHREE.5% (20174F:
6.5%) * & RAILL B E
EREERE R REEREG

190 BEEE (ZR) ARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued)

e B RRME

7 BREWE (&)
E B M20184%F K2017F12831H
FRAEARFTE =G AHE (53
B) AR EFENER : (#F)

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable  Range of unobservable inputs
Description Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
TABRH AZE
HiEA RTSIBHNATE EERE TURZRAZE TUHERAANEBEE BN FENER
Reversionary Reversionary rate of The higher the
yield 7% (2017: 7%), taking reversionary yield, the
EHREmE into account annual unit lower the fair value

Market unit rent
of individual unit
{5 E s By i
Be

market rental income and
unit market value of the
comparable properties.
EHERET% (2017F:
7%) © B85t R AT LB E R
EEEMmEHSRARE
fuifE o

Market unit rent is RMB41
(2017: RMB38) per square
meter per month, using
direct market comparable
and taking into account of

location and other individual

factors, such as road
frontage, size of property
and facilities.
HENHEFRAGELK

AREEA T (20175 : AR
#38TL)  FRERMSLR

Rf&st R E R A ERE
% flmiss  HERER

i

CEEEESER
EHE

BIAT

The higher the market
unit rent, the higher the
fair value
msEfHeHs  BA
FEHE
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e PR RRME

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 7 BREYE (&)
E B M2018%F K2017F12831H
EREXTAEE@E ARE (53
B) ATEHENES : (#F)

Information about fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued)

Relationship of

192

Valuation Unobservable  Range of unobservable inputs
Description Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
TABRHAZE
HiEA RTISIBHNATE EER TURZRAZE TUERAANBEE BN FENER
Property Il 31 December 2018:  Income approach  Term yield Term yield of 4% (2017: The higher the term yield,
mE= RMBS, 100,000 (term and FHiEHE 4%), taking into account  the lower the fair value
2018F12A31H : reversionary of yield generated from FHEHmEYS - QAT
AR8,100,0007t  method) comparable properties and  EE
31 December 2017:  WAJA adjustment to reflect the
RMBS,100,000 (FHRERE) certainty of term income
2017%12H31H secured and to be received.
AR #8,100,0007 EEEIREAY (20174
4%) & RAIL R EE
AR R LR IR BS
R U R A B e B 1
EHHE o
Reversionary Reversionary rate of The higher the
yield 4% (2017: 4%), taking reversionary yield, the

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited

BEEE (ZR) ARAR

BEREEE

into account annual unit
market rental income and
unit market value of the
comparable properties.
ERERELY 2017F:
4%) 185t RATLL Y
FEBMMEHERARE
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lower the fair value
EEnmEYs - QAT
EHE
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e B RRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 7 BREWE (#F)

Information about fair value measurements as B B M2018F K2017F12H31H
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 using significant FRAERTUTEBER AHE (53
unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued) B) AFEFENER - (&)

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable  Range of unobservable inputs
Description Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
TABRH SIS
5 RTISIBENATE HER TUBEBAEE TIBEERA\HBEE BN FENER

Market unit rent  Market unit rent is RMB64  The higher the market
of individual unit  (2017: RMB61) per square  unit rent, the higher the

ERIEfT%  meter per month, using fair value
Bife direct market comparable ~ MZEMAEHE © A

and taking into account of ~ F{E#S
location and other individual

factors, such as road

frontage, size of property

and facilities.
mEEUHEFAGT K
ARE64T (20175 © AR

%617m) - RREETSLR

RASE RALE R E A0 ERIE

% - flmssr - MERER

i
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e PR RRME

7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 7 BREYE (&)
E B M2018%F K2017F12831H
EREXTAEE@E ARE (53
B) ATEHENES : (#F)

Information about fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued)

Relationship of

194

Valuation Unobservable  Range of unobservable inputs
Description Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
TABRHAZE
HiEA RTISIBHNATE EER TURZRAZE TUERAANBEE BN FENER
Property IV 31 December 2018:  Income approach  Term yield Term yield of 4.5% (2017:  The higher the term yield,
E RMB43,000,000 (term and FHE = 4.75%), taking into account  the lower the fair value
2018124310 : reversionary of yield generated from FHRHEYS - QAT
AK#43,000,0007C  method) comparable properties and  ElE
31 December 2017: A% adjustment to reflect the
RMB42,000,000 (FHRERZE) certainty of term income
201712 A31H : secured and to be received.
AR%42,000,0007T EHEREL5% (20174:
4.75%)  #85t R AT B E
EEREHRE R REE R
&R A BB E
HAEH A o
Reversionary Reversionary rate of 5% The higher the
yield (2017: 5.25%), taking reversionary yield, the
(ElEE R into account annual unit lower the fair value

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited

BEEE (ZR) ARAR

market rental income and
unit market value of the
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e B RRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 7 BREWE (#F)

Information about fair value measurements as B B M2018F K2017F12H31H
at 31 December 2018 and 2017 using significant FRAERTUTEBER AHE (53
unobservable inputs (level 3): (continued) B) AFEFENER - (&)

Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable  Range of unobservable inputs
Description Fair value as at technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
TABRHASE
HiEA RTSIBHNATE EER TURZRARE TUERAABBEE BN FENER

Market unit rent  Market unit rent is RMB16-  The higher the market
of individual unit 19 (2017: RMB16) per unit rent, the higher the
ERIERMTS  square meter per month,  fair value
Bife using direct market mEENfsEs  BD

comparable and taking into  “F{E#S

account of location and

other individual factors,

such as road frontage, size

of property and facilities.

MEBNEEFATTAK

AR#16-197T (20174 :

AR#167T)  EREETS

B R A RALE R E A {E

BIRZ - il - MER

R R RN °
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 7

If the reversionary vyield increase or decrease by 10% from
the parameter used by the qualified valuer, the fair value of
the investment properties as at 31 December 2018 and 2017
would have been as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

REW= (&)

s 152 58 [21 ¢ =& 4 & B 1% 15 B R 5% FH 1)
DEGTE ISR 10% - 7R20184F
K017 12 A3 BB EME A FE
BTN PR -

As at 31 December

wEYEELN, (D)
— 10 percent increase in reversionary yield — {25 [EFR=F1EH110%
5 B 3 =5 4 10%

Investment properties increase/(decrease)

— 10 percent decrease in reversionary yield — 1

M12A831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
(3,886) (3,370)
4,485 4,790

There will be no significant change for the fair value of the
investment properties as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 if the
term yield increase or decrease by 10% from the parameter
used by the qualified valuer.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no
unprovided contractual obligations for future repairs and
maintenance. Operating expenses relating to unlet investment
properties are immaterial to the Group.

The Group measured deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties by adopting the tax
rates and the tax bases that are consistent with the expected
manner of recovery of these investment properties (Note 21).

Investment properties with total carrying value of
RMB20,900,000 at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
RMB23,740,000), were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
borrowings (Note 16).

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA

i F BBl ¥ K1z & B & (A ERVER A &Y
DHETEL IR A 10% © 7201845
K2017F 12 A31 BN E W HE A TFE
WiESKNEE -

20184 K2017412H31H + KN &
B m AR RAEE R EERNREE
GEREM - BEBENEREMENLE
AXEAEBRMSETERK °

AEEBBRAFTAEFREZER
BEMERANTEERETERBZ
EREVENBRHEZENELRE
(Mf5E21) ©

2018128318 » BREEEZEAA
R #20,900,0007T (2017412431 :
AR #23,740,0007T) M EMER
B B 353 5 15 45 10 LA R A5 7 £ [ A 15
K (FizE16) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PREPAYMENTS FOR LEASEHOLD LAND

The Group incurred costs for demolition and resettlement
arrangement of certain leasehold land on which the Group
intends to develop properties totalling approximately
RMB234,623,000 as at 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: RMB237,295,000). Such costs will be transferred
to properties under development for sale upon receipt of
ownership certificates of the land use rights.

PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

Balances of properties held or under development for sale are

e B RRME

HE TSR

R2018F12A31H » AEEGRALE
FTEIRNE EREYMENSE THE i
WIFBRELTERHEENKEE KL
A N R 234,623,007 (20174128
318 : AR#237,295,00070) ° %%
BN 38 A MR B £ (5 FR A 9 P 78 e B
BEBEEFRERFEDME

FIFHERRARFHFEYE

FRIFLEXFEPHEVERERT

as follows: T
As at 31 December

M12A831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Properties under development for sale FREsrh G EYE 2,080,386 2,720,521
Properties held for sale BIEREYEE 1,815,411 961,157
3,895,797 3,681,678
Less: Provision for impairment loss B REE R (4,876) (5,686)
3,890,921 3,675,992
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

9 PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER DEVELOPMENT 9 BEHLESHERTFTEYXE

FOR SALE (CONTINUED) (#&)
Properties held or under development for sale comprise: BELESABETFEWERE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Land use rights and demolition and A0 A8 B8 I T 8 Bh 18 1Y
resettlement costs after deducting related =+ Hfifs FA 4 R 4738 AN
government grants ZEEH 1,777,922 1,620,018
Construction costs and capitalised FEHERARE N
expenditures 1,860,246 1,818,669
Interest capitalised (a) EAREF B () 257,629 242,991
3,895,797 3,681,678
Less: Provision for impairment loss R EEIE R (4,876) (5,686)
3,890,921 3,675,992
Note: Hiet -
(a) Interest rate of capitalised borrowings for the year ended 31 (a) ELZE2018F12A31BIEFE - BEXR
December 2018 was 5.83% (2017: 6.55%) per annum. b 1& K& F| & £5.83% (20174 :
6.55%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER DEVELOPMENT

FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Movements of properties held or under development for sale

are as follows:

e B RRME

9 KFELHEIRXRSFTENE
(&)

HIEHE R BT A E LB SN
T

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BALEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREFT

At beginning of the year F4] 3,681,678 3,124,654

Additions VIN=E 1,468,650 1,762,067
Costs of properties recognised in profit or  7E18 25 F1 FE R H 1) 22 % 7

loss (1,254,531) (1,146,187)

Transfer to investment properties (Note 7) SEREREWEE (Kft7) - (41,006)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EEE¥E - HE L& E

(Note 6) (K17t6) - (17,850)

At end of the year FER 3,895,797 3,681,678

Movements on the provision for impairment of these properties
held or under development for sale are as follows:

HEBELERB BN EDEAE
BEZDOT :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREFT

At beginning of the year F4] 5,686 46,800
Provision realised upon sales e RS AR (810) (41,114)
At end of the year FR 4,876 5,686
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PROPERTIES HELD OR UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Management expects that the amounts of these properties
held or under development for sale as of 31 December 2018
and 2017 will be recognised as cost from sales of properties
during the following periods:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

FELEIRBPFENE
(&)

EREEGZERIELEXREREF
& ¥ % B £2018%F k2017412 531
HA& S AR AT HA R R A Y 3 68
BRI

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFr

Amounts are expected to be recovered: TR bl £ 58
Within 12 months 1218 A AR 676,689 893,438
Beyond 12 months HBiE121E A 3,219,108 2,788,240
3,895,797 3,681,678

The properties held or under development for sale are all
located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain of the Group’s
properties held or under development for sale were pledged
as collateral for the Group’s borrowings (Note 16).

BEHESFAERGFEMEALMRT
o

20184 K2017412H31H « KA &
EETHRELEXRABEREFEEMED
B B 354 5 15 45 10 LA R A5 2 £ [ A 15
K (FzE16) ©

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREF T
Carrying value pledged: EHEFREE -
Properties held or under BiEHEAEPFEME
development for sale 305,574 761,517
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e B RRME

10 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 10 EZRHEMEWREMEAEGR
PREPAYMENTS 15
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Trade receivables B 5 eI GRIE = -
Prepayments of construction costs (a) SRR ANTE S FIE(a) 23,344 31,220
Costs relating to demolition and A 8 BFREREFENLE

resettlement activities recoverable EENA BRI AR (b)

from government (b) 183,757 231,476
Receivable from project service (c) T8 B AR 75 FE YR (o) 55,440 55,440
Tender deposits (d) HiZ% £ (d) 23,777 7,459
Value-added-tax recoverable AU BB 14,945 6,911
Prepaid tax and surcharges (e) TR FLIA R FT % (e) 11,699 11,900
Deposits paid for property development ENMEREES 8,502 7,599
Temporary funding receivables Fais & £ EIGRIE = 29
Amounts due from related parties FEUR Ba B 5 B (H15E£34(c)()

(Note 34(c)(i) - 6,948
Amount due from non-controlling interest  FEU FE1E AR AE 25 718 - 4,764
Deferred initial public offering costs BEE A AFAEEER - 4,267
Others Hib 2,273 1,630

300,393 338,423
Total of trade and other receivables and B 5 I H At FE W R TE

prepayments TR RIRERE 323,737 369,643

Less: Allowance for impairment of other R o Ath FE U R IE R B B
receivables (11,397) (693)
312,340 368,950
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

10 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

Prepayments of construction costs represent the prepaid
construction costs, which will be transferred to properties under
development for sale.

The balances represent demolition and resettlement costs paid
on behalf of and recoverable from the government.

Receivable from project service represent the outstanding
balance recoverable from customer for the construction costs
and project management fees incurred. The Group manages the
construction projects on behalf of certain customers, and earns
a pre-determined service fee for the services provided.

The balance represents tender deposits for bidding of land use
rights, which will be subsequently refunded or transferred to
prepayments for leasehold land upon successful bidding.

Prepaid tax and surcharges are levied when the Group receives
advances from customers and the prepaid taxes are recorded
as prepayments before the relevant revenue is recognised.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZER) BGRLA

10 EZ R HBUCKEME MK

5 (#&)
Hist -
(@) BEAKATENREARLIANREMRA -

SZEPIEPNERERERGEDE -

ZEBERRBA X NNFBNZE
R AR A B BT YR B 08 -

I8 B AR5 e W IR i B A MY R SRR
AREBEEERR B EPWE R H
RAfpEages - AEERKRETEFE
38 5 3R IR B I BRER TR ST T MY AT ER A
RIS E ARFS 2

& AR R AR T R R RIRR
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BREHETBNTE -

BENHRBERMEME R A EERZP
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

10 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 10 ES R EMEWRREMALRK

PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 15 (#&)
The loss allowance provision for other receivables as at 31 20184 Kk2017412H31H © H fis
December 2018 and 2017 are reconciled to the opening loss JE WS SR TE B [ 18 E MR R B 2 R Y
allowance for that provision as follows: HA) BB E BRI T
Other
receivables
H fth FE UL R IE
RMB’000
AR For
At 1 January 2017 201751 A1 H 1,196
Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or 718 %5 F1 FE SR A 5 18 YE 5 B i
loss (Note 24) (K1a£24) 2,061
Receivables written off as uncollectible 0 58 1 AT 5 = A FE Wi IR (2,564)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 693
At 1 January 2018 1201841 H1H 693
Provision for loss allowance recognised in A8 75 FR SR A 5 18 ZE (S B
profit or loss (Note 24) (Hfet24) 10,704
At 31 December 2018 2018 12H31H 11,397
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of each NEREBPERKAZHRAEE
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivables B2 A Ll &R WK IERERE(E -
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral $%Iﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁuu o
security.
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair value of trade M20184F Kk2017612H31H * B 5
and other receivables and prepayments approximates their N H b e W sRIB N TE N FRIE R A FE
carrying amounts. HHIREEMRE ©
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts M20184F K2017612A31H * & 5
of trade and other receivables and prepayments are all T H fth fE W SR IB AN TR A SRIB R BR T (B
denominated in RMB. 2EAAREHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

11 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 11 RAFEZEEBEARNESR

PROFIT OR LOSS aE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AR For
Listed securities — held-for-trading RS - BHEEE
Equity securities — PRC BAES — & 190 222
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent BEATEBBESARNEREERE
shares listed in the PRC for trading purpose. R E EMMER S B BRI GD o
12 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 12 RERBITEER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents (a) RERBRESEEY
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Cash at banks H|ITER 418,932 164,742
Cash on hand FEIRS 570 292
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEEY 419,502 165,034
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(a) Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

e B RRME

12 RERBITHEE (F)
(a) RERRESEY (&)

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Cash at banks and on hand SRIEARNFBERE

— denominated in RMB —UAREEE 372,772 164,327
— denominated in HKD — OB TR E 46,730 707
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEBY 419,502 165,034

The Group’s bank balances consist of bank deposits
carrying interests at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

(b) Restricted cash

AEBBTEBBIERENE A
B 117 A E KT BRI 32 8
BT -

(b) ERHFFRE

As at 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T AEBTFT

Deposits as security for customers’ MBEEIRIBEREAER
mortgage loans (a) #175%(a) 125,928 52,500
Deposits for issuing notes payable (b) FEITEMNZEMER(D) = 3,000
125,928 55,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

12 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Restricted cash (continued)

Notes:

(@) These bank deposits are restricted to secure the bank
loans taken by certain customers of the Group pursuant
to the local regulations of certain cities. Such deposits
will be released upon the issuance of property ownership
certificates.

(b) These bank deposits are restricted deposits held at banks
as security for issuing notes payable (Note 20).

13 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

12 RERBITERR (F)

(b) ZRHERE (&)

Hiat -

@ ZERITERBRAEAEES
FRERES TH M A5 %
R IR B A IR 1T B IR A IR
R ZETFRBRE L WERR
B RERE R T UARRRR o

b) ZERTERBRRITHAEN
ZRETFER ERBETENEE
HI¥ELR) (FE3E20) ©

13 RARRGRE

Authorised shares EIE R
Number of
authorised Authorised
shares share capital
EERMEE SETE B
HKD
BT
At 31 December 2017 H2017F12 A31H 38,000,000 380,000
Increase of authorised shares (a) YETE RR 1D 1L AN (a) 2,362,000,000 23,620,000
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12H31H 2,400,000,000 24,000,000
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13 SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

AND SHARE PREMIUM

13 BAK KRG RE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Issued shares 2ERITRG
Number of
ordinary Share Share
shares capital premium Total
EERYE [N R R E At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT ARETT
At 31 December 2017 M2017412831H 100,000 1 - 1
Issuance of ordinary shares (b) BITERR(D) 300,000,000 2,661 307,171 309,832
Capitalisation Issue (c) BEAR(E17(0) 899,900,000 7,983 (7,983) -
At 31 December 2018 20185124318 1,200,000,000 10,645 299,188 309,833
Notes: Vo=
(@ On 22 October 2018, pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution, (a) M2018F10H22H @ 1R & MK R &

the authorised share capital of the Company was increased to
HKD24,000,000 divided into 2,400,000,000 shares of HKDO0.01
each.

On 12 November 2018, the Company issued 300,000,000 new
ordinary shares at par value of HKDO.01 per share for cash
consideration of HKD1.24 each, and raised gross proceeds of
approximately HKD372,000,000 (equivalent to RMB329,994,000),
in connection with its global offering and commencement of
the listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange on the same
date. The excess over the par value of RMB2,661,000 for the
300,000,000 shares issued, net of the transaction costs of
approximately RMB20,162,000, was credited to share premium
with an amount of RMB307,171,000.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution dated 22 October 2018,
the directors were authorised to capitalise HKD8,999,000
(approximately RMB7,983,000) upon Listing, standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company by
applying such sum in paying up in full at par 899,900,000
shares for allotment and issue to shareholders of the Company
(the “Capitalisation Issue”) to their then shareholdings in the
Company.

BE AQAHETEBRAENE
24,000,000/ 7L * % 432,400,000,000
B REEC.0ETL AL ©

MN20185E11A128 - KA R H 2
BREEE K H B R R B 72 B 2 BT F
A ETIREREEC.OIBTEITT
300,000,0000% ¥ & & A% » LA # B}
FREBEI4ETHRERE &
& BT 15 3% 1B 42 %8 49372,000,000/%
7T (FE W A R#329,994,0007T) °
300,000,000/ B #/T&H M &
HBEmEmENITS ARE2661,0007T
(F1 B 2 5 B A8 #920,162,0007T) 2
A B A R¥307,171,0007T B A%

(8 o

B B 8 52018510 A22H B iR R
RER EBRERER ETMRERA
7 P& 12 )i 18 BR 7R 8,999,0007% 7T (49
A R #7,083,0007T) W R BE T E
N TEHAZEFRBRETEHL
899,900,000/% A& 1 + LA AN A &) A&
RIRMEE RN R MR FI R
BRETRD ([BEAMEET]) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

14 RETAINED EARNINGS 14 REZEF
RMB’000
AREFT
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 A1 H 199,774
Profit for the year FFHE 147,794
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves B R T BRGNS (M1 15(c))

(Note 15(c)) (8,761)
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 MR2017E12 A31H k201841 H1H 338,807
Profit for the year FRFHE 224,505
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves ERE SR TE RBREE (MiE15(c)

(Note 15(c)) (14,277)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12 A31H 549,035

15 OTHER RESERVES 15 Htf#E
Statutory Asset
Capital Merger surplus revaluation
reserve reserve  reserves reserve Total
EXGE EOEE LERMGRE EEELREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 16,174 4,774 70,758 4,027 95,733
Transactions with non- B RERNR 5

controlling interests 50 - - - 50
Appropriation to statutory HERE LT REBEEC)

surplus reserves (c) - - 8,761 - 8,761
At 31 December 2017 and  R2017F12H318 K

1 January 2018 20181 A1H 16,224 4,774 79,619 4,027 104,544
Appropriation to statutory BEEEERBFHE(C)

surplus reserves (c) - - 14,277 - 14,277
At 31 December 2018 M2018%12A31H 16,224 4,774 93,796 4,027 118,821
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(@)

Capital reserve as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 represents
the difference of aggregate consideration paid by the Group for
acquisition of non-controlling interest of existing subsidiaries and
the aggregate carrying amount of those non-controlling interest,
after elimination of investments in subsidiaries.

Merger reserve as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 represents
the difference of aggregate consideration paid by the Group for
the acquisition of subsidiaries and the aggregate capital of the
subsidiaries acquired during the Group’s reorganisation for the
Listing.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the PRC subsidiaries, these subsidiaries
registered in the PRC shall appropriate 10% of its annual
statutory profit (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the
statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) account. When the balance of
SSR reaches 50% of the registered capital/share capital of these
subsidiaries, any further appropriation is optional. The SSR can
be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase paid-in
capital. However, SSR shall be maintained at a minimum of 25%
of registered capital/share capital after such utilisation.

The SSR are non-distributable for cash dividends except in the
event of liquidation and are subject to certain restrictions set

out in the relevant PRC regulations.

e PR ERR M

15 Htif#E (&)

(@)

BB RN

R20184 K2017F12 A31H B & &
EEEAEE U EIR A B A Rl 3E
RS S MR BN (BB R F IR
R 225 R T A0 (A S A BT /B A R O 4%
Blem =% -

R20184 K2017F12 A31H B9 & 6
REEERAEE A LT mETEAS
M AEEBUEHE AR
BREEMMKENIE AR E N EREN
= o

R AP B A B Ko R BB A AR 4
SRAA ZEETEEMOMER
B EFAMEEENE (EEHEEM
BEFEBER) HO10%EAEE
BrfEE (DEERGBERD RP -
BAERRREBHEREINZEZNBER
ARMER RAME0%I% - AlATE
BROE—FTEE - EERRFEER
RN B EFEERREMNE K
o R - EERERER - BRE
ERBRFBRBATONEMER /KA
#925% °

ATEBBRFEESABR D

EBERE - YREBNETHEEPBEE
FFTIR S o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

16 BANK BORROWINGS AND ENTRUSTED LOANS

16 RITERKRERERK

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFT
Long-term borrowings REIER
- Banks, secured (a) —#R17 - BHEA () 59,000 308,000
Less: Current portion of long-term B REG R BIEE o
borrowings
— Banks, secured (a) —R17 - B () (30,000) (140,000)
Subtotal /et 29,000 168,000
Current borrowings RENER
— Banks, secured (a) — R17 - B (a) 166,000 162,000
— Entrusted loans from third parties, —REE=FMETLERK
secured (a) B () - 100,000
166,000 262,000
Add: Current portion of long-term hn - REAE KA BNEAEL
borrowings
- Banks, secured (a) — #R1T - I () 30,000 140,000
Subtotal /INET 196,000 402,000
Total st 225,000 570,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16 BANK BORROWINGS AND ENTRUSTED LOANS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) The Group’s bank borrowings and entrusted loans from third
parties are secured by property, plant and equipment (Note 6),
investment properties (Note 7) and properties held or under
development for sale (Note 9) of the Group.

(b) At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s long-term bank
borrowings and entrusted loans were repayable as follows:

e B RRME

16 RITERREZTXER (&)

Hat

(@)

AEBEBRTEARREF=ZTHERE
ERANAEEHYE - BB KRR E
(Kist6) - REME (MFE7) RFEFE
HEXRABERFENE (HF) (R
A -

R20184F K2017F12H31H * &N &
ENRBIRITERREZTERERT
HIFFEEE -

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFr
Between 1 and 2 years 1226 29,000 139,000
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE5F - 29,000
29,000 168,000

The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

MN20184 K%2017412 8318 & i &
FHEBRFEOT ¢

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
Bank borrowings and entrusted loans ~ $R{TEZR R EFEER 7.67% 8.01%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

16 BANK BORROWINGS AND ENTRUSTED LOANS 16 IRITERRZEZTLTER (&)

(CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group’s long-term bank borrowings and
entrusted loans to interest rate changes and the contractual
repricing dates or maturity whichever is the earlier date is as

AR B RBRITERREEERHF
= HER R A R EH B A L
B (ABRRERE) 10T :

follows:
6 months 6-12 1-5
or less months years Total
ERERA 6212184 1255 At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETT AREFT AEKTT AREFT
Amounts included in FTAERE B RRIFIE -
non-current liabilities:
As at 31 December 2018 2018124318 - - 29,000 29,000
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H = = 168,000 168,000
Amounts included in FTATRBI A EMFIE
current liabilities:
As at 31 December 2018 ®2018%F12A318 116,000 80,000 - 196,000
As at 31 December 2017 R2017512 8318 346,000 56,000 - 402,000

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair values of bank
borrowings and entrusted loans approximate their carrying
amounts.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all bank borrowings and
entrusted loans are denominated in RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

17 OTHER LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 17 HttREIER
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETF T
Other long-term borrowings H b REAE
— Non-financial institutions, secured (a) — e EkE - GEMRQ) 245,000 275,000
— Non-financial institutions, unsecured — JEE R iR - K 600,510 952,676
— Deferred fees for loan facilities —EHERRENELEF - (3,106)
845,510 1,224,570
Less: Current portion of other long-term s Bt R EIE R A BN ER 20
borrowings
- Non-financial institutions, secured (a) — EE RikEE - B (a) (110,000) (243,916)
- Non-financial institutions, unsecured — e BE - EIKIE (161,340) -
— Deferred fees for loan facilities — EHERRMENRLEE A - 3,106
(271,340) (240,810)
574,170 983,760

Note:

Other long-term borrowings mainly represent borrowings relating
to projects under various urban redevelopment schemes. The
non-financial institutions are designated by the local governments,
who get funding directly from banks and then use the funding to
finance project developers under such schemes.

(@) As at 31 December 2017 these other long-term borrowings are
secured by guarantees given by related parties (Note 34(b)(1)(vii)).

Hiat -

HRPEREREAZBMF R UER
THIEEHBENER - FFERE BRI
BFHEE  RERNRTESES - AR
RZEEABAMtEMNEEFHEREHRE

(@) M2017F12A31H - ZEH &5
fi& 3K e BB 77 B2 ¢ A PR AR MR EEL AR (B
#E34(0)(1)(vii)) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

17 OTHER LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s other long-term
borrowings were repayable as follows:

17 HtREER (&)

20184 K2017F12831H » &N £
BErmEMRHAERER TYEREE
=

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Between 1 and 2 years 15224 262,960 212,668
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE5F 250,210 539,092
Over 5 years 59 E 61,000 232,000

574,170 983,760

The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

R20184F K&20179F12H31H & N #&
FHEBRFEMT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
Other long-term borrowings H b REAER 5.08% 5.17%

21 4 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

17 OTHER LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

(CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group’s other long-term borrowings to

interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates or

maturity whichever is the earlier date is as follows:

17 HtRHEIER (&)

AEBEMEAEROFNEREFHAK
FAREHFEEAXEHE (UKL
BEIAYE) @F :

6 months 6-12 1-5
or less months years Total
6EAZMUR  6ZE12fEA 1255 #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETT AREFT AREETT
Amounts included in STAFERBEENFR :
non-current liabilities:
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12 A31H 432,330 - 141,840 574,170
At 31 December 2017 20179124318 756,430 = 227,330 983,760
Amounts included in ATARBI AR -
current liabilities:
At 31 December 2018 R201856F12A31H 168,780 102,560 - 271,340
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 146,246 94,564 - 240,810

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair value of other

long-term borrowings approximates their carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all other long-term

borrowings are denominated in RMB.

20184 K20179F12H31H » H 1y
RHERNAFTEEHEREES -

R20184F K2017F12A318 * AT &
Hih REIEFIGIAARESTE -
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e PR RRME

18 OTHER CURRENT BORROWINGS

18 H R B &K

As at 31 December

MA12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AEBETFT

Interest bearing borrowings from third

FE=TtRER

parties - 6,902
Interest bearing borrowings from non- JES R E T B e
financial institutions - 60,000
- 66,902
19 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 19 ERIAE
As at 31 December
M12A831H

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARET T

Contract liabilities aEAE 2,030,488 1,362,350
The Group receives payments from customers based on AEEKRERME TN RELHERE
billing schedule as established in contracts. Payments are PR - EBENFBERIERE
usually received in advance of the performance under the RELMKE  mMzEEREERE
contracts which are mainly from sales of properties. The YIFHE - R2018F NS REBERAT
change in contract liabilities in 2018 was mainly attributable SHFTERHNEASESRHEER
to the increase of the proceeds received from the Group’s B FT S R IE B PTG R AT ©

contracted sales.

21 6 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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e B RRME

19 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 19 ERE&E (&)

TRIVRN2017F 22018 F st E A
REEMEINKLATE -

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
during 2017 and 2018 relates to carried-forward contract
liabilities.

Year ended 31 December
HBZE12A31ALLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T AREFT
Revenue recognised that was included in st A ¥4 B A BELH
the contract liabilities balance at B HERIA
the beginning of the year 1,145,255 695,253

EEEBH - H 220184 K20174
12A31BPREREXRBHETNE
REEBR Ty HEEREMENS

Management expects that the contract amounts allocated
to unsatisfied performance obligations as of 31 December
2018 and 2017 will be recognised as revenue from sales of

properties during the following periods: Frg 4 A -
As at 31 December

M12H318
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#F T AREFT
Expected to be recognised within one year T8HIR — S AR 996,328 1,046,668
Expected to be recognised after one year FEHAA —F 18R 1,514,927 722,342
2,511,255 1,769,010
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

20 EZRHEHMENRE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Trade payables B HEMNRIA 658,763 566,818
Notes payable (Note 72) EREE (Hat12) - 3,000
Trade payables and notes payable B 5N E R ENEE 658,763 569,818
Interest payable FEFIE 57,171 53,946
Construction deposits from suppliers HEEERIRS 39,997 41,848
Deposits received from customers EREFES 34,000 59,347
Value-added-tax and other taxes payable  $&{E 7% 5 E fth fE {5 74 18 26,585 42,057
Accrued payroll ERIE 18,319 15,522

Construction deposits from related parties BB 77 Rz & (K1a234(c)(iii)

(Note 34(c)(iii) 18,304 17,915
Temporary funding payables (a) Fahs &4 N IE () 11,770 14,889
Maintenance fees collected on behalf RIBREE 805 2,495
Amounts due to related parties JE A~ BRI 75 2B (H17E34(c)(i)

(Note 34(c)(ii)) - 12,486
Others Hib 8,690 7,291

874,404 837,614
Note: HieE -

(@) Temporary funding payables are non-interest bearing payables

to third parties.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the ageing analysis of trade

payables and notes payable based on invoice date are as

follows:

e B RRME

20 B R EMENKIE (F)

R20184F K2017F12A31H » E R
BEAHNE S EMNRERENEER
RBRER D ATZN T ¢

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARET T

Less than 1 year 1R 594,542 537,639
Between 1 and 2 years 13224 35,784 19,679
Between 2 and 3 years 2FE3F 19,647 9,807
Over 3 years 3FE 8,790 2,693

658,763 569,818

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair value of trade and
other payables approximates their carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts of

trade and other payables were denominated in the following

R20184F K2017F12A31H » & 5
LEMEMAZIEN A FEEARTE
HBE o

R20184F K2017F12A31H » & 5
R E RN RIERRBEEMN TS
FTHE

currencies:
As at 31 December
A12H831H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREF T
RMB AREE 874,404 823,540
UsD ETT - 12,793
HKD BT - 1,281
874,404 837,614
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

21 EIEFREB

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFT
Deferred tax assets: EERBIEEE !
— To be recovered after more than — @ 2fE A & Uk Bl
12 months 27,553 16,441
— To be recovered within 12 months — &R 1218 B AUk E 30,037 29,590
57,590 46,031
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFEEE
— To be settled after more than 12 months — #7112 1@ A 14 (&1 (5,609) (1,327)
- To be settled within 12 months — & 12(8 A RER (13,657) (6,655)
(19,266) (7,982)
Deferred tax assets, net EIERIAE EEF AR 38,324 38,049
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is EEFTISTAR B RV E )15 R E T
as follows: W
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFT
At beginning of the year FHJ) 38,049 25,772
Credited to the consolidated statement of st A4ZE&Ezx (H1:728)
profit or loss (Note 28) 275 12,277
At end of the year FR 38,324 38,049

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities amounting to approximately RMB9,567,000 (31
December 2017: RMB11,323,000) were offset.

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Provision
for
impairment
of properties
held for

e B RRME

21 REFRISH (&)

Land

sale and appreciation

Tax losses  receivables
BELENE
AER

tax

REER EUFERE  LHREHR
RMB000  RMB000  AMB'000
NERTTL  ARRTL  ARETR

MR2018F12A31H » BHH AR
9,567,0007T (20174128318 :© A
K 11,323,0007T) YR EF IH & &=
RRIETRIEE B R o

# £20184F N2017412A31H Ik F
B EEBEEERABENES (I
Rt RAEE - AEE R AR 4
) T -

ELERAEE

Temporary
differences

on

recognition
of revenue

and cost
of sales Accruals Others Total
BRUAR
BERAN
HRMER  EiRAE Aft @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT  AREFT AEETT  AREFT

At 1 January 2017 W2017E1 A1H 2,542 11,700 10,021 22,588 124 791 47,766
(Charged)/credited to the (H8)/ARE

consolidated statement of BRK

profit or loss (2,291) (10,279) 1,274 17,344 3,480 60 9,588
At 31 December 2017 ®2017F12A318 251 1,421 11,295 39,932 3,604 851 57,354
At 1 January 2018 "2018%1 A18 251 1,421 11,295 39,932 3,604 851 57,354
Credit/(charged) to the A/ (H8) 4

consolidated statement of Bak

profit or loss 378 2,570 3,273 8,506 (2,269) (773) 9,803
At 31 December 2018 12018%12A31H 629 3,991 14,568 48,438 1,335 78 67,157
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

21 REFRISH (&)

Deferred tax liabilities BEZEBEEE
Temporary
Temporary differences
differences on
on recognition Undistributed
recognition of fair value profits of
of revenue Land gains on PRC
and cost appreciation investment subsidiaries
of sales tax  properties (Note 28) Total
BRRE HE
BRBRAR MEATE HEQARH
HERAH WS R IRAE
TRMER  THEEH 2 ORMER (Hii#28) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ANREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AEEFT
At 1 January 2017 201741 A1 8 13,730 2,215 6,049 - 21,994
(Credited)/charged to the (3t A\)/HBEL&A
consolidated statement BEX
of profit or loss (2,886) (187) 384 - (2,689)
At 31 December 2017 #2017F12A31H 10,844 2,028 6,433 = 19,3056
At 1 January 2018 201851 H1H 10,844 2,028 6,433 - 19,305
Charged to the MeZaBsx
consolidated statement
of profit or loss (2,525) (619) 353 12,319 9,528
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 8,319 1,409 6,786 12,319 28,833
In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses BIEREERFR IR A EERE 4
could be carried forward for a period of five years to offset ERHIEEE RN E R R ERR
against its future taxable profits. Deferred tax relating to FE - EBARBAMIBEEEEBENIET
unutilised tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is FRIE T A B] BB & 99 FE =3 £ Al B AT (4
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow B ZIELEFTEE ERFER °

such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
RMB6,329,000 (31 December 2017: RMB7,105,000) in respect
of tax losses amounting to approximately RMB25,317,000 as
at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: RMB28,420,000).
All these tax losses will expire within five years from the end
of the respective years they arose.

e B RRME

21 REFRISH (&)
EEHEEE (A)

72018F12 318 « ANEE W EFLF
HET B4 A R #25,317,0007T (2017
F12A318 : A & #28,420,0007T)
TERIRIL P15 & BE A R %6,329,000
ot (2017512A81H: A R #&
7,105,0007t) ° Fi B Z E B EEE
BESELFEREAFARES -

REVENUE 22 WA
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥FT ARMEF T
Sales of properties MEHE 1,881,364 1,547,123
— Recognised at a point in time — PNE—REEER 1,376,710 1,280,883
- Recognised over time — R — RN RER 504,654 266,240
Rental income e WA 2,239 2,755
1,883,603 1,549,878
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23 OTHER LOSSES - NET

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

23 HitEiE — F8

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILFEE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Listing rewards from local government 5 BT R _E T 2R 1,300 -
Donations Ei=k (5,002) (625)
Exchange (losses)/gains B3 (&), M= (2,810) 762
Penalties, fines and compensations for R R HER RS
late delivery of properties SR K mE (72) (1,270)
Fair value losses on financial assets at BRATHEERBER AR
fair value through profit or loss CREENATEBRE (32) (172)
Losses on disposal of property, HEYE  BELRENER
plant and equipment (6) (3)
Gains on reversal of payables 185 0 jE 5 R Y W - 2
Others Hity 48 (61)
(6,574) (1,367)

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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e B RRME

24 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

24 RUEEEATHNEHN

AEAERAE - HERTHHEREMX

ARITHRAXHER D

ran

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Costs of properties recognised in profit or  FAE R HER W) 2 AL AR
loss
— Land use rights and demolition and — K H R A8 B8 BT 47 BN 18 Y
resettlement costs, after deducting o {5 FR#E R B AT
related government grants ZEEH 324,850 277,768
— Construction costs and capitalised — BERARER A
expenditures 834,870 686,950
— Interest capitalised — BAREFE 78,386 134,631
Tax and surcharges (a) FHIE LK INE o) 8,857 39,881
Staff costs (Note 26) BIKA (Hfatze) 59,454 47,835
Advertising and publicity costs EEREEKAR 19,421 12,117
Listing expenses (b) R (o) 14,555 7,581
Office and meeting expenses MAEREHRER 12,938 11,415
Professional fees (b) EXEBH(D) 9,757 3,138
Entertainment expenses BEE 9,615 8,852
Stamp duty and other taxes ENFERE R H Ath B 18 8,911 7,771
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - B KR
equipment (Note 6) e (Hize) 4,707 3,034
Sales agent commission HERERS 2,967 -
Rental expenses HeER 2,711 1,950
Travelling expenses EIRE 2,219 1,170
Bank charges RITZ 72 103
Allowance for impairment of receivables FEWFIRRE
(Note 10) B (BiE10) 10,704 2,061
Other expenses HiE 3,404 2,352
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing — $HE&ERKA - tHE N T ISHE
expenses and administrative expenses S A R AT S /B RE 1,408,398 1,248,609
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

24 EXPENSES BY NATURE (CONTINUED)

(@)

Prior to 1 May 2016, the PRC companies of the Group are
subject to business tax and surcharges. Business tax is levied
at 5% of revenue from sale of properties and rental income.
Surcharges are levied at 2% to 7% of business tax.

From 1 May 2016, revenue from selling properties and rental
income of the PRC companies of the Group are subject to
value-added-tax (“VAT”). The standard tax rate is 11% which
has been reduced to 10% since 1 May 2018. Certain sales of
properties and rental income of the Group are qualified for the
simplified tax rate of 5% but the input VAT is not deductible.

Listing expenses for 2018 include auditor’s remuneration of
approximately RMB2.1 million (2017: RMB1.0 million) for their
listing services as reporting accountant. Professional fees for
2018 include auditor’s remuneration of RMB1.6 million (2017:
Nil) for their annual audit services.

In addition, an amount of RMBO0.7 million for auditor’s listing
services was charged to share premium account upon listing of
the Company in 2018. There was no amount incurred for non-
audit services of auditor.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZER) BGRLA

24 BRUEEEINER (&)

(@)

R20164F581H 25l * AEE K F
Bl AR ZBMMEETR R ME o &%
Iz EHERAREEWARS%
B M INE RIE A X H2%E
7% °

BH2016F5 10 AEEFREQ
AIMMEHERARBASKRAESH
MIBER ([BEF]) - HIZER K
B11% » 820184581 H # F M &
10% ° NEEMOE T EHESERA
S AEAFA%NEHE 8
ETEIEE R AT,

2018F /T A X B 48 3t A= 2k A
EBRFE MR EMRE M
NHZEMMEeOARE21H5E
JC (20175 : ARBA10BE L) ©
2018FMBEXBHBRERFERZ
RIS MRS E ARE1.66
BT (20178 : &)

BESN - B RAZERED £ RIS EV IR A
R¥0.78 & TN20185F AR A £
1& B B s ERRFNER o BEE B A ERED
B SERBURTS E £ E I FRR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS)

e B RRME

25 BB ()

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Finance income A
— Interest income on bank deposits — RITFHRF B YA 993 785
Finance costs B 7% X 2R
— Interest on bank borrowings and — IRITIERREZTLER
entrusted loans, other long-term H b REAE R EAD
borrowings and other current mENfE K F B
borrowings (98,466) (139,508)
— Interest on pre-sale deposits received — BRFEE RS TS (41,628) (31,995)
(140,094) (171,498)
Amount capitalised BRI HE 94,823 143,273
Finance costs expensed B 3 SH A B IS A AR (45,271) (28,225)
Finance costs — net SR — FEE (44,278) (27,440)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

26 STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

26 ETRA (BREESHE)

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARET T

Wages and salaries IENHS 48,033 40,234
Pension RIS 7,052 3,837
Other welfare benefit expenses HibEHE R 4,369 3,764

59,454 47,835

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
approved and conditionally adopted by the shareholders of the
Company by way of a written resolution on 22 October 2018
for the primary purpose of recognising and acknowledgedly
the contribution of the directors, employees and other eligible
parties who have made valuable contribution to the Group.

As of the date of this annual report, no option has been
granted agree to be granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA

ARABIREN2018F10 422 B IAE ™
RFRRA A N BOE KB GRGRANER
R E ((ERERE)) 2B/ A
RORRAUESE BEERYEAEEHIE
HESERMEMEBREHATED
HEf -

BEAFREY  SEREBERES
ERLBEREARERL - 176 &
S AT A b sl EL R A
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e B RRME

27 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS,
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments of the Company’s directors paid/payable
by the companies comprising the Group are set out

27T EE - LEBEBROHFMALHNE
FEREZRSREEEMS

(a) EBRESTHRAENHE

AEBETERAREN /EAAR
NEEZENHEHEIIMT

below:
Salaries Retirement Other
and other Discretionary scheme social
Name of director Fees allowances bonus contributions  welfares Total
ExpE e HEREMEY  BETA4 BHRGEET HtieEd @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETFT AREFT ABETT ARETT AEBETT AREFZ
Year ended BZE2018%
31 December 2018 12A31ALEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Li Xiao Bing k& - 360 300 80 20 760
Ms. Qi Chun Feng BEERLL - 360 300 103 20 783
Mr. Wang Quan FREE - 282 144 71 20 516
Mr. Wang Zhen Feng FRET A - 390 300 114 20 824
- 1,392 1,044 368 80 2,882
Independent executive BVH¥HTEE
directors
Mr. Lee Kwok Lun TEEELE - 46 - - - 46
Mr. Fang Cheng AitEE - 46 - - - 46
Mr. Wei Jian Rlka - 46 - - - 46
- 138 - - - 138
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

27 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS,

27 EE - LEBEBROHFMALNE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR FIREERSREEEMS
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#&)
(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments @ EERBESTHRAENMSE
(continued) (%)
Salaries Retirement Other
and other  Discretionary scheme social
Name of director Fees  allowances bonus  contributions welfares Total
Exfty e HeRkHEMm=2E  BEEL RAGEHRK HtireRh 83
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ABEFT ARETT ABEFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
Year ended HZE2017%F
31 December 2017 12A31BILFE
Executive directors HITEZE
Mr Li Xiao Bing FINkE&E - 300 160 62 18 540
Ms Qi Chun Feng BEERLL - 300 300 89 18 707
Mr Wang Quan TiERE = 264 150 60 18 492
Mr Wang Zhen Feng FRETA - 360 300 100 18 778
- 1,224 910 311 72 2,517

No inducement fees, employer’s contribution to pension
schemes or compensation for loss of office as directors
were given to any of the directors for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

There was no chief executive who was not also a director
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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B £2018%F K2017F12831H
IEFE - WERERE S0
BE EXEESFTEIMERE
TEEHE -

HZE20184F k2017412 H31H
IFE  EEWEREBEEMZH
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e B RRME

27 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, 27 EE - HBBREFMALTHE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR FEEZRENREEEN

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (4&)

(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EERBRESEFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest # £2018F K&2017F12H31H
in the Group for the years ended 31 December 2018 WEEE  AEEN A AR5 0
and 2017 include three directors whose emoluments ATBRER=ZF2FF BEZ0He
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The ER SIS R - & %2018
emoluments payable to the remaining two individuals #F &2017F12A318 Ik F & -
are as follows for the years ended 31 December 2018 ERH%BTRA A THEHE S BIH
and 2017: FEAT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A310LLFEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETF T
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other A% & - B =28
allowances and other benefits in kind H a2k R BN = 1,438 1,226
The annual emoluments fell within the following bands: NFTIEFENFES

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174

Annual emoluments bands FE S & A
HKD Nil to HKD1,000,000 0% t2 1,000,000 7T 2 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

27 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, 27 EE - hBBREFMALTHE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
director or any of the five highest paid individuals received
any emolument from the Group as an inducement to
join, upon joining the Group, leave the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

(c) Senior management’s emolument

The senior management’s annual emoluments (excluding
directors) fell within the following bands:

AIREasREREEZENS
(4&)

(b) & =2018%F K&2017F12H31H
IEFE  WEBBFNER A L&
= 5 B A T B 78 & B Y ER A {a] B
©1EAIIA SN A R & B ) 5%
B HAE BB AE o

(c) BREEEMS
EREREFEMNS (TEREE

=) WEM[MT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HILFEE

2018 2017
20184 20174

Annual emoluments bands FE 2 & A
HKD Nil to HKD1,000,000 0/t 21,000,000 7T 2 2

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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e B RRME

28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 28 Fr8%iBAX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AEETFT

Current income tax BNHAFT 15 %%

— PRC land appreciation tax — PR A (A R 83,701 66,456

— PRC corporate income tax — R ESR 112,476 70,408
196,177 136,864

Deferred income tax (Note 21) EEFTSR (M1aE21) (275) (12,277)

Total income tax charged for the year FRAMERY LR 195,902 124,587
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e PR RRME

28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 28 Fi8FiEAX (48)
The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs EAZN £ B /9 BR FR 1S B AT R B B B A
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the enacted BRARREARNEEE TS RARAM
tax rate of the home country of the companies within the ERNERMHETSNERDEE
Group as follows: EBEFBOT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HILEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Profit before income tax MR FT15 F B A E 425,763 273,996
PRC land appreciation tax AR £ I (E R (83,701) (66,456)
342,062 207,540

Income tax calculated at statutory rate of 1A E R EK25% =t E TSR

25% 85,516 51,883
Effect of expenses not deductible for TR AR HIBR A S 5 Y
income tax purposes (note) AW E (K1) 13,573 5,111
Tax losses not recognised as deferred tax KRR ARLEHIBEAE
assets B IAE R 793 1,187
PRC withholding tax (Note 21) TR (AfiE21) 12,319 -
PRC land appreciation tax B £ 3 2 (E F 83,701 66,456
Total income tax expense FriS iR 5 195,902 124,687
Note: Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes mainly KtaE - A ARIBRFT S A MRS = E4588
represent entertainment expenses in excess of the prescribed BRTE LRABEE - TAIHEAE
cap, non-deductible donations, and interest expenses without HEREAERENHERZE -

proper invoices etc.
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28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

PRC corporate income tax

Under the Corporate Income Tax (the “CIT”) Law of the PRC,
the CIT rate applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries located in
the PRC from 1 January 2008 is 25%.

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a withholding
tax at 10% for dividends distributed by a PRC-resident
enterprise to its immediate holding company outside PRC
for earnings generated beginning 1 January 2008 and
undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008
are exempted from such withholding tax. A lower 5%
withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate
holding companies are established in Hong Kong according to
the tax treaty arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong.

No deferred PRC withholding income tax was recognised
on the accumulated unremitted distributable profits up to
31 December 2017, which were generated by the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries and are attributable to the investors outside
the PRC. The Group controls the dividend policies of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that the accumulated
unremitted distributable profits up to 31 December 2017 will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

After the Company’s Listing in 2018, a new dividend policy
regarding profit distribution has been passed. Based on the
management’s best estimation, deferred income tax liabilities
of RMB12,319,000 as at 31 December 2018 have been
recognised for the PRC withholding tax that would be payable
upon remittance, in respect of a portion of the unremitted
distributable profits of certain PRC subsidiaries attributable to
the investor outside the PRC (31 December 2017: Nil).

e B RRME

28 FREHiFA (&)

HEI R ETEH

REB(PEARAMBREEMSTE)
(TEEMFHIELD - 1200851 H1H
RERARAE BT B E AR
MEEMEHRBER25% -

BEMREBREREEBMARE - +
HERMCEME2008F1 A1HEESE
B & R R A R B RN B B R A
AR AR S - BIR10%M B R B 78
MF - MR2008F1 A1H ZATEER
KOIRBHEARRZIENF o BIEHEH
HEBSEITNRWBELHE  BEE
ZRRARIRB BN - A EARIEKD
5%TEMBT X o

AEBWRBEAEEFRHERRE
£ BFRBIBRIMEE EBIEHEE2017
F12A31H RFHRIE W 7] 2 K B
PRI BTEHFEH - NEBZEH
ZEWBARMBREEE  BERTEE
E2017F12 831 AWM R REH ] 5
IRFDER A TE R RN T IR

AR QR FE2018F £ & @ @iE—
BA B BES RAOFR SR - BE
EIRE R & E 5T R2018412A
1B ERMPBRINREEEIEE
T A BB 8 & 7] EB 5 R B H A] 9k F)
WA RORELF AN FEH
EHRERECEMSHAEGEARK
12,319,0007T (20174128311 :
Z) o
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e PR RRME

28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 28 Fi8FiEAX (48)

PRC corporate income tax (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, deferred PRC withholding income
tax liabilities of RMB62,159,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB49,840,100) have not been recognised on the remaining
unremitted distributable profits of RMB621,591,000 (2017:
RMB498,401,000) of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

Land appreciation tax

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including lease charges for land use rights and all property
development expenditures, and is included in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss as income tax expense.

Hong Kong profits tax

The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5%. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax was provided as the
Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries did not have assessable
income subject to Hong Kong profits tax for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

Overseas corporate income tax

No provision for taxation has been recognised for companies
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands as they were not subject to any tax during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZER) BGRLA

FEERAEH (&)

MR2018%F12A31H * I K ot K &
B BB A A &R T R EE A 5 R
A8 A R #621,591,0007T (2017
F: A R #408,401,0007T) # R
EEFRBEBHAMGEHAEBEARKE
62,159,000 T (20174128314 :
AR#49,840,1007T) °

+ iR E

B+ 3 B (B B D 1% BRB0% E60%HY
REBR TG L IREREW - £
B8 /5 & W) 5 P 1S R IR R A] 11081 59
X (BRELwEREEHES L MMAE
MEZRRMAX)  XRGEEBHERAT
TEFSIRAX

BHEBAEH

BERONABEBNEHBTER16.5% o
# =20184F N&2017412A318 1k F
E - ARASERESNEBANE A
AN EEBARNEBFETEER
U - BB EEL B AT S HEE

IMESEFTER

#H £20184F N2017412A31H Ik F
B AREHRESHEREBHERRE
SRR AV NCIE Pk ¢ R i
18 - M ERR 2 E A R RERR T IE A o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year. In determining the weighted average number of
shares in issue during 2018 and 2017, the 899,900,000 shares
issued and allotted through capitalisation of the share premium
account of the Company upon Listing on 12 November 2018
were deemed to have been in issue since 1 January 2017.

e B RRME

29 BERER

FRREREF TR FE AR R R RER
BEABGEAREENERABETER
AR N EEE - REE2018F K&
2017 Y E B 1T AR (0 DA T 39 Bk -
2018F11 A12H L& B BB AA
AR R ERE AT REER
899,900,0000% iz 2 # 18 7% E. B2017
F1H1HEBET -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A318LLFEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
The Group’s profit attributable to owners of A @IEEA A JE(EAREE
the Company (RMB’000) FE (ARETT) 224,505 147,794
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 317 i A% it 52
in issue ('000) (FA) 940,274 900,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share FIRERNNEERR]
(expressed in RMB) (AAR®RERT) 0.24 0.16

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, diluted
earnings per share was equal to the basic earnings per share
as there were no dilutive shares.

#H E20184F 20174128318 |F F
[E - BREEEEERD - WEREE
BFRENSRERET -
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e PR RRME

30 DIVIDENDS 30 BB

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILFEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AEBETFT

(i) Dividend payable at the end of the (i) PA¥RE HA R B R A5 P B
reporting period - -

(ii) Dividend not recognised at the end of (i) R¥R45 HAK R R HIIE 2

the reporting period (Note) (Ff3E) 60,000 -
Note: On 28 March 2019, the Directors have recommended the Hfit - 1201993 A28H  EEEEZR A
payment of a final dividend of HK5.9 cents (equivalent to £2018F12A31H 1k F E Ik K &
approximately RMB5.0 cents) per fully paid ordinary share in REGRH R EERS.9BI (HER
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). Such B AREE500)(2017F : T) » %
proposed dividend is not recognised as a liability at year end. BERENFEREAERREE -
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e B RRME

31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31 #EeRE&REXRM T
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Net cash generated from operations (a) RETHEEHESFEEHE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Profit before income tax BR PS5 BT A 425,763 273,996
Adjustments for: NG S IBIEH A
— Depreciation of property, plant and — ¥  BENMREITE
equipment (Note 24) (Hiat24) 4,707 3,034
— Interest expenses (Note 25) — MERX (#:F25) 45,271 28,225
- Losses on disposal of property, — HEYE - BE KK
plant and equipment (Note 23) &8 (K1:723) 6 3
— Allowance for impairment of receivables — Ji& U 72X I8 5 {8 7 &
(Note 24) (Kit24) 10,704 2,061
— Interest income (Note 25) — FMBUWA (#1:t25) (993) (785)
— Fair value gains on investment —BEYEN AT EKES
properties (Note 7) (B15£7) (1,410) (1,534)
— Fair value losses on financial assets at — LA F{EFE BiEm AR
fair value through profit or loss NEMEENAT
(Note 23) BEE (Hi223) 32 172
Changes in working capital LEEREF
— Prepayments for leasehold land — EiﬂQTEHTAIE (165,122) 52,845
— Properties held or under — FEL B AT
development for sale FEWME (192,908) (517,494)
— Trade and other receivables and — B 5 RHEMEWFRIAE
prepayments MIBAS /I8 38,682 96,356
— Contract assets —&REE (721) (3,213)
— Contract liabilities —&5RAaE 622,867 498,446
— Trade and other payables B 5 &k E bR FIE 38,583 172,380
Net cash generated from operations KRB ELIRSF 825,461 604,492
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e PR RRME

31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Major non-cash transactions

(c)

On 21 December 2018, the Group signed a series of
settlement agreements with a non-financial institution and
the local government, under which the local government
repaid the Group’s borrowing due to the non-financial
institution amounting to RMB247,346,000 on behalf of
the Group for settlement of the Group’s receivables due
from the local government of the same amount.

On 18 July 2017 and 31 December 2017, the Group
signed a series of settlement agreements with a
non-financial institution and the local government,
under which the local government repaid the Group’s
borrowing due to the non-financial institution amounting
to RMB115,976,000 on behalf of the Group for settlement
of the Group’s receivables due from the local government
of the same amount.

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

31 ZEBE

mEBRMEE (&)

(b) EEFREXS

(c)

R2018F12821H » N &E H &
FERMEE R EHRFR — &
PIFNER R - BEUE - EHBUSR
RASEEEASEEMNES
B 7 5 50 A R #247,346,000
T AREEARNEBE R E K
FIHE R & 58 8 FE W 5K IE -

R2017F7 A138 K2017%F12A4
318 - AEEEFEREERE
T2 5] — RINF ARG =E - B
It EMBARERAEEERR
SEEMNIFECREBEBEERARE
115,976,0007T - AR EE XN &
5] & U5 3 I AT AR [R] <& B Y JE U
FKIE ©

HEWE  BERRBERER
b |

EGRaReRgxt LEY
% BEMREBREFRRRE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HILFEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARMF T

Net book value (Note 6) BRMEFE (Mit6) 172 27
Losses on disposal of property, HEME - BE &G

plant and equipment (Note 23) &8 (K1:723) (6) (3)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEEWE  WEKRKRE

plant and equipment Fr5 3R 166 24
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e B RRME

31 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31 #ZEBREREXRMT (&)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (d) BEETEREENEEHER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFIMEGHTEENASE
arising from financing activities, including both cash EEaENEHBEL BEHEeR
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing FECEE MEFDAEEN
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future BERRAEEEERERER
cash flow will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated PO BAREETYMEERNIR
statements of cash flows as cash flows from financing EREMNBAEIRKRERE °
activities.
Temporary
funding
payable
Bank (included in
borrowings Other Other trade and
and entrusted long-term current other
loans borrowings borrowings payables) Total
REESESN
RE (GFAES
RITEHR HtRE AftRE REMES
ZREH EES (EES NE) b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ANEETFT ARETFT ANRETFT ANREFT  AREFT
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1 718 755,520 1,465,864 94,506 55,273 2,371,163
Financing net cash flows BEFHENE (185,520) (134,930 (27,604) (27,455) (375,509)
Non-cash changes FReE - (106,364) - (443) (106,807
At 31 December 2017 1#2017%12A31H 570,000 1,224,570 66,902 27,375 1,888,847
At 1 January 2018 1201851 A1A 570,000 1,224,570 66,902 27,375 1,888,847
Financing net cash flows ~ EEEHR4&RE (345,000) (185,660) (16,062) (15,605) (562,327)
Non-cash changes FRLEY - (193,400) (50,840) - (244,240)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 225,000 845,510 - 11,770 1,082,280
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e PR RRME

32 COMMITMENTS
(a) Property development expenditure commitments

Property development expenditure committed at 31
December 2018 and 2017 but not yet incurred is as

32 &EiE

(a)

ESEL TS

MR20189F &2017512 A31H B %
EHESAEENMEZRRAI N

follows: T
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Contracted but not provided for BRI AEREE 627,756 551,323
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEHRE

The Group leases a building under a non-cancellable
operating lease agreement. The future aggregate minimum
lease payments under the non-cancellable operating lease
are as follows:

AEERBETAIHELEHED
AER—RET - TR HELE
HEETHORRRERES R
BREIT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARETT

Within 1 year 1FR 2,816 2,816
1-5 years 1ZE54F 8,800 9,416
Over 5 years 5% LA E 7,444 9,790

19,060 22,022
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33 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

e B RRME

33 MBERRIAREE

As at 31 December

M12A31H

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREFT
Guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities FLAEEHE TEREEH
for certain purchasers of the Group’s ZIBREE (EH B EIRGE)

properties (a) 2,098,954 1,446,708

2,098,954 1,446,708

Note:

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers
of the Group’s properties and provided guarantees to secure
obligations of these purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees
will terminate upon the earlier of (i) the issuance and transfer of
the real estate ownership certificate, or (i) the satisfaction of
mortgage loans by the purchasers of the properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default of
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principal together
with accrued interest owed by the defaulting purchasers to the
banks and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and
possession of the related properties after the relevant legal
procedures. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the date
of grant of mortgage. The Directors consider that the likelihood
of default of payments by the purchasers is minimal and therefore
the financial guarantee measured at fair value is immaterial.

HiaE

(@)

B RARBENETREE T
RITRE IR ERNWEREFRH
IR - REREBROEL REERE
HERBESE  H(i)MEEREMNE
BER UARFEERE) BRI -

RBERER  EREBEFERBRIZ
BERE  AEBEABERRTEE
EHBEERRNRBEASERER
ME - MAKBERERAARERERF
BAREERARMENR AEERA
B - AEBEWERAERLIZER
LG c EERRBEEHERNK
HRTBEMERR /N - Btk - RAFERE
TS ERIAERK o
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e PR RRME

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) Name and relationship with related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operation decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control. Members of key management and their close
family member of the Group are also considered as
related parties.

Name

mE BB

34 BBERS
(a) BERERMEBS HEE

AT ARNEERXIEEZE S
—71 REFLTBEREERE
BEHR—HTEERTEN
Bl SRR ) - ME ST XK
RIES] - Bl IR A% 248 B A -
AEET2EEEXNEB RS
IR AERARE TS o

Relationship with the Group
BEARKE R

Mr. Li Xiao Bing (Z=/J\ik)
ZNk S A

Mr. Li Dong Fa (ZEX)
TR EAE

Mr. Lin Pei Qing (#£1Z5)
MESB

Ms. Li Man (Z£)
FEu+

Ms. Lin Wei (#i48)
N R

Mr. Wang Zhen Feng (E1&I£)
TiRIE A+

Mr. Wang Quan (E1)
FREE

Ms. Qi Chun Feng (% &)
EER T
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Controlling shareholder of the Company
AN AP RR AR R

Member of Mr. Li Xiao Bing’s family
FNKFEENRIEKE

Member of Mr. Li Xiao Bing’s family
FINKFEENRIEKE

Member of Mr. Li Xiao Bing’s family
FINKFEENRIEKE

Member of Mr. Li Xiao Bing’s family
FINKFEENRIEKE

Director of the Company

ARAES

Director of the Company

ZAUNCIF-- 2

Director of the Company

ZAUNCIF-- 2
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34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Name and relationship with related parties
(continued)

Name

nE A8

e B RRME

34 BMLXRE (&)

(a) BHRERBSNEER (&)

Relationship with the Group
BEARKE R F

Mr. Zhang Jun Feng (3R{Z1£)
SRIBIE A

Mr. Li Shi Xun (ZEttt )
FHE) A

Ever Enrichment Enterprise Company Limited
(“Ever Enrichment”)
BEHEEBRAF ([MEFE])

Ever Enhancement Enterprise Company Limited
(“Ever Enhancement”)

BALEARAR (MEF])

Henan Hengda Investment Company Limited
(“Hengda Investment”) (Note)
AEEEREARAT (MBE2KE]) (Hi7)

Xuchang Hengda Property Management Co., Ltd.
(“Hengda Property Management”) (Note)
HEEEVMEERARAR ([BEMEER]) (Hi7)

Xuchang City Second Construction (Group)
Company Limited (“Xuchang Erjian”)
HEME _EZR (KE) BRAR ([FFEZ&])

Xuchang Hengjiu Industrial Development Co., Ltd.
(“Hengjiu Industrial”)
AEEABXERARAR ([BAEX])

Xuchang Hengda Plastics &Steels Co., Ltd.
(“Hengda Plastics & Steels”)
FFEEEBHARAR ([MEELH])

Family member of Ms. Qi Chun Feng
EREZTOREKE

Key management of the Company
AAREEBEERAS

Shareholder of the Company

ARAER

Shareholder of the Company

EN/NGI S

Controlled by Mr. Li Xiao Bing

H 25/ K 5T AR

Controlled by Mr. Li Xiao Bing

H 28Nk 5E A PR )

Controlled by Mr. Li Dong Fa

F 2= FRUA ST A2l

Controlled by Ms. Qi Chun Feng

H 25 A 2 R

Controlled by Mr. Zhang Jun Feng

B O (2 U6 55 A P2 )
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e PR RRME

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 34 BAE(A X3 (&)

(@) Name and relationship with related parties (a) BRENREBABLTNER (&)
(continued)
Note: Kzt
Mr Li Dong Fa disposed of his direct/indirect equity interest in TRZELXER2018F6 AMZF /KL
Hengda Investment and Hengda Property Management to Mr Li ENREEREAREEVEEENEE
Xiao Bing in June 2018. AR RE -
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HREBKLINRS
The following is a summary of the significant transactions NEEEEERFETHEAR
carried out between the Group and its related parties: SBEWT :
(1) Discontinued transactions with related (1) EEEBAMNERLRS
parties
(i) Provision of temporary funding to related () (A EG A 7 HE R g &
parties Ea

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILFEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AEBETFT

— Xuchang Erjian — e - 2,070
- Hengda Plastics & Steels — B8 28 i = 36,000
— Hengjiu Industrial —BAEZHE - 2,000
— Hengda Property Management — — [BiE % &8 - 1,089
— Ever Enrichment — 188 = 10
— Ever Enhancement — B Ff - 7

- 41,176
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34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

(1) Discontinued transactions with

parties (continued)

related

(i) Repayment of temporary funding from related

parties

e B RRME

34 BMLXRE (&)
(b) EHRBLINRZ (&)

(1) EFEBINERLERS
(4&)

(i) 2K E BEB T 1848 1) i
FEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HILEE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

— Xuchang Erjian — R 6,910 5,218
— Ever Enrichment — B4 19 -
— Ever Enhancement — 87t 18 -
— Mr Li Xiao Bing — Z/NKSEAE 1 =
- Hengda Plastics & Steels — {BE 2 i - 36,000
— Hengjiu Industrial —EAEE = 2,000
- Ms. Qi Chun Feng —EHRZ LT - 1,337

6,948 44,555
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e PR RRME

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

(1) Discontinued transactions with related
parties (continued)

(i)  Temporary funding received from related
parties

34 BMLXRE (&)

(b) EHRBLINRZ (&)

(1) EFEBEINERLERS
(4&)

(i) B BB 77 K BR &Y fi By

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31HILFEE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

- Hengda Investment —EERE - 23,566
— Hengda Property Management — — (B3 % &8 - 1,131
— Hengjiu Industrial —BAEHE = 15,000

- 39,697
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34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

(1) Discontinued transactions with related

parties (continued)

(iv) Temporary funding repaid to related parties

e B RRME

34 BMLXRE (&)

(b) EHRBLINRZ (&)

(1) EFEBINERLERS
(4&)

(v) E1Y T BT 0k b5 &

z

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HILEE

2018 2017

201845 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARMF T

— Mr. Li Xiao Bing — NREAE 12,486 -
— Hengda Investment —[EERE - 23,566
— Hengda Property Management — — (B3 % & 18 - 5,698
— Hengjiu Industrial —BAEZHE - 15,000
12,486 44,264

(v) Construction services provided by related

() BB HE i SR IR T

parties
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A318LLEFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEB¥For ARETFr
— Hengjiu Industrial —BAEE 3,801 4,218
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

(1) Discontinued transactions with

parties (continued)

related

(vi) Sales of properties to related parties

34 BMLXRE (&)

(b) EHRBLINRZ (&)

(1) EFEBEINERLERS
(4&)

(vi) (Al BGEE 77 1F 1 89 ) %
HE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HILFEE

2018 2017

20184 2017€

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFT

— Ms. Li Man —F8r+ 4,050 =
— Mr. Wang Zhen Feng — EiRIESEE 660 -
— Mr. Zhang Jun Feng — RBIELEAE 65 2,953
— Mr. Wang Quan — ERERE 7 427
- Ms. Lin Wei — MR 5 12,621
— Mr. Li Shi Xun — FHEEEE = 1,700
4,787 17,701

(vii) Guarantees provided by related parties for
other long-term borrowings of the Group

(i) BB BEA EE A H
1 2 H7 12 0 1E 2 9 I

S
As at 31 December
M12A831H

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR For
— Mr. Li Dong Fa — ZERASEAE - 150,000
— Mr. Li Xiao Bing — BNk - 200,000
- 350,000

250 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)
(2) Continuing transactions with related parties

(i)  Services provided by related parties

e B RRME

34 BMLXRE (&)
(b) EHRBLINRZ (&)
(2) HEHREBAINFERS

() BT IE IR

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

— Xuchang Erjian —HFE-& 41,348 348,271
— Hengda Property Management — — |83 % &8 4,560 4,437
45,908 352,708

(i) Key management compensation

Key management includes directors and senior
management staff. The compensation paid
or payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:

() FEZEEAEWE

TZEEANEREES
LERERAS - sE
BRSME BN
ZEEABNME IR
W

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HLLEE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARETT

Salaries and other short-term Fe hEMEHESRT

employee benefits 3,647 3,407
Post-employment benefits RIREF 579 338
4,226 3,745
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 34 BMA R 5 (&)

(c) Related-party balances (c) BAEER &Eeh
The Group has the following balances with related parties: RES B DA N 5 A R
() Amounts due from related parties (i) PEWERES RE

As at 31 December

MA12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AEBETFT

— Xuchang Erjian — e - 6,910
— Ever Enrichment — 188 = 19
— Ever Enhancement — 1B8F% - 18
— Mr. Li Xiao Bing — kA& = 1
- 6,948
The amounts due from related parties arose from FE U BB 75 s IE AR B B T a8 B 5 O B
temporary funding to related parties and are due on A4 B/ADHEM - ZZEils
demand. The receivables are unsecured, non-trade HAEER  ERFHEEBTEE °

in nature and bore no interest.

252 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) Related-party balances (continued)

The Group has the following balances with related parties:

(i)

(i)

Amounts due to related parties

e B RRME

34 BMLXRE (&)
(c) BB L& (&)
REB A LA T BB T A gk
(ii) FESERERTT FRIE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T AEETFT

— Mr. Li Xiao Bing — &Nk S A

- 12,486

Amounts due to related parties arose from temporary
funding from related parties and are due on demand.
The payables bear no interest. The payables are
non-trade in nature.

Construction deposits from related parties

&< B Bt 05 R IR 2R 5 [+ B e
TEBRNERES - BEZ
HARDAS o 3% S5 PR AN SRR AR
B o RERMNFRBNIE

(i) REBBAINEERS

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T AEBTFT

— Xuchang Erjian —HFE—& 16,821 16,262
- Hengda Property Management —BEYEER 31 73
- Hengjiu Industrial —BAEH 1,452 1,497
- Hengda Plastics & Steels — [BZ 2 = 83

18,304 17,915
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 34 BMA R 5 (&)

(c) Related-party balances (continued) (c) BAEER&5eh (48)
(iv) Trade payables due to related parties (ivi ERBEBESNESEMNR
b}
As at 31 December

M12H31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

— Xuchang Erjian — A 35,067 56,440
Trade payables due to related parties arose from FETERE 5 2 5 FE N FRIB R
purchase transactions. The payables bear no EREERS - ZERNFIA
interest. TEHE ©

(v) Interest payable due to related parties (v) ENBRBSNESFE

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARET T

— Mr. Lin Pei Qing — MIEE A& 20,128 20,128
Interest payable due to related parties arose from FE AR R FEN R B R B
temporary funding from related parties and other B ES REMTR
current borrowings. These balance are due on FEE o /BT EAED
demand. it o

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35 KRR BMRARRRBRES

RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY )]
As at 31 December
M12831H
2018 2017
20184 20174
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥ T AR For
ASSETS BE
Other receivables H fth pE U Fh18 259,611 4,305
Dividend receivable FEUR AR B 104,960 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIEELEEY 46,648 690
Total assets HEE 411,219 4,995
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of ZQFHEHE AE(LRER
the Company
Share capital ik 10,645 1
Share premium [ apapinki= (a) 299,188 =
Retained earnings/(accumulated REBEN (BTEEIE) (a)
losses) 65,316 (13,6306)
Total equity RS 375,149 (13,635)
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EHAbFEFIA 36,070 18,630
Total liabilities waeE 36,070 18,630
Total equity and liabilities HMEZREE 411,219 4,995

The statement of financial position of the Company was KD R B AR R & E 1201943 528
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2019 and BRHEEZEHERBATALIRAEER
was signed on its behalf by: Z

Li Xiao Bing Z /)N ik
Director =

Wang Zhen Feng T iRi&
Director &5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Note

(a)

Reserve movements of the Company

RATNMBRRRK #EE
B (&)

Hiat
(@) FLFNRERE

(Accumulated

losses)/

Retained

Share premium earnings

(BitEE),

B E REER

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETFT

Balance at 1 January 2017 R2017F1 1B &R = (5,319)
Comprehensive income ZHE W=

Loss for the year FREE = (8,317)

Total comprehensive income for the year F£R2HEIKZEA%E = (8,317)

Balance at 31 December 2017 "2017512H31 B &R = (13,636)

Balance at 1 January 2018 M20184%1 A1 H K& - (13,636)
Comprehensive income 2H K=

Profit for the year F A = 78,952

Total comprehensive income for the year FRZ2EFEEE - 78,952

Transactions with owners HEBANRS

Issuance of ordinary shares BITLBER 307,171 =

Capitalisation Issue B b EETT (7,983) -

Total transactions with owners HEBEANRZEE 299,188 -

Balance at 31 December 2018 7A2018F12 H31 B K& & 299,188 65,316

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

36 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 are set out below:

Subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI

Date of
incorporation/  Authorised/
Company name establishment Paid up capital
EMRL,
NGRS R B BE/BREX

e B RRME

36 EARFE

MR2018%F K2017F12H31H & &
B A RRFEBERGIAT

TR 5 B8 AE TR 5B S o 1 R L RO B R

AL

Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at

31 December

R12B31BELEREB DL

2018 2017  Principal activities

20185 2017F FEEK

Dadi Development Limited 10 June 2013 USD1
RiERAR DA 20136108  =iT1

100% 100% Investment holding
RERRK

Subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong

& B AR KB B 2 F)

Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at

31 December

Date of
incorporation/  Authorised/ M2A31HEEREE DL

Company name establishment  Paid up capital 2018 2017  Principal activities
3 oA

CEE ] 3 A 8 EE/ BRER 201845 20176 FEBEH

Dadi (Hong Kong) Enterprise 14 March 2012  HKD100 100% 100% Investment holding

Co., Limited
Kith (BB) EBERAT 2012938148 #7100

KA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

36 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 36 MiEB 2R R=1E (&)
Subsidiaries incorporated in PRC AR E MR KB AT

Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at

Date of 31 December
incorporation/ Authorised/ R12A31 AEERBENE DI
Company name establishment Paid up capital 2018 2017  Principal activities
i) A
AREB R BH EE/BREX 20184 20176 EEEE
‘000
7T
Henan Dadi Property 29 July 1992 usSD2,500 100% 100%  Investment holding
Development Company in the PRC
Limited (“Henan Dadi”)
] P A 3 B 3 E ) 3 19927298 712,500 100% 100% R EEIREZER
BRAR (DAmEAHM])
Xuchang Hengda Property 3 June 1998 RMB60,000 100% 100% Real estate
Group Company Limited development and
(“Xuchang Hengda) house renting in
the PRC
HEBERMESE 1998%6H3H  AR®¥60,000 100% 100% R EIRE HhE
BRRAE ([FEEE]) REREEHE
Xinyang Hengda Property 5 March 2008  RMB30,000 88.88% 88.88% Real estate
Development Company development in
Limited (“Xinyang Hengda”) the PRC
EEEERE hEME 2008%3A5H AR#30,000 88.88% 88.88% MHEINE HE
BR2AE (MEHEE]) ks
Yuzhou City Hengda Property 4 September RMB100,000 100% 100% Real estate
Company Limited (“Yuzhou 2009 development and
Hengda”) house renting in
the PRC
BNTEERMESREMT  2009F9A48 AK¥100,000 100% 100% RAEIRE HhE
R~ ([&MEE]) REREEHE

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries incorporated in PRC (continued)

Company name

NEEW

Date of
incorporation/ Authorised/
establishment Paid up capital

ML

R BH EE/BMEER
000
FIT

e B RRME

36 BARAFE (&)

RAP BRI E QR (F)

Percentage of attributable
equity interest as at
31 December
M12A31 B EGIRERNE 2t

2018 2017  Principal activities

20184 2017F FEEK

Changge City Hengda
Property Company Limited

(“Changge Hengda”)

REMBERMEFR AR

([RBfEZE])

Xuchang Jiari Baocheng
Property Company Limited

(“Jiari Baocheng”)

HERABZEXARAA

(RREZ))

Xuchang City Jian’an

District Hengmu Property
Company Limited (formerly
known as Xuchang County
Hengmu Property Co., Ltd.)
(“Xuchang Hengmu”)
EMREREEARFMER
RO (RE : FEHEXR
FiEERAR) ([FFEE

AJ)

18 May 2011 RMBG60,000/
RMB20,000

2011558188 A R#60,000,/

AR#20,000

2 June 2011 RMB50,000

201156 A28 AR¥50,000

25 January RMB10,000

2016

201651 A25H AR%10,000

100% 100% Real estate
development and
house renting in

the PRC
100% 100% R B A it A ) 3
KEEHE
100% 100% Real estate
development in
the PRC
100% 100% MBI EHERZ
51% 51% Real estate
development in
the PRC
51% 51% R BIAY i A 7 3
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36 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries incorporated in PRC (continued)

Company name

ACET:

Date of
incorporation/ Authorised/
establishment Paid up capital
MR
R A8 EE/ BRER
'000
Fr

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

36 MERARFE (&)
RAPEGFMRZNKEAR (&)
Percentage of attributable

equity interest as at
31 December

Xuchang Songji Dadi Property
Company Limited (“Songji

Dadi’)(a)

FEREAMER

BRAR ([REKH] ()

Yuzhou City Hengnuo

Property Development
Company Limited (“Yuzhou

Hengnuo”)

BN B AR %
ARLE ([&MEGE])

7 November RMB50,000
2007

2007511 A7H  AK#50,000

13 December ~ USD38,000
2018

2018412 A13H %7138,000

M2A3BEERENB DL
2018 2017  Principal activities
20185 2017F EEEHK

100% 100% Real estate
development and
house renting in
the PRC

100% 100% A B A0 B i 2 7 3

100% 100% Real estate
development and
house renting in
the PRC

100% 100% R A B #Y i E 3
KEEHE

(@) Songiji Dadi owned a project (“Songji Dadi — Mingmen Shangju”)
which was developed together with a third party investor.

In accordance with co-development agreement and

supplemental agreement dated 30 January 2010 and 9 February
2010 respectively, the third party investor owns 49% interest in
this project and therefore is considered a non-controlling interest

of the Group.

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

37 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 37 BEEXRFEREZNHE L
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL AN EERESE
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December MR20184F k2017412 431 B A FEIZ AR
2018 and 2017 were approximately RMB19,826,000 and R EE DRI ™ AR %19,826,000
RMB14,470,000 respectively which were attributed to the TR AR #14,470,0007C © HEFB®
following subsidiaries of the Group. REEATHBAR °
Summarised statement of financial position R R E
Songji Dadi-
Xuchang Hengmu Xinyang Hengda Mingmen Shangju
FEER EREE REXM — ZMEE
As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
M12H31H M12HA31H M12A31H
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

20185 20174 2018% 20174 2018% 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFT AEETT ARETR ARETT ARMFT ARETT

Current; e -

Assets BE 34,736 30,679 72,010 83,611 142,445 172,082
Liabilities &fE (26,891) (21,930) (2,169) (10,552)  (130,178)  (171,821)
Total current net assets mBEEFEETE 7,845 8,749 69,841 73,059 12,267 261
Non-current: JEMRE

Assets BE 480 282 353 685 266 16
Liabilities = - = (130) (957) - =
Total non-current net assets  FERENEEFELETE 480 282 223 (272) 266 16
Net assets BEFE 8,325 9,031 70,064 72,787 12,533 277

Net assets attributable to JEFERR i
non-controlling interests BB EFE 4,079 4,425 7,791 8,094 6,141 136
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37 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL

INFORMATION

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

37 FREAFEREZNHEL

ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON- AN BENRE (&)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HEINZEREE
Songji Dadi-
Xuchang Hengmu Xinyang Hengda Mingmen Shangju
FFEEA EREE REKH — AP E
Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
BE12B31ALEE BE12A31BLEE BE12A31BLELEE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
20184 20174 20184 20174 2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFRT AREFT
Revenue WA - - 14,147 33,086 3,326 15,764
Profit/(loss) before income tax [& Fr 5%t B K&
(E18) (863) (744) 4,321 10,470 71 4,363
Income tax expense FTiERiFY 157 250 (7,044) (2,647) 12,184 (1,058)
Post-tax profit/(loss) TEFE(EE) (706) (494) (2,723) 7,823 12,255 3,305
Total comprehensive income & E %58 (706) (494) (2,723) 7,823 12,255 3,305
Total comprehensive income  3E{ZfR 2 E (G
attributable to non- 2EKHATE
controlling interests (346) (242) (303) 870 6,005 1,619

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

37 SUMMARISED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

37 BEEARFERBESNNEA
ANMBEERSE (&

Summarised cash flows

RERERHE

Songji Dadi-
Xuchang Hengmu
FEEAR

Years ended

Xinyang Hengda
EhEE

Years ended

Mingmen Shangju
RERM — BMEE
Years ended
31 December

31 December 31 December

BE12BABALEE BE12A31BLEE BE12A31BLELEE

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

20184 20174 20184 20174 201845 20174

RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFRT AREFT
Cash flows from operating &4 &) FT15
activities: ReneE :
Cash generated from LEELRS

operations 79 720 6,897 21,209 9,808 17,635

Income tax paid BFEH (212) (18) (3,331) (8,413) 477) (500)
Net cash generated from REFREESE

operating activities & FRE (133) 702 3,566 12,796 9,331 17,135

Net cash (used in)/generated 18&&&) (FTR),/

from investing activities E4AREewEE - - (2,000) (18,000) (9,363) 23,078
Net cash used in A RSN T

financing activities e F5E - - - - - (41,517)

Net increase/(decrease) in ReFREEED

cash and cash equivalents 20/ (CRid) %58 (133) 252 1,566 (5,204) (32) (1,304)
Cash and cash equivalents  F4HIR G &

at beginning of the year BEEEY 287 35 431 5,635 431 1,735
Cash and cash equivalents at ERHIRE &

end of the year HEeERBY 154 287 1,997 431 399 431
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Financial Summary

MEHME

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—EB-N\FE —ZT—+F ZE-—RF T—HF —T—DHNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFrT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Revenue WA 1,883,603 1,549,878 930,859 1,038,296 840,697
Profit for the year F R F 229,861 149,409 76,766 72,484 167,795
Profit for the year ZIN/NEIET YN
attributable to JEAE F & Al
owners of the
Company 224,505 147,794 74,108 67,010 146,797
As at 31 December
R+=—H=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—BE-N\F ZZ2—+F ZET—RFE T—HF —T—@HNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FrT AREFIT AREFIT AREFT ARKETFT
Non-current assets IERFHEE 173,871 154,818 71,586 51,317 75,038
Current assets TENAE 5,030,664 4,534,443 4,193,964 4,277,888 4,159,514
Total assets BEHER 5,204,535 4,689,261 4,265,550 4,329,205 4,234,552
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 622,436 1,159,742 1,266,990 1,473,391 1,069,310
Current liabilities mBEE 3,584,584 3,071,697 2,694,903 2,545,020 2,931,670
Total liabilities BfEBsE 4,207,020 4,231,439 3,961,893 4,018,411 4,000,980
Total equity W 4EEE 997,515 457,822 303,657 310,794 233,572
Total equity ZIN/NEIETZEDN
attributable to JE(GHE S AR5
owners of the
Company 977,689 443,352 295,508 227,367 77,953

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited

BEEE (ZR) ARAR



Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the year
ended 31 December 2014 which was based on the unaudited
management accounts have been prepared on a combined basis
to indicate the results of the Group as if the group structure, at
the time when the Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, has been in existence throughout
that year.

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the
year ended 31 December 2015 which was extracted from
the prospectus of the Company dated 30 October 2018
(“Prospectus”) have been prepared on a combined basis to
indicate the results of the Group as if the group structure, at the
time when the Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, has been in existence throughout that
year.

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 were extracted from the
Prospectus.

Financial Summary

o

KiiE2 -

HiaE3

B HE

H E2014F12A31B L FEMNEE
AREERBBHREIRBAREEZ
EEERBIRGAEERR - LBETRA
EEES  BUEEREBRARRRK
MEBRAER ETRERZEE—&
B -

Héx B A QA B A A2018F10H30
BRBRER ((BRER]) iz
2015F12A31A L FEREE AR
BERBEMEDNRGEEERE
NBERASEES  MOEEEER
AN AR D TEBE R P AR £ T R R R
FE—HGFE -

B AR A BRERENEE20165F
124318 M2017F12A8318 It F =
MEFEUREERBERE -
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List of Principal Properties

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Interest Approximate
attributable total gross
Properties to the Group floor area Type Lease term
(sq.m.)
L/ rEEEGERE BOLEREEE 8 HE
(FK
Hengdali Market 100% 3,596 Commercial 40 years from 7 October
1996 to 6 October 2036
(=R =2k G 1996510A7A %
20365F10A6H + AHI406F
105 retail units on Level 2, the retail podium of
Hengdali Market, the west of the northern section
of Jiefang Road, Weidu District, Xuchang,
Henan Province, the PRC
RE A E TR REMEILRIATER
BENTIHNEET R 2EM105EE T
Xingshu Garden 100% 3,462 Commercial 50 years from 20 December
2002 to 19 December 2052
TEEE GES 2002512208 %
20525128198  BHIS0F
20 retail units on Level 2 and Level 3, the retalil
podium of Xingshu Garden, the middle section of
Qiyi Road, Weidu District, Xuchang,
Henan Province, the PRC
PRI A TETREAE T —BRREAR
TEEENZTET G2 RIEM20EZET
Longhu Building 100% 428 Residential 70 years from 16 February
2003 to 15 February 2073
EMRE FE 2003F2A16B%
2073%2R 150 + AHI706
Unit 2301 on Level 23 and Level 24, Longhu Building,
No. 9 Shangwu Inner Ring Road, Zhengdong New
District, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, the PRC
FR A 7 2 0 T BB B T R P A U IR B O,
B AE23F124 B 12301 E T
King of the North 100% 13,456 Commercial 40 years from 20 February
2014 to 19 February 2054
bR [GES 201452H20BE

Block 1, King of the North, the junction of
Jingshui Road and Longquan Road, Jian’an District,
Xuchang, Henan Province, the PRC
FETBEETETRELRREREE
FRERX QL1

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ZER) BGRLA

205442198 + AH40E



List of Principal Properties

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

FREPRYR
Approximate
total gross
Interest  Approximate floor area Estimated
attributable total gross under date of
Properties to the Group site area  development Type completion Progress
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
B &
nE AEEELES BOSREER HOREEER  8R FstER A H ERMRR
(FAXK) (FAxX)
NAPA Xidi 100% 88,920 91,650 Residential February 2020 Under construction
NAPAZt, frE 20202 Tigfh
Located at the south of
Xindong Street and the
east of Xingye Road, Weidu
District, Xuchang, Henan
Province, the PRC
e BB AT EmERHR
MREAEREERIAR
Jinhui Plaza 100% 85,506 151,045  Residential and December 2020 Under construction
commercial
properties with
offices premises
TEES % BERMAE  2020612A TRET

Located at the north of Bayi
Road and the east of
Beiguan Avenue, Weidu
District, Xuchang, Henan
Province,
the PRC

IR B E S EmREE
N=BAERIEBABNR
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List of Principal Properties

Approximate

total gross

Interest  Approximate floor area

attributable total gross under

Properties to the Group site area  development
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)

G

nE AEEEGES BOABEER BOAEEER

(FhK) (%)

Estimated

date of
Type completion
5 AR A

Progress

ERAR

King of the North 100% 271,114 168,217
it

Located at the south of
Xinyuan Avenue and the
east of Binhe Road, Jian'an
District, Xuchang, Henan
Province, the PRC

fRHRETEEFETRZE
ML ABAR BB UR

Mingmen Xijun 100% 63,507 254,327

BFIFES

Located at the east of Wuyi
Road and the south of
Yunlianghe Street, Weidu
District, Xuchang, Henan
Province, the PRC

268 Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA

Residential and March 2021
commercial

(R F 2021434

Residential and November 2020
commercial

e mE 2020F114

Under construction

TRR#ETH

Under construction

TRR#ETH



List of Principal Properties

Approximate

total gross
Interest  Approximate floor area Estimated
attributable total gross under date of
Properties to the Group site area  development Type completion Progress
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
G
nE rREELES BOSREER HOREEER  ER HstTR A H ERMR
(FAXK) (FAx)
e BB A E M AR
L—RRMA - el
Located at the east of
Laodong South Road and
the west of Hubin Road,
Weidu District, Xuchang,
Henan Province, the PRC
e BB AT E M HR
BHEEAR N ER AR
Changge Sunshine City 100% 195,470 162,314 Residential and December 2021 Under construction
commercial
REG M e m% 2021%12R Tigfh

Located at the south of
Getian Avenue and the
west of Waisan Road,
Changge City, Xuchang,
Henan Province, the PRC

R A A ETRED
BRRBINERIN=FIUT
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List of Principal Properties

Approximate

total gross
Interest  Approximate floor area Estimated
attributable total gross under date of
Properties to the Group site area  development Type completion
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
G
nE rEEELES BOSREER HOREEER A AR A

(FhK) (%)

Progress

ERAR

Changge Fanzhuang Project 100% 59,909 46,568  Residential and December 2021
commercial
RETHER € m% 2021%12R

Located at the south of
Getian Avenue and the
west of Waisan Road,
Changge City, Xuchang,
Henan Province, the PRC

R EFETMREN
BAREAERIN=F AT

Yuzhou Sunshine City 100% 502,535 488,738  Residential and March 2025
commercial
BN € w% 2025%3A

Located at the north of
Yuwang Boulevard,
south of Binhe Boulevard
and west of Xuanyuan
Boulevard, Yuzhou City,
Henan Province, the PRC

RRHRETEESMNTEER
B - BWAEAR - B
FARBAR

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEE (ER) BRAA

Under construction

T

Under construction

T



Board
EEa

Ever Reach or the Company
(e =22 o N/N]

Group
rEH

Henan Dadi

AR KM

Hengda Investment

Hengda Property Management

BEMEER

HK$/HKD
AT

IPO
BRAREE

Board of directors of the Company
BEERNESTS

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
BEEEGER)ERAF

Ever Reach and its subsidiaries
BEEREENB AT

Henan Dadi Property Development Company Limited*, being an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
AEAMEMEREERAR - AREZRAEZERB AR

Henan Hengda Investment Company Limited*, a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 17 October 2007 owned approximately by
Mr. Li Xiaobing as to 67.1833%, Mr. Wang Zhenfeng as to 3.3833%,
Ms. Qi Chunfeng as to 18.65%, Mr. Li Shixun as to 2.3833% and Ms.
Chun Xiaojun as to 1.15% (all of whom being connected persons) and
two independent third parties as to the remaining 7.25%, and hence a
connected person of our Company

AEEZEREBRAR - —RKMN2007F10A17HERBIKINERAR - 9
RIEBZFE/NKESE  FIRESSE  BERZLT  FHEEERERELL (5
AEEANT) % B 4967.1833% * 3.3833% * 18.65% * 2.3833% % 1.15% 4
mARHMBBILE = AR T7.25% e - At ARARMEEAL

Xuchang Hengda Property Management Company Limited*, a limited
liability company established in the PRC on 5 July 1999 wholly owned by
Hengda Investment, and hence a connected person of our Company
FFEEEMEERBRAR - —KMW1999F7 ASAEHR BRI HFRAR] -
HEERERZEHE  ALRRARNEEAL

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEEEEE

Initial public offering of Ever Reach
BEERERAREE

* English name for identification purpose only
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Listing Rules
Al

PRC
2

RVB
ARE

SFO
& 7 M B E Rl

Stock Exchange

58 32 FIT

Xuchang Erjian

e

Xuchang Hengda

FFEEE

Yuzhou Hengda

BINEE

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B P R8 5 TR Al

People’s Republic of China
hEE AR HME

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE  HBEDEEE®

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong)

B RBAEED (FBEPEST1E)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMAERZAARRNT]

Xuchang City Second Construction (Group) Company Limited*, a limited
liability company established in the PRC on 13 November 1997 beneficially
owned approximately by Mr. Li Dongfa as to 61.82%, Ms. Qi Chunfeng as
to 2.47%, Ms. Chun Xiaojun as to 2.17% (all of whom being connected
persons), five independent third parties as to 33.45% and certain other
independent third parties represented by collective shares as to the
remaining 0.09%, and hence a connected person of our Company
AEME_ZR (EE) ARAR  —RM1997F 11 A13BERBEKINEA
RAR - RIBAFRESE  BERKLT ERELL (HARBEAL) KR
BB E=HEmBEAL61.82% - 2.47% + 2.17%N33.45%Em A KRB ET
BB E=7 (UEREBRER) BERBEEMRT80.09% s - Bt /A A A
B AL

Xuchang Hengda Property Group Company Limited®, being an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
TEEBERMESEBRAR  ARAZEEE2ENBAR

Yuzhou City Hengda Property Company Limited*, being an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
BMNTEEREMERREEAR  AARZHEEZEMEAQR]

* English name for identification purpose only

Ever Reach Group (Holdings) Company Limited
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